651 Commerce Drive
A PULLIC AGENCY Roseville. CA 95678

.‘4 ‘_\
NCI A phone  (916) 781-3636

/ NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY fax (916) 783-7693

web www.ncpa.com

Minutes - DRAFT

Date: March 28, 2019
To: NCPA Commission
From: Cary A. Padgett, Assistant Secretary to the Commission

Subject: NCPA Commission Meeting / Teleconference

1 — Call Meeting to Order and Introductions

Chair Roger Frith called the meeting to order at 9:32 am at NCPA’s Roseville Office, 651
Commerce Drive, California. A quorum was present. Introductions were made. Those in
attendance and attending via teleconference are shown on the attached attendance list.

2 — Approve Minutes of the February 21, 2019, Regular Commission Meeting

Motion: A motion was made by Mark Chandler and seconded by John Allard to approve the
Minutes of the February 21, 2019, Regular Commission Meeting. The motion carried
unanimously on a roll call vote.

San Francisco BART, Plumas-Sierra, Santa Clara, and Truckee Donner were absent.

PUBLIC FORUM

No comments from the public.

REPORTS AND COMMITTEE UPDATES

3 - General Manager’s Business Progress Report and Update
No General Manager Report was provided.
4 — Executive Committee

Committee Chair Frith reported the Committee did not meet since the last Commission
meeting.



5 — Facilities Committee

Assistant General Manager Tony Zimmer reported the Committee met twice since the last
Commission meeting. The Committee met and discussed items 13, 14, and 15 on today’s
agenda. The Committee did establish a quorum, and recommended Commission approval.

6 — Finance Committee

Committee Chair David Hagele reported the Committee did not meet since the last Commission
meeting. However, an update was provided on the results of the 2010 Hydro Series A Bonds
refunding.

7 — Legal Committee

General Counsel Jane Luckhardt reported that the Committee did not meet since the last
Commission meeting.

8 — Legislative & Regulatory Affairs Committee

Committee Chair Mark Chandler reported the Committee did not meet since the last
Commission meeting. However, an update on legislative and regulatory activities was
provided, as well as an update on the Central Valley Project Power Initiative with the Bureau
of Reclamation and Western Area Power Administration. NCPA'’s Federal Policy
Conference will be held in Washington, D.C., April 28-May 2 - there is still time to register.
The 2019 State Legislative Staff Tour is scheduled on July 29-31. This year the tour will visit
Redding, Plumas-Sierra and Truckee Donner. The next Committee meeting is scheduled on
April 24, 2019, at NCPA'’s office in Roseville, and will include an issues briefing for those
attending the Federal Policy Conference.

9 — Members’ Announcements & Meeting Reporting

No Member announcement were reported.

CONSENT CALENDAR

Prior to the roll call vote to approve the Consent Calendar, the Commissioners were polled to
determine if any member wished to pull an item or abstain from one or more items on the
Consent Calendar.

No items were pulled from the Consent Calendar for discussion.

Motion: A motion was made by Basil Wong and seconded by Mel Grandi to approve the
Consent Calendar consisting of ltems 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, and 15. The motion carried by a
majority of those members present on a roll call vote with the abstentions noted below for each
item.

San Francisco BART, Plumas-Sierra, Santa Clara, and Truckee Donner were absent.

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 2
March 28, 2019



10. NCPA'’s Financials for the Month Ended February 28, 2019 — approval by all
Members.

11. Treasurer’s Report for the Month Ended February 28, 2019 — accept by all members.

12. Sale or Disposal of Surplus Property — note and file report by all members for the
disposal of scrap metal (consisting of old pumps, valves, shop heater, etc.), old station
transformer core, 2 air compressors, piping, and cables. The air compressors, piping
and cables have been deemed to have no value and were disposed of via
environmental services. The old pumps, valves, shop heater, as well as the transformer
core have been deemed scrap metal and were disposed of via recycling establishment.
Fiscal Impact: This report has no direct fiscal impact to the Agency.

13. Resolution 19-27, Drill Tech Drilling & Shoring, Inc. — Five Year Multi-Task General
Services Agreement for engineering, inspection and maintenance services;
Applicable to the following projects: All NCPA Facility Locations, Members,
SCPPA and SCPPA Members — adopt resolution by all members authorizing the
General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-Task General Services Agreement
with Drill Tech Drilling & Shoring, Inc., for engineering, inspection and maintenance
services, with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA
General Counsel, which shall not exceed $1,000,000 over five years for.use at all facilities
owned and/or operated by NCPA, its Members, by the Southern California Public Power
Authority (“SCPPA”), or by SCPPA Members.

Fiscal Impact: Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not-to-exceed
$1,000,000 over five years to be used out of NCPA approved budgets as services are
rendered. Purchase orders referencing the terms and conditions of the Agreement will be
issued following NCPA procurement policies and procedures

14. Resolution 19-28, Allied Power Group, LLC — Five Year Multi-Task General Services
Agreement for inspection and maintenance related services/equipment; Applicable to
the following projects: All NCPA Facility Locations, Members, SCPPA, and SCPPA
Members — adopt resolution by all members authorizing the General Manager or his
designee to enter into a Multi-Task General Services Agreement and Agreement for
Purchase of Equipment, Materials and Supplies with Allied Power Group, LLC, for
inspection and maintenance related services, with any non-substantial changes
recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed
$2,000,000.00 over five years, for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, its
Members, by the Southern California Public Power Authority (“SCPPA”), or by SCPPA
Members.

Fiscal Impact: Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed
$2,000,000.00 to be used out of the NCPA approved budget. Purchase orders
referencing the terms and conditions of the Agreement will be issued following NCPA
procurement policies and procedures.

15. Resolution 19-29, Amendment to the Facilities Schedule 7, Appendix B, Section 2.2
— adopt resolution by all members approving the Amendment to Facilities Schedule 7,
Appendix B, Section 2.2 of the Amended and Restated Facilities Agreement, including
any non-substantive modifications to such amendment approved by NCPA's General
Counsel.

Fiscal Impact: Work associated with review and development of the amendment to
Facilities Schedule 7 was undertaken pursuant to approved Power Management budget
categories, and costs associated with this effort are allocated in accordance with approved
cost allocation methodologies as described in the NCPA annual budget.

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes
March 28, 2019



INFORMATION ITEMS

16. Lodi CT — Proposed Development — presentation by staff.

Assistant General Manager Ken Speer gave a presentation on the proposed development near
the Lodi Combustion Turbine (Lodi CT). The City of Lodi is working with a developer to build a
hotel, apartments, and stores on the property next to the Lodi CT, also known as the Lake
House Development. NCPA is working with the City and the developer regarding solutions
surrounding noise, fire and the compatible land use if, in the long term, the plant is shutdown.
NCPA staff will continue to work with the City and the developer to see if there are ways to
accommodate both parties. Staff will continue to provide the Commission with updates on the
developments of the discussions.

Non-essential Members and NCPA staff left the meeting for Closed Session Items 17 and 18
discussion.

CLOSED SESSION

17. Conference with Legal Counsel — Existing litigation pursuant to Government Code Section
54956.9(d)(1): Name of case: Northern California Power Agency, City of Redding, City of
Roseville, and City of Santa Clara v. the United States, Court of Federal Claims No. 14-
817C.

18. Conference with Legal Counsel — Initiation of litigation pursuant to Government Code
Section 54956.9 paragraph (4) of subdivision (d): one potential case.

RECONVENED TO OPEN SESSION

All meeting attendees rejoined the meeting.

REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION

Closed Session Disclosure: General Counsel Jane Luckhardt stated there was no reportable
action taken on Closed Session Items 17 and 18.

NEW BUSINESS

No new business was discussed.

ADJOURNMENT

The March 28, 2019, Commission meeting was adjourned at 11:00 am.

Respectfully submitted, Prepared by,

ROGER FRITH CARY A. PADGETT

Commission Chair Assistant Secretary to the Commission
Attachments

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 4

March 28, 2019



/AI/\ICF’A CONSENT CALENDAR

ORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

All items on the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be approved without
discussion by a single-roll call vote. Any Commissioner or member of the public may remove
any item from the Consent Calendar. If an item is removed, it will be discussed separately
following approval of the remainder of the Consent Calendar.

Prior to the roll call vote to approve the Consent Calendar, the Commissioners will be polled to
determine if any Member wishes to abstain from one or more items on the Consent Calendar.

CONSENT CALENDAR ROLL-CALL APPROVAL

Commission Meeting Date: March 28, 2019

(=
Consent Items Listed on the Agenda: # \D to# \ O

Consent Items Removed from the Agenda and Approved Separately:
#

ROLL-CALL VOTE BY MEMBERS: YG\Q:\ ‘ M&/

Member Item Numbers Abstained Vote Absent
Alameda N
BART ’ ¥
Biggs N

Gridley , v \4 i

Healdsburg N
Lodi N |

Lompoc
Palo Alto \
Port of Oakland '

Redding v

Roseville ‘L
Santa Clara :

Shasta Lake \f
Truckee Donner ]

Ukiah bl
Plumas-Sierra '

ATTEST: C{ (\&@K‘Q&’ﬁ |

Cary A. Padg\ettj =
Assistant Secretary to the Commission




Topic:

Alameda
BART

Biggs

Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi

Lompoc

Palo Alto
Plumas-Sierra
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara

Shasta Lake

Truckee Donner

Ukiah

Northern California Power Agency
ROLL CALL VOTE

Nnue S

ABSTAIN ABSENT

<
(@]
3
m

.

X

sRanaRsRsnanis

Passed and adopted this 28™ day of March 2019, by the above vote on roll call.

o

L & J
ROGER FRITH

Commission Chair

ATTEST: mk@%’éb

= S T
CARY A. PADG '
Assistant Secretary



Northern California Power Agency
Commission Meeting / Teleconference of March 28, 2019
COMMISSIONER
Attendance List

NCPA Commissioners are requested to sign, but signature by members of the public is voluntary.

MEMBER NAME
1- ALAMEDA JQW%SQ( VA - Viea pY\LYN_
2 - BIGGS L)oa\” f w
3 - GRIDLEY W\ e - viee phene

4 - HEALDSBURG

David Haagy —vice Phene

5-LODI
6 - LOMPOC i Qchorine. via @Y\W\JL_
7 - PALO ALTO %\(@(\ Sheelt VAo @Y\LWUL/

8 - PORT OF OAKLAND

BS\ W - Vi Pnone

9 - PLUMAS-SIERRA REC

10 - REDDING

K. schreder ViA \Dlwme,
=< _\

11 - ROSEVILLE

=

12 - SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID
TRANSIT DISTRICT

/ i

13 - SANTA CLARA

14 - SHASTA LAKE

{44”“’5 ///”ééa/‘{

15 - TRUCKEE DONNER

16 - UKIAH




Northern California Power Agency
Commission Meeting / Teleconference of March 28, 2019
Attendance List

NCPA Commissioners, Alternates & Staff are requested to sign, but signature by members of the
public is voluntary.

NAME

AFFILIATION

Y /74

Vg e

AIC ///f“/ Faoneedl.

Y Chelle E)ﬁ/ﬁm)m qgffﬂ LU
ﬁ/’7€5 ﬁ«éééara jéﬂf/é éa/é
Rey e Fo H- 21555
DCM’\ %/Z‘;‘—\ Reddnn
/m’\‘l Bonperia— VP A =
Mé’ Lis¢ o P Led |
’\IW( A NTFM
IMMM aules NCPA

{P N e

/)P

Ll IhdCdd

AN PA

q\\\kJ Q‘\LQ kJ\

GACLORL G

._\U.\ Mﬁk\k\\fﬁ{\ﬁv

Yolo o




A PUBLIC AGENLY

NCP.

/ NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

651 Commerce Drive
Roseville, CA 95678

phone (916) 781-3636

fax (916) 783-7693
web www.ncpa.com

AGENDA ITEMNO.: D

Date: April 25, 2019
To: NCPA Commission
Subject: April 3, 2019 Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes

The attached Draft Minutes are being provided for information and to augment the oral

Committee report.



651 Commerce Drive
Roseville, CA 95678

A PUBLIC AGENCY
phone  (916) 781-3636
N C F A fax  (916)783-7603

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY web www.ncpa.com

Minutes — Draft

Date: April 8, 2019
To: NCPA Facilities Committee
From: Carrie Pollo

Subject: April 3, 2019 Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes

1. Call meeting to order & Roll Call — The meeting was called to order by Committee Chair Tikan
Singh at 9:02 am. A sign-in sheet was passed around. Attending via teleconference and/or on-
line presentation were Alan Harbottle (Alameda), Mark Sorensen (Biggs), Paul Eckert (Gridley),
Shiva Swaminathan, (Palo Alto), Jared Carpenter (Port of Oakland), Brian Schinstock
(Redding), and, Paulo Apolinario and Steve Hance (Santa Clara). Those attending in person are
listed on the attached Attendee Sign-in Sheet. Committee Representatives from BART,
Healdsburg, Plumas-Sierra, TID, and Ukiah were absent. A quorum of the Committee was
established.

PUBLIC FORUM
No public comment.

2. Approve Minutes from the March 6, 2019 Facilities Committee Meeting, and March 12,
2019 Special Facilities Committee Meeting.

Motion: A motion was made by Jiayo Chiang and seconded by Brian Zard recommending
approval of the March 6, 2019 Facilities Committee meeting minutes, and the March 12, 2019
Special Facilities Committee meeting minutes. A vote was taken by roll call: YES = Alameda,
Biggs, Gridley, Lodi, Lompoc, Palo Alto, Redding, Roseville, and Santa Clara. The motion
passed.

3. All Generation Services Facilities, Members, SCPPA — American Power Systems,
Inc. MTGSA - Staff provided background information and was seeking a recommendation for
Commission approval of a five-year Multi-Task General Services Agreement with American
Power Systems, Inc. for battery services, with a not to exceed amount of $500,000 for use at all
facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, its Members, SCPPA, and SCPPA Members. This is
a renewal agreement with an existing vendor. It is an enabling agreement with no commitment
of funds. Since there is no engineering services provided in this agreement, General Counsel
recommended making minor changes in section 5.2 of the agreement, by changing to the
standard provisions. All purchase orders issued pursuant to the agreement will be charged
against approved Annual Operating Budgets. A draft Commission Staff Report and the draft
agreement were available for review.

Motion: A motion was made by Brian Zard and seconded by Jiayo Chiang recommending



Commission approval authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-
Task General Services Agreement with American Power Systems, LLC for battery related
services, with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General
Counsel, which shall not exceed $500,000 over five years, for use at all facilities owned and/or
operated by NCPA, its Members, by the Southern California Public Power Authority (‘SCPPA”),
or by SCPPA Members. A vote was taken by roll call: YES = Alameda, Biggs, Gridley, Lodi,
Lompoc, Palo Alto, Redding, Roseville, and Santa Clara. The motion passed.

4. All Generation Services Facilities, Members, SCPPA - WorleyParsons Group, Inc. MTPSA
— Staff presented and was seeking a recommendation for Commission approval of a five-year
Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement with Worley Parsons Group, Inc. for project
support services, with a not to exceed amount of $1,500,000 for use at all facilities owned
and/or operated by NCPA, its Members, SCPPA, and SCPPA Members. This is a renewal
agreement with an existing vendor. It is an enabling agreement with no commitment of funds.
The vendor will provide full service engineering. All purchase orders issued pursuant to the
agreement will be charged against approved Annual Operating Budgets. A draft Commission
Staff Report and the draft agreement were available for review.

Motion: A motion was made by Jiayo Chiang and seconded by Brian Zard recommending
Commission approval authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-
Task Professional Services Agreement with WorleyParsons Group, Inc. for project support
services related to plant operations, with any non-substantial changes recommended and
approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed $1,500,000 over five years, for
use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, its Members, by the Southern California
Public Power Authority (“SCPPA”), or by SCPPA Members. A vote was taken by roll call: YES =
Alameda, Biggs, Gridley, Lodi, Lompoc, Palo Alto, Redding, Roseville, and Santa Clara. The
motion passed.

5. All Generation Services Facilities, Members, SCPPA - Johnson Controls, Inc., MTGSA-
Staff presented and was seeking a recommendation for Commission approval of a five-year
Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Johnson Controls, Inc. for HVAC and chiller
maintenance related services, with a not to exceed amount of $500,000 for use at all facilities
owned and/or operated by NCPA, its Members, SCPPA, and SCPPA Members. This is a
renewal agreement with an existing vendor. It is an enabling agreement with no commitment of
funds. Staff is also searching for other vendors that can provide this type of work. All purchase
orders issued pursuant to the agreement will be charged against approved Annual Operating
Budgets. A draft Commission Staff Report and the draft agreement were available for review.

Motion: A motion was made by Brian Zard and seconded by Jiayo Chiang recommending
Commission approval authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Muilti-
Task General Services Agreement with Johnson Controls, Inc. for HVAC and chiller
maintenance related services, with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved
by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed $500,000 over five years, for use at all
facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, its Members, by the Southern California Public
Power Authority (“SCPPA”), or by SCPPA Members. A vote was taken by roll call: YES =
Alameda, Biggs, Gridley, Lodi, Lompoc, Palo Alto, Redding, Roseville, and Santa Clara. The
motion passed.

6. All Generation Services Facilities, Members, SCPPA - GEIl Consultants, Inc., MTPSA-
Staff provided background information and was seeking a recommendation for Commission
approval of a five-year Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement with GEI Consultants, Inc.
for engineering services, with a not to exceed amount of $1,000,000 for use at all facilities
owned and/or operated by NCPA, its Members, SCPPA, and SCPPA Members. GEI

Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes 2
April 3, 2019



Consultants is an international engineering company with multidisciplinary expertise. NCPA has
relied on GEI for regulatory compliance and engineering services. Past projects with GEl over
the last 5 years include Dam Safety Part 12 Study Independent Consultants and the newly
required Owner Dam Safety Program Audit. This is an enabling agreement, with no commitment
of funds. All purchase orders issued pursuant to the agreement will be charged against
approved Annual Operating Budgets. A draft Commission Staff Report and the draft agreement
were available for review.

Motion: A motion was made by Jiayo Chiang and seconded by Brian Zard recommending
Commission approval authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-
Task Professional Services Agreement with GE| Consultants, Inc. for engineering services, with
any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel,
which shall not exceed $1,000,000 over five years for use at all facilities owned and/or operated
by NCPA, its Members, by the Southern California Public Power Authority (“SCPPA”), or by
SCPPA Members. A vote was taken by roll call: YES = Alameda, Biggs, Gridley, Lodi, Lompoc,
Palo Alto, Redding, Roseville, and Santa Clara. The motion passed.

7. NCPA Generation Services Plant Updates — NCPA Plant Staff provided the Committee with
an informational update on current plant activities and conditions.

Geo - There were no safety incidents to report for the month of March. Safety review topics
during March included asbestos awareness and, a Lock-out Tag-out (LOTOT) review, which
was perfect timing for the plant overhauls scheduled in April. Plant #2 was down for 77 hours to
repair the Gland Steam Leak-off System. The estimated loss in generation was approximately
1600 MWh during the outage. The Plant #1 overhaul for Unit #2 has started and is scheduled
from April 1 — May 10, 2019. Plant and Steam Field LOTOT has been established, and the
cooling tower has been drained. Work is progressing on the turbine with generator inspection
and repair, condenser cleaning, ball cleaning system, steam ejector replacement, and electrical
cleaning and testing. The overhaul for Unit #1 is scheduled from April 22 — May 26, 2019.

CTs - Alameda Unit #2 was in a forced outage for 5 days because of a switchgear failure. The
wires were changed out in the switchgear, so the unit is back up and running now. The West
Turner Road facility is almost finished with repair work. There are currently no issues at STIG,
and not much action. LEC is in a full outage that started April 1%. Ethos is currently on site at
both LEC and Turner Road locations.

Hydro — The New Spicer Meadow Reservoir is close to empty now, at 60,000 acre feet, after
peaking last June. Water is being actively moved to make room for the 2019 snow melt.
Precipitation is at 127% of normal or 42.5 inches of rain. The snow pack is now 165% of normal,
approximately where it was in 2016-2017. More snow is forecasted for this weekend at 12-18
inches. McKays may spill more water pending how the snow melt occurs. There will also be
some impacts with tail water which is out of NCPA’s control.

8. Proposed FY2020 Annual Budget Review and Approval — Staff reviewed the final budget,
including each business unit for FY2020, and was seeking a recommendation for Commission
approval of the budget.

Generation Services FY2020 Budget Review

e Hydro FY2020 Budget: Staff reviewed the updated FY2020 proposed budget. The
overall budget includes a $2.2 million increase for a total proposed amount of $54
million. Routine O&M is up 6.3%, labor is up 6.2%, CAISO charges are up by $600,000,
and the Capital Reserve Fund is up $3.3 million, due mainly to the Collierville Rewind
Project and the McKays Cleanout Project. Revenues are up due to the higher estimated
market prices. Net revenue assumptions is $26.7 million. The net budget cost is $27.4

Facilities (fommittee Meeting Minutes 3
April 3,2019



million with an increase to participant’s costs by $53,722. The proposed projects remain
the same, with a total cost of $4,775,000.

e Geo FY2019 Budget: Staff reviewed the updated FY2020 proposed budget. The total
FY2020 proposed budget is $35.3 million, which is an increase over the FY2019 budget
of $885,600. Routine O&M is up 2.0%, labor is up 5.0%, CAISO charges are up by
$333,000, project O&M costs are up by $495,000, and revenues are up due to the
higher estimated market prices. Net revenue assumptions is $30.7 million. The net
project cost to participants is down to $4.6 million, which is a decrease of $2.4 million.
The Network Infrastructure Improvement Project has been removed, which brings the
total project cost down by $68,000.

CT’s FY2020 Budget: Staff reviewed the updated FY2020 proposed budget for the CTs.

e CT1 FY2020 Budget: The proposed budget for CT1 decreased $1.9 million, for a total
FY2020 budget of $6.2 million. Routine O&M is up by 64%, labor is up by 31%, which
includes a request for one new full time employee, other costs are up by $1.4 million, the
Capital projects are down $3.4 million, and net revenues are up due to the higher
estimated market prices and increased generation. The total cost to participants is
decreasing by $2.6 million. The NFPA Purge Credit Project has been removed, bringing
the total project cost down by $600,000.

e CT2 FY2020 Budget: The proposed budget for CT2 increased $695,557 for a total
FY2020 budget of $9.4 million. Routine O&M costs is up 14%, labor is up 2.7%, other
costs are up by $337,000, replenishment to the maintenance reserve of $350,000, and
net revenues are up due to the higher estimated market prices and increased
generation, decreasing the cost to participants by $419,756. The proposed projects
remain the same, which will be at a bare minimum to maintain running the plant through
the proposed project end date of 2026.

Power Management FY2020 Budget Review

There have no changes to the Power Management proposed FY2020 Budget since the last
review during the Special Facilities Committee Meeting on March 12. Labor is up 1.9%, with
non-personnel costs down by 14%, due to less travel, office supplies, and administrative
liquidation. The A&G costs are projected to decrease by approximately $90,000. Overall a net
reduction by $75,000 for a total proposed FY2020 Power Management budget of $10.6 million.
The Power Management budgeted revenues will increase at a minimum of $350,000. If services
customers renew contracts, the forecasted revenues will increase $2.5 million.

Administrative Services FY2020 Budget Review

The Executive and Administrative Services FY2020 proposed budget was reviewed. Labor is up
by 2.6%, with non-personnel down across all departments except Information Technology. The
projects proposed decreased by $445,000. The overall reduction is almost $500,000, for a total
proposed budget of $15.3 million.

The proposed FY2020 budget will be published to NCPA Connect for Member review, per
business unit details, participant funding, and a 10-year forecast. Staff will finalize the remaining
budget package. Any changes will be only immaterial adjustments. The Utility Directors and
Commissioners will review in April. Staff will seek Commission approval in May.

Motion: A motion was made by Brian Zard and seconded by Shiva Swaminathan recommending
Commission approval of the FY2020 budget as presented in the Facilities Committee Meeting
April 3, 2019 for Generation Services, Administrative Services, and Power Management subject

Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes 4
April 3,2019



to non-substantive modifications. A vote was taken by roll call: YES = Alameda, Gridley, Lodi,
Lompoc, Palo Alto, Redding, Roseville, and Santa Clara. The motion passed.

9. AIll NCPA Facilities, Members, SCPPA — Trimark Associates, Inc. MTGSA - Staff presented
and was seeking a recommendation for Commission approval of a five-year Multi-Task General
Services Agreement with Trimark Associates, Inc. to provide meter related (installation,
maintenance, data acquisition, telemetry, etc.) services as requested, with a not to exceed
amount of $2,000,000 for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, its Members,
SCPPA, and SCPPA Members. This is an enabling agreement with no commitment of funds. All
purchase orders issued pursuant to the agreement will be charged against approved Annual
Operating Budgets. A draft Commission Staff Report and the draft agreement were available for
review.

The purpose of this agreement is to consolidate a majority of existing agreements with Trimark
Associates, Inc. under one enabling structure, with the exception of BART's Meter Data
Management Agreement, and the Member Meter Maintenance Agreement. Another reason is to
move away from a sole source provider, as well as allowing members to be able to use this
agreement through shared support services for bidding. The General Manager recommended
adding language in the Staff Report pertaining to the fact that Pacific Power Engineers, Inc. is
another vendor that can provide the same services.

Motion: A motion was made by Jiayo Chiang and seconded by Brian Zard recommending
Commission approval authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-
Task General Services Agreement with Trimark Associates, Inc. for revenue meter related
services, including any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA
General Counsel, and shall not exceed $2,000,000 over five years, for use at all facilities owned
and/or operated by NCPA, its Members, by the Southern California Public Power Authority
(“SCPPA"), or by SCPPA Members. A vote was taken by roll call: YES = Alameda, Gridley,
Lodi, Lompoc, Palo Alto, Port of Oakland, Roseville, and Santa Clara. The motion passed.

10. All NCPA Facilities, Members, SCPPA - Pacific Power Engineers MTGSA - Staff presented
and was seeking a recommendation for Commission approval of a five-year Multi-Task General
Services Agreement with Pacific Power Engineers to provide meter related (installation,
maintenance, data acquisition, telemetry, etc.) services as requested, with a not to exceed
amount of $2,000,000 for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, its Members,
SCPPA, and SCPPA Members. This is an agreement with a new vendor similar to the
agreement with Trimark Associates, Inc. for competitive bidding. Pacific Power Engineers is a
CAISO approved Meter Company. It is also recommended to add language in the Staff Report
with regards to the fact that Trimark Associates, Inc. is another vendor that can provide the
same services. This is an enabling agreement with no commitment of funds. All purchase orders
issued pursuant to the agreement will be charged against approved Annual Operating Budgets.
A draft Commission Staff Report and the draft agreement were available for review.

Motion: A motion was made by Brian Zard and seconded by Jiayo Chiang recommending
Commission approval authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-
Task General Services Agreement with Pacific Power Engineers, Inc. for revenue meter related
services, including any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA
General Counsel, and shall not exceed $2,000,000 over five years, for use at all facilities owned
and/or operated by NCPA, its Members, by the Southern California Public Power Authority
(“SCPPA”), or by SCPPA Members. A vote was taken by roll call: YES = Alameda, Gridley,
Lodi, Lompoc, Palo Alto, Port of Oakland, Roseville, and Santa Clara. The motion passed.

Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes 5
April 3, 2019



11. RFP for Joint CCA RA Portfolio Management Services — NCPA staff will discuss and review
a Joint CCA RFP seeking Resource Adequacy Portfolio Management Services. **This item was
pulled.**

12. Planning and Operations Update —

- CCA Activities — The transition of SUCE and EBCE to their own SCID is 90% complete.
These two entities need to complete a few contracting steps with the CAISO to complete the
process. This should be done by May.

- Developing CY 2020 RA Peak Demand Forecast — Information due to CEC in the coming
weeks.

- Opportunities to Sell Project Attributes — Since NCPA should have a robust hydro production
year, NCPA staff are exploring opportunities to sell RPS, GHG-Free and Resource
Adequacy to CCA customers. Please contact Tony Zimmer for information regarding
contractual requirements.

- SFWPA - A meeting is scheduled on April 10, 2019 with SFWPA. Staff is developing an
analysis for valuing of the project. Next steps are to seek Member interest to procure output
of project.

- Resource Adequacy Enhancements Update — The CAISO is actively working to overhaul
the requirements for RA, such as what counts as RA, as well as outage coordination. NCPA
will submit comments.

- Day-Ahead Market Enhancements (DAME) Update — This will be implemented in the fall of
2020, changing the DAM to be scheduled in 15 minute increments. NCPA will need to
change all internal software.

13. Schedule Next Meeting Date — The next regular Facilities Committee meeting is scheduled for
May 1, 2019.

ADJOURNMENT

The meeting was adjourned at 11:15 pm.

Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes 6
April 3,2019



A PlBiiv ATENLY

/ INCP.

/.‘ 'NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

April 18, 2019

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:  April 25, 2019

SUBJECT:

March 31, 2019 Financial Report (Unaudited)

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

IO

FROM:

Division:

Department:

Sondra Ainsworth METHOD OF SELECTION:

Treasurer-Controller N/A

Administrative Services

Accounting & Finance

Alameda Municipal Power

San Francisco Bay Area

City of Healdsburg

IMPACTED MEMBERS:

All Members

X

City of Lodi

City of Lompoc

Rapid Transit

City of Biggs City of Redding

City of Gridley City of Roseville

o o o o o

City of Santa Clara

If other, please specify

O
O
City of Palo Alto [ Plumas-Sierra REC
]
U
O

City of Shasta Lake

City of Ukiah

Port of Oakland

Truckee Donner PUD

Other

o o o o o o

SR: 140:19



March 2019 Financial Report (Unaudited)
April 18, 2019

Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approval by all members

NOTICE:

The disbursements of the Northern California Power Agency for the month reported herein, will
be approved at the April 25, 2019 meeting of the NCPA Commission. The following page is a
summary of those disbursements.

Prior to the Chairman’s call to order, the Assistant Secretary to the Commission will, upon
request, make available for review the detailed listing of those disbursements.

The report of budget vs. actual costs and the unaudited March 2019 financial reports are also
included.

FISCAL IMPACT:

This report has no direct budget impact to the Agency.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

The financial report would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 of the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

Respectfully submitted,

o h S [
Rm. HOV/VARD

General Manager

Attachments: (1)

SR: 140:19



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
and ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

Schedule of Disbursements

(Unaudited)

For the Month of March 2019

Operations:
Geothermal
Hydroelectric
CT#1 Combustion Turbines
CT#2 STIG
Lodi Energy Center
NCPA Operating

Total

$ 1,210,297
3,468,669
464,196
843,345
9,103,592
30,828,121

$ 45,918,220




NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY PERCENT OF
REPORT OF BUDGET VS. ACTUAL COST YEAR ELAPSED

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED MARCH 31, 2019 75%
This Actual Year FY 2019
Month To-Date Budget % Used

GENERATION RESOURCES
NCPA Plants
Hydroelectric

Other Plant Cost $ 1,499,686 $ 12,082,635 $ 16,699,691 72%

Debt Service (Net) 2,929,735 26,367,619 35,156,824 75%
Annual Budget Cost 4,429,421 38,450,254 51,856,515 74%
Geothermal

Other Plant Cost 2,707,672 22,103,506 29,488,515 75%

Debt Service (Net) 411,408 3,702,672 4,936,896 75%
Annual Budget Cost 3,119,080 25,806,178 34,425,411 75%
Combustion Turbine No. 1 1,148,123 6,180,710 8,105,701 76%
Combustion Turbine No. 2 (Stig)

Fuel and Pipeline Transport Charges 380,163 1,381,306 977,410 141%  (a)

Other Plant Cost 165,088 1,613,128 2,048,734 74%

Debt Service (Net) 476,392 4,287,531 5,716,708 75%
Annual Budget Cost 1,021,643 7,181,965 8,742,852 82%

Lodi Energy Center

Fuel 3,935,485 44,902,463 33,092,116 136%  (b)

Other Plant Cost 1,495,827 18,074,780 24 544 632 74%

Debt Service (Net) 2,173,321 19,559,890 26,079,852 75%
Annual Budget Cost 7,604,633 82,537,133 83,716,600 99%
Member Resources - Energy 4,302,207 42,886,343 64,448,814 67%
Member Resources - Natural Gas 402,675 3,529,546 3,098,278 114% (c)
Western Resources 3,025,703 14,458,514 31,349,618 46%
Market Power Purchases 1,687,771 18,755,379 15,539,033 121%  (d)
Load Aggregation Costs - CAISO 44,833,652 406,234,472 273,858,269 148%  (e)
Net GHG Obligations - 2,123,545 1,122,972 189% f

71,574,908 648,144,039 576,264,063 112%
TRANSMISSION
Independent System Operator
Grid Management Charge 592,488 4,617,439 3,662,271 126% (9)
Wheeling Access Charge 7,167,847 68,958,136 104,569,875 66%
Ancillary Services 1,159,860 7,376,691 3,040,303 243%  (h)
Other ISO Charges/(Credits) 2,097,877 10,030,354 1,549,274 647% (i)
11,018,072 90,982,620 112,821,723 81%
MANAGEMENT SERVICES
Legislative & Regulatory
Legislative Representation 212,478 1,602,217 2,023,068 74%
Regulatory Representation 77,715 432,930 886,616 49%
Western Representation 75,302 490,106 848,160 58%
Member Services 15,797 178,344 438,389 41%
Judicial Action 57,444 500,001 625,000 80% )

Management Services continued on next page



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY PERCENT OF
REPORT OF BUDGET VS. ACTUAL COST YEAR ELAPSED
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED MARCH 31, 2019 75%
This Actual Year FY 2019
Month To-Date Budget % Used
Power Management
System Control & Load Dispatch 594,174 4,302,450 6,107,416 70%
Forecasting, Planning, Prescheduling & Trading 277,340 1,888,220 2,775,167 68%
Industry Restructuring & Regulatory Affairs 41,168 264,198 438,813 60%
Contract Admin, Interconnection Svcs & External Affairs 91,382 613,347 1,134,623 54%
Green Power Project 32 229 2,964 8%
Gas Purchase Program 7,153 47,520 77,781 61%
Market Purchase Project 9,965 62,674 112,014 56%
Energy Risk Management (33) 152,689 259,585 59%
Settlements 55,920 401,997 941,392 43%
Integrated Systems Support 2,814 100,519 272,850 37%
Participant Pass Through Costs 190,305 1,081,580 1,619,170 67%
Support Services 13,672 686,782 - N/A
1,722,528 12,705,803 18,563,008 68%
TOTAL ANNUAL BUDGET COST 84,315,508 751,832,462 707,648,794 106%
LESS: THIRD PARTY REVENUE
Plant ISO Energy Sales 14,658,746 138,093,592 100,456,289 137% (k)
Member Resource ISO Energy Sales 1,825,758 30,959,060 28,186,777 110% ()
NCPA Contracts ISO Energy Sales 1,913,057 22,640,627 14,720,326 164% ()
Western Resource Energy Sales 4,068,676 17,130,387 23,182,775 74%
Load Aggregation Energy Sales 32,487,201 211,071,554 131,328,609 161% (m)
Ancillary Services Sales 448,179 4,039,302 4,409,129 92% (n)
Transmission Sales 18,396 82,782 110,376 75%
Western Credits, Interest and Other Income 2,181,552 17,336,376 37,414,086 46%
57,601,565 441,353,680 339,808,367 130%
NET ANNUAL BUDGET COST TO PARTICIPANTS 26,713,943 $§ 310,478,782 $ 367,840,427 84%

(a) Increase in costs due to greater than projected MWhs of generation. CT2 is at 334% of budgeted MWhs at 3/31/19. Fuel costs and CA ISO
charges have increased as a result of increased generation.

(b) Increase in fuel costs due to higher price per mmBtu compared to budgeted price per mmBtu and greater than projected MWhs of
of generation. LEC is at 112% of budgeted MWhs at 3/31/19.

(c) Increase due to greater than projected MWhs of generation at CT2 and LEC. See notes (a) and (b).

(d) Variance due to unbudgeted market purchases and NCPA contracts. Unbudgeted deals made after the FY 19 budget including certain
NextEra and Shell deals.

(e) Increase due to higher than budgeted market prices and unbudgeted costs related to East Bay Community Energy and San Jose
Community Energy.

(f) Purchases made several months in advance. Increase primarily due to greater than anticipated GHG allowances purchased at auction for
City of Lodi, Healdsburg, and BART.

(9) Increase due to greater than projected MWhs of generation. See notes (a) and (b).
(h) Increase due to greater than projected MWhs of generation. See notes (a) and (b).

(i) The budget to actual variance is caused by unbudgeted CAISO costs including imbalance costs, neutrality allocations, congestion
offsets, and other cost allocations. These costs are not budgeted due to their unpredictable nature.

(i) Variance due to higher than anticipated legal costs related to privileged and confidential legal proceedings.

(k) Increase due to higher market prices caused by California wildfires and higher natural gas prices. Increase also due to greater than projected
MWhs of generation. See notes (a) and (b).

(1) Variance due to higher than anticipated ISO energy sales and higher market prices.

(m) The load aggregation energy sales variance is due to unbudgeted sales related to East Bay Community Energy and San Jose Clean Energy.

(n) Increase due to greater than projected MWhs of generation. See notes (a) and (b) and corresponding increase in ancillary services costs.



COMBINED STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

UNAUDITED

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Investments

Accounts receivable

Other

Interest receivable

Inventory and supplies

Prepaid expenses

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

RESTRICTED ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Interest receivable
TOTAL RESTRICTED ASSETS

ELECTRIC PLANT
Electric plant in service
Less: accumulated depreciation

Construction work-in-progress
TOTAL ELECTRIC PLANT

OTHER ASSETS
Regulatory assets
Unused vendor credits
Preliminary survey and investigation costs
Investment in associated company

TOTAL ASSETS

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Excess cost on refunding of debt
Pension deferrals
TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF
RESOURCES

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED
OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

March 31,
2019 2018

(in thousands)
34,641 $ 17,267
42,289 45,990
9,251 4,252
311 272
9,746 9,940
1,340 1,273
97,578 78,994
60,733 41,713
165,115 185,411
693 704
226,541 227,828
1,505,797 1,504,238

(996,385) (965,950)

509,412 538,288
182 199
509,594 538,487
229,559 230,481
- 6
286 -
265 -
1,063,823 1,075,796
34,769 43,133
19,200 13,506
53,969 56,639
1,117,792  § 1,132,435




COMBINED STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

UNAUDITED
March 31,
2019 2018
LIABILITIES (in thousands)
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 22,555 § 26,755
Accounts and retentions payable - restricted for construction 10 -
Member advances 1,239 1,068
Operating reserves 23,942 21,103
Current portion of long-term debt 41,275 41,545
Accrued interest payable 8,908 9,567
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 97,929 100,038
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Net pension and OPEB liability 76,002 64,589
Operating reserves and other deposits 151,452 141,734
Interest rate swap liability 14,326 13,819
Long-term debt, net 662,940 706,766
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 904,720 926,908
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,002,649 1,026,946
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Regulatory credits 68,793 71,730
Pension and OPEB deferrals 3,195 4,460
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 71,988 76,190
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets (61,763) (64,633)
Restricted 60,561 62,603
Unrestricted 44,357 31,329
TOTAL NET POSITION 43,155 29,299

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES AND NET POSITION $ 1,117,792 $ 1,132,435




COMBINED STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

UNAUDITED

OPERATING REVENUES
Participants
Other Third-Party
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES
Purchased power
Operations
Transmission
Depreciation
Maintenance
Administrative and general
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

NET OPERATING REVENUES

NON OPERATING (EXPENSES) REVENUES
Interest expense
Interest income
Other
TOTAL NON OPERATING EXPENSES

FUTURE RECOVERABLE AMOUNTS

REFUNDS TO PARTICIPANTS
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET POSITION
NET POSITION, Beginning of year

NET POSITION, Period ended

Nine Months Ended March 31,

2019 2018
(in thousands)
335415 $ 268,625
213,358 160,986
548,773 429,611
239,429 182,716
83,434 59,181
134,180 100,374
23,160 23,237
16,862 15,053
15,492 14,605
512,557 395,166
36,216 34,445
(31,416) (29,692)
7,125 4,086
6,111 3,369
(18,180) (22,237)
(1,588) (5,764)
(11,361) (11,205)
5,087 (4,761)
38,068 34,060
43,155 § 29,299




T6LLILT S  £86°791 § 8E0LI §  L68%9C = $ LoV'STH § T0LT 6162€ $ 0ZI'19¢ 99568
696'€S 00Z°61 - - - 006'1 - 608 SLY'OE $85°1
00Z'61 00Z°61 - E - - - - - -
69L'VE E - - 0061 ¥ 608 SLY'0E $86°1
£28'€90'1 £8€° eyl 8€0°LT L68°9T - L9S'ETY T0LT 0IL'TE SH9'0EE 188°L8
S9zT $97 - - = - = -

982 - 98T - - - = » -

655°67T T6L19 - - - £68vT - 126 10§'p€l (8¢8)
65°60S 6L9T 79¢ - TISIEE 0g6'L 9€8 %1 §9s'szl o1LTe
z81 - - - 781 - - 2 :
T1Y'608 6L9°T 79¢ - 0EE' €€ 0g6'1 9€8Y1 595571 014°T¢
(58£°966) [ (LLy) e {ogL’L) 915°26) (zzove) 910%¢) (€5£'692) (15E'8£S)
L6L'S0S'L £66°S 6€8 - 9eL'L e X147 785°9¢ 7589 816'76€ 190°1L$
17592 8S0°%L 15¥°8C 7 ereLE = $89F 050°TS v56°67
€69 STE - - [ 3 611 0€L
S11°691 82T°€S - 059°07 - LTL'TE 129 986'8T €06'7T
£€L°09 $05°02 108, = S0S'Yy = 9s SP6'2T 126’y
8LS°L6 685 06€°91 rSs1) 5 61867 TLL 8L6T 67581 $50°9Z
- (8€8°9L) 870°01 (Z16'9) 5 PPTLT (F€9) SEE'T 0St'Ll LZ€'1T
ovE'l LEL 9 - - 06¢ - - = 0T
L'6 - - - = e SOVt w9 6L0°1 605
e [x44 1 L8 - = - E - -

1526 696'€ - 1LT's - - - 5 11
68Ty 68T°TY - - = 7 ] 2 - -
1¥9're $ 60T'E § st $ - - $ vL $ 1 [ § = !

voELEOU 5—51{ mquom EO_mmmEmcﬁﬁn UD ON U] /u._u:m— uQ 'oN Utauu_uouv.am feuLIayl0aLy
._050 honavz v% 13mOodg :OwwmmEm:w‘_.—. _ﬁOA .—.U
_uuummOCmm‘( paseyaing

SEUNOSTY NOISSIASNVEL % ONILVIINTD

6T0T ‘T€ Y2IEIN

UONBUIGUIOY) Ut PATRUIII

SHOYNOSTY 40 SMOTILNO ATIYH43d ANV SLASSY TVLOL

SADUNOSTH 40 SMOTALNO ATIATITA TVLOL
S[eLI3]3p uoIsuag
199p Jo Burpunyal UO IS0 $§0XT
SIANOSTY A0 SMOTALNO ATIIFITA

S14SSV TVLOL

Auedurod paleroOSSE UL JUSWISIAU]
$1500 UONESNISOAUI pUB A3AINS Kreunuyeld
s1asse Atore[nSay

SLISSY dIHLO

INVTd ORLLOTTE TVIOL
ssasfoud-ur-yiom uononusuo)

uoneaidap parejnuInooe s3]
3o1a13s Ut Jueld oL1309[F
INV1d OMLOATd

SLISSY Q4LOMLSTY TVIOL
9[qeAIII91 1S
SIUSUEISIAU]
sjsjeamba yses pue yse)
S1ASSV QALOTILLSTY

SLASSY INIYIND TV.LOL
LsuesSoid 1ayio pue Aouafy woy ang
sasuadxa predasd
sotjddns pue Krojuasug
3[qBAIRAI 1S3101U]
RRo
[GBAIIIIL SIUNOIIY
SIUSWISIAUR
sjua[eAlnba yseo pue yse)
SLASSY INTIND

SLIASSV

(pantwo s,000)
SNOILVIOJUOD YAMOd AALVIDOSSY ANV
AJDNADYV HAMOd VINYOATTVD NUAHLION

NOLLISOd LAN 40 INFNIALVLS ONINIIINOD

NOILVIARIOANI TVIONVNI4 YHHLO



TOLLTLT $ €859t § 8€0°LL § L689C § Lov'ST T0LT 615CE 0TI 19¢ $ 99v'68
SSI'eh 1961 6Ly (618%1) Sip'6l oSt STL $25°91 06671
LSEVY 9b6°'1 0€Z'8 (Z88%1) €851 0S1 £6£'T vE6°91 €00°11
19509 (s) (100°%) €9 9297 - X327 15962 YoLL
(€9L°19) - - - (r6L'12) - (1o1'9) (190°0€) (£08°¢)
886°'1L 6vE9 0l¢ - £L8°6€ ZIIT 506 0907 6LE81
S61°€ S61°¢ - - = = - - -
£6L°89 pS1'e ol - £L8°6€ Tie S06 090y 6LE'81
6v9°700°1 6751 661TL IlL'IY 6L199¢€ obt 688°0€ 9€50VE L6079
0ZL706 590°051 150T1 SLY'ST ELTTEE - 116°ST 60L%1€ 9¢T’ ¥
0b6°299 A = - 9EI'LEE - 116'ST £18°8Z 001°0Z
9zEYt - = - - - - 9zl -
[A3ATY £90°vL 150°C1 SLY'8T LS11 - - 0LSwt 9EI°1T
700°9L T00°9L - - - - = = -
626'L6 8TTY [i2d [ 906'€€ ov 8L6Y LT8°ST 198°%1
8068 - - - SP8'y 0sT 789°¢ 1€1
SLTTY = - - 08y 1l - S61°y 08112 oTv'y
wWe'eT - - 2 885°C1 oly 31 0sT 1816
6£7°1 - el - - - - - 6L

ol = - - - - - ot :
43544 § 8Ty $ - $ el $  €66°E 0¢ 0z SoL $  8ce

pauIquio) .au:uw{ SIVAIRS UOISSIISUeS ], UOISSTWISUBL], pEiliclg] .;m_hu:m— AU ON sanoRy u_.—wuu_mo.—?ﬁm [eudylo3n
it} JoquSy % Jomod po] 1D fende)
PRIBIOOSSY PISBYITY ajdumpy
SHOYNOSTA NOISSTASNV YL %% ONILVHANTO
610Z ‘1€ YaIe

NOILISOd LAN ANV S3D4NOSTY 10
SMOTINI qTIYI4Id SALLITIEVIT TVIOL
NOLLISOd LAN TV1OL
pomIsaIuN
PaIILESIY
s)asse [eniden ul Jusunsaaul N
NOILISOd L3N

SEANOSTE 10 SMOTINI ATFIA43A TVLOL
§[e119J9p GHJO PUe UOIsUa]
supeId Kowenday

STUNOSTE 40 SMOTINI ATHIAIHA
SHILITIEVITTV.IOL

SALLITIEVIT INTEIND-NON TV.IOL
1ou ‘1qap uwrdl-Suoy
Kpiqer| desms o1el 15a193uf
susodap oy1o pue saasesal FuneladQ
Aupiqey 54O pue uoisuad 1N
SAILITEVIT INTENO-NON

STILITEVITINTIIND TV.LOL

ajqeAed 1sa193u1 paTUOdY
1gap wiag-3uof Jo uorod WoLNY
saAssal SuneredQ
SOOUBADE JQUISTA
UONINISUOD 10J PATOLIISL - d[qeAed SUOHUAIRI PUE SIUN0XDY
sasuadxa peruooe pue sjqeded sunoady
SHILITIEVIT LINTEINO

SHLLITIEVIT

(panwo s,000)
SNOLLVIOJI0D ¥AMOd AALVIDOSSY ANV
AONIOV 4AMO0d VINFOAI'TVD NUAHLION

NOILISOd LAN 40 INHIWALVLS DONINIEFWNOO

NOILVIAIOANIT TVIONVNIA ¥IHLO



UONBUIGUIO) Ul PTRUTMIT

SSIey 1461 [ I 447 § (618°F%1) $ - $ sivel $ osl § ST § IS5l $ 0661 $ papus pousd ‘NOILISOd 1IN
890°8€ L€8 L6L'9 960°8 - PrTE (979) 60 LBEL ¥z611 Jeak yo Suuuidoq ‘NOILISOd LAN
L80°S pOLL (895°7) (s16°70) - 1L1°91 9LL org LEV'6 990°¢ NOLLISOd 1IN NI (ISVAYOAQ@ ASVIIONI
(1oe’11) (L9£°T) (z1e's) (081°1) - €0L'1 206 (o91) (zot7) (cv8T) SLNVAIDILEVd OL SONNITH
(885°1) - - . - SO1l - (L6eD) (ov0) (950'D) SINNOWY FTEVIIA0DTE TINLAL
(0g1°g1) 957t 69 8€0°1 E (610°9) [4 598 (5Z8°LI) (34 SANNAATH (SISNAIXT) ONILV IO NON TV.LOL
o SLT - ¥9 - £68°¢ - 8.8 i - EEltle]
STIL 186°C 69 vL6 - 951°1 z zo! $00'T L€8 aWOOUt 1591]
(91t°18) - - = E (890°11) - 1y (0gs'gl) (sov) asuadxa 152393]
SANNIATY (SASNIIXH) ONILYVIIIO NON
917°9¢ 317 SL9T (eLLTD) e 78€°61 (8z1) 8001 Y0E6T €£5°9 STANNIATE ONLLYHIO LN
LSSTTIS 18¢ 8TIVI €16°L9€ - ¥TOSL 1ep’9 sy 9€L'61 YT SASNAIXE ONILY YO TYIOL
= - (o) = - €TT 9L F23 61 (66%) 412U ‘saseyound (soes) Auedwoarajug
'St 24} 8IS - & vT9°e 609 LIt 809°C 786'T [B13UST PUB SAEASIUTUPY
79891 E: 901 - - SL8'T 69%'€ 8¢ SSh°E SLS'9 OURUIIUIEIA
091°'€T LST 6L ¢ s £96°01 vl £59°1 Le'L 66T uoneide(g
081VEl - € L99°T€1 - oLL €61 34 343 [1x4 UOISSISURLY,
vEP'E] 8588 0£5°€ E 8TH'TS 6IL'1 T8l £9¢€°¢ $99°11 suoneradg
6T'6€T - & 9IL L€ - 102 [xa4 L6 $99°C 143 tamod paseyoing
SHSNAIXH ONILVYHIO
€LL'8KS 965 €08°91 op1SHe s 90b %6 €09 0€SS 0v06Y $S6°0€ SANNIATY ONILY¥IdO TYLIOL
8SEEIT = (Lg) 655°0L = 6L0°LL TSl 6L0T 01€0¢ 9L9'1E Areg-piyy o0
Siy'see 965 $ or89l $ 18S'hLT $ - $ L8E°LL § 1SSY § Is¥'e $ 0Ll $ (T $ swedionieg
SANNFATI ONILY YO
pauIquo) Aouay S30IALRS ISST 1L 151 1y 10U ABisuy 3UQ ON SIM[I0R] D11393[20IPAH [PULI3Y3O3D)
o JoquIDI ® 1m0 1po] 10 fende)
pareossy paseyaing s|dnny

SIINOSTI NOISSIASNVEL ¥ DNILVYEANED

6107 ‘L€ YIIBIA POPUY SYIUOTA] JUIN Y3 104
(pagnwo s,000)
SNOLLVHOJY0D YIMOd AALVIDOSSV ANV
AINAOY HAMOd VINIOAI'TVD NYAHLIAON

NOLLISOd LAN NI SZONVHD ANV SASNAIXT ‘SAANIATYT 10 INTWILVLS ONINIFNOD

NOILVIAMOANI TVIONVNIA ¥FHLO



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY & ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS
AGED ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
March 31, 2019

Status Participant / Customer Description Amount

CURRENT $ 9,250,712

PAST DUE:

1-30

31-60

61-90

91-120

Over 120 Days

PARTICIPANT and OTHER RECEIVABLES (net) $ 9,250,712

AR FY 2019Mar Rpt 2019



7 A PuBLIC ABENCY

/ NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

PA

Commission Staff Report

April 18, 2019

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:  April 25, 2019

SUBJECT:

Treasurer's Report for Month Ended March 31, 2019

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

FROM:

Division:

Department:

Sondra Ainsworth~= ~ L,Q\_METHOD OF SELECTION:

Treasurer-Controller N/A
Administrative Services

Accounting & Finance

Alameda Municipal Power

IMPACTED MEMBERS:

All Members

X

If other, please specify

City of Lodi [J City of Shasta Lake

City of Ukiah

Port of Oakland

Truckee Donner PUD

O City of Lompoc [J
San Francisco Bay Area . .
Rapid Transit O City of Palo Alto [ Plumas-Sierra REC
City of Biggs [ City of Redding [
City of Gridley [J City of Roseville []
City of Healdsburg [ City of Santa Clara [

Other

o o o o o oo

SR: 141:19

\\



Treasurer's Report for Month Ended March 31, 2019
April 18, 2019
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:
Approval by all members.
BACKGROUND:

In compliance with Agency policy and State of California Government Code Sections 53601 and
53646(b), the following monthly report is submitted for your information and acceptance.

Cash — At month end cash totaled $20,867,825 of which approximately $6,135,154 was
applicable to Special and Reserve Fund Deposits, $10,470,526 to Debt Service and $4,262,145
to Operations and other.

The cash balance held at U.S. Bank includes outstanding checks that have not yet cleared. This
cash balance is invested nightly in a fully collateralized (U.S. Government Securities) repurchase
agreement.

Investments — The carrying value of NCPA's investment portfolio totaled $281,900,218 at month
end. The current market value of the portfolio totaled $281,661,337.

The overall portfolio had a combined weighted average interest rate of 2.194% with a bond
equivalent yield (yield to maturity) of 2.225%. Investments with a maturity greater than one year
totaled $165,561,000. March maturities totaled $65 million and monthly receipts totaled

$40 million. During the month $51 million was invested.

Funds not required to meet annual cash flow are reinvested and separately reported as they
occur.

Interest Rates — During the month, rates on 90-day T-Bills decreased 1 basis point (from 2.45% to
2.44%) and rates on one year T-Bills decreased 14 basis points (from 2.55% to 2.41%).

To the best of my knowledge and belief, all securities held by NCPA as of March 31, 2019 are in
compliance with the Agency’s investment policy. There are adequate cash flow and investment
maturities to meet next month’s cash requirements.

FISCAL IMPACT:
This report has no direct budget impact to the Agency.
ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:
This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the physical
environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

espectfully submitted,

M\ﬁ [~

RANDY S! HOWARD
General Manager

Attachment

SR: 141:19



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

TREASURER'S REPORT

MARCH 31, 2019

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PAGE
CASH & INVESTMENT BALANCE 1
CASH ACTIVITY SUMMARY 2
INVESTMENT ACTIVITY SUMMARY 3
INTEREST RATE/YIELD ANALYSIS 4
INVESTMENT MATURITIES ANALYSIS S

DETAIL REPORT OF INVESTMENTS APPENDIX



Northern California Power Agency

Treasurer's Report
Cash & Investment Balance

March 31, 2019
CASH INVESTMENTS TOTAL PERCENT
NCPA FUNDS
Operating $ 1,678,206 $ 102,841,044 $ 104,519,250 34.52%
Special Deposits 900,278 - 900,278 0.31%
Construction 1,683,661 3,357,576 5,041,237 1.67%
Debt Service 10,470,526 31,162,609 41,633,135 13.75%
Special & Reserve 6,135,154 144,538,989 150,674,143 49.77%
$ 20,867,825 $ 281,900,218 $ 302,768,043 100.00%
Portfolio Investments at Market Value $ 281,661,337

NOTE A -Investment amounts shown at book carrying value.




Northern California Power Agency
Treasurer's Report

Cash Activity Summary
March 31, 2019

RECEIPTS EXPENDITURES CASH
INTEREST INVESTMENTS INVESTMENTS INTER-COMPANY/ INCREASE /
OPS/CONSTR __ (NOTE B) (NOTEA)  OPS/CONSTR  (NOTEB)  FUND TRANSFERS (DECREASE)

NCPA FUNDS

Operating $ 32,601,779 $ 206,337 $ 36,104,375 $ (22,858,496) $ (34,698,596) $ (11,313,146) $ 42,253
Special Deposits 7,282,732 10 . (17,194,598) - 9,967,791 55,935
Construction - - 1,683,000 - - - 1,683,000
Debt Service - 794 8,805,731 - (8,146,234) 5,865,864 6,526,155
Special & Reserve - 134,056 17,999,946 - (7,762,350) (4,520,509) 5,851,143

$ 39,884,511 $ 341,197 $ 64,593,052 $ (40,053,094) $§ (50,607,180) $ : $ 14,158,486

NOTE A -Investment amounts shown at book carrying value.

NOTE B -Net of accrued interest purchased on investments.



Northern California Power Agency
Treasurer's Report
Investment Activity Summary

March 31,2019
(NON-CASH) (NON-CASH) INVESTMENTS
SOLD OR DISC/(PREM) GAIN/(LOSS) INCREASE /
PURCHASED MATURED AMORT ON SALE TRANSFERS (DECREASE)
NCPA FUNDS
Operating $ 34,698,596 $ (36,104,375) $ 13,292 $ 1,589 §$ - $ (1,390,898)
Special Deposits - - - - - -
Construction - (1,683,000) 4,701 - - (1,678,299)
Debt Service 8,146,234 (8,805,731) 64,997 (915) - (595,415)
Special & Reserve 7,762,350 (17,999,946) (2,328) (57,570) - (10,297,494)
$ 50,607,180 $ (64,593,052) § 80,662 $ (56,896) $ - $ {13,962,106)
Less Non- Cash Activity
Disc/(Prem) Amortization & Gain/(Loss) on Sale (23,766)
Net Change in Investment --Before Non-Cash Activity $ (13,985,872)

NOTE A -Investment amounts shown at book carrying value.



Northern California Power Agency
Interest Rate/Yield Analysis

March 31, 2019
WEIGHTED
AVERAGE BOND
INTEREST EQUIVALENT
RATE YIELD
OVERALL COMBINED 2.194% 2.225%
OPERATING FUNDS: 2.090% 2.199%
PROJECTS:
Geothermal 2.121% 2.204%
Capital Facilities 2.373% 2.401%
Hydroelectric 2.471% 2.565%
Lodi Energy Center 2.198% 2.004%
| -
INTEREST RATES
Y —
2.75 e — =
KEY INTEREST RATES R =t = w——uo=x
PRIOR 17s o - -
CURRENT YEAR 1;38 L e Ty
0.75 —
Fed Fds (Overnight) 2.41% 1.68% 83% -
T-Bills (90da.) 2.44% 1.76% O T v Do dmm | Fen
Agency Disc (90da.) 2.42% 1.69%
T-Bills (1yr.) 2.41% 2.09%
Agency Disc (1yr.) 2.31% 2.12% - =
T-Notes (3yr.) 2.18% 2.41% T TRl (S0 days) A FEDFUNDS
‘ et T-Bills (1 yr) ) i T-Notes (3 yr_)




Northern California Power Agency

Total Portfolio
Investment Maturities Analysis
March 31, 2019
0-7 8-90 91-180 181-270 271-365 1-5 6-10
Type Days Days Days Days Days Years Years Total Percent

US Government Agencies $ - $ 24,637 $11,761 $ 4,515 $ 2,464 $ 106,505 $ 2,000 $ 151,882 53.42%
Corporate Bonds (MTN) - - - - - 55,410 - 55,410 19.49%
US Bank Trust Money Market 216 - - - - - - 216 0.08%
Commercial Paper 1,838 - - - - - - 1,838 0.66%
Investment Trusts (LAIF) 48,695 - - - - - - 48,695 17.13%
Investment Trusts (CAMP) 5,057 - - - - - - 5,057 1.79%
U.S.Treasury Market Acct. * 16,990 - - - - - - 16,990 5.98%
U.S.Treasury Bill/Note - 376 2,133 48 - 146 - 2,703 0.95%
Certificates of Deposit - 10 - - - 1,500 - 1,510 0.53%
Total Dollars $ 72,796 $25,023 $13,894 $4,563 $2,464 $163,561 $2,000 $ 284,301 100.00%
Total Percents 25.60% 8.80% 4.89% 1.60% 0.87% 57.53% 0.70% 100.00%

Investments are shown at Face Value, in thousands.

* The cash balance held at US Bank includes outstanding checks that have not yet cleared. This cash balance is invested nightly in a fully
collateralized (U.S. Government Securities) repurchase agreement. Cash held by Union Bank of California is invested nightly in fully

collateralized U.S. Treasury Securities.



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Detail Report Of Investments

APPENDIX

Note: This appendix has been prepared to comply with

Government Code section 53646.



wd ggie 6L0Z/E0IV0

880'68Y 1499¢ IMEZLELLS  G89'86Y 80EC Lo’y €20Z/L0/%0 ozlL'esy 810Z/12/60 0082 000°005 do0an JIAIBS [9dJed PaRUN
¥z o8y ooese IMEZLELLE 589861 8vZ'e Lov'L €202/L0/v0 SzT'esy 8L0Z/5L/G0 00s¢ 000'00S 20dn OB [Bdled pajun
zL8'e6h 7589C 84806780 5686205 980°¢ vyl £T0e/SLIE0 0826y 8L0Z/LT/E0 ¢ 7 A 000°005 o04an | Aemerjer aiysyeg
266167 £1992 yOLIZZYYT G86°LOS y9ze SEV'L €202/90/€0 5/8'68% 8102/2L/30 008z 000'00S o04an 0 [eyde au8aQ uyor
165'286 8¥99C EYYOLETOE 0€8'900°1 890°¢ oer'L £T0T/L0/E0 0S¥'686 810Z/€0/80 kLT 000'000'L ooan jelodio [Iqol toxx3
$Z5'08Y 95592 GHEX68E89 05666V 14183 giv'L £20e/51L120 oL0'8gY 8L0z/e/e0 §29C 000005 o08n ‘dioQ apeIO
L5v°28Y £0992 GNOL088Z8  G¥8'66Y vov'e 0¥ £€202/10/20 §85'veY 8102/51/1S0 0SLT 000005 o04an dnosg Apadoig uouwns
615'8/6 §¥99¢ $1319€768  OV8'100°L Sig'e 18€'L €202/1L/10 09.'v.6 8102/€0/80 00L7C 000'000°L o04an Hpa1) Jolol elofo L
£1£°66€ 1¥99C 90v09Z826  00L'vOy gel'e €5€'L ceoeviiey T55'v6e 8102/€0/80 008’ 000°00¥ 204n Ul BsIA
0/8'88v G659C 9gvp9/98L G9E'96Y 800€ PrEL ceaesorety 09.'58% 8L0Z/12/€0 SS€°C 000'00S o04an "dio uoIsyd
9z9'06Y 71992 LYOMG99Z0 5.8'86% 161 szl ceozeLivy 055'88y 2L02/21/190 009°C 000005 204n UeUl{ BpUCH UedusWY
pyvser Z199T YNEEZ0.80 S¥6'06Y vi0e 80€°} 20z/0e/0L 081 'zZ8y 28102/21/190 002'C 000'00S 208n "0 Buleog
ovETeLL eraeira LDOEEBLE0 ¥ZO'OLL'L 6282 9Ll TT0z/LLs0 996'4TLL 8102/10/20 00eC LEE'ETLL 204dn ‘2] aiddy
252067 1668C zrasvyell 0LL'6v 282 PrAn [ddvardvisi] 500'/8% 8102/L.2/e0 0s¢'c 000005 s04an “auf oDIsdad
z88'767 L09%C 83VA9EZL8 06EV0S Gle'e 960'L 22021.0/v0 GBE'EOY 8L0Z/SLIS0 056'C 000'00S d04an spejusWyY g1
908'6/6 L2992 ¥300918/y 0£C'G66 286C 1901 2z0erea/en avi'eL6 8102/02/60 0s¢C 000'000°+ oo8an uosuyor g uosuyor
916'6/6 £499¢ ZAQ8LLZY. 005866 080e Zyo'l 2202/90/20 0L1'6.6 8102/02/60 00ee 000000 208N BlqWes) @ Je0ld
000'z0C £0voc TBAVOYPELE BELLOZ 00ze LE0'L 22029210 000'202 L102KE/L0 00z'T 000202 008n i UBOT SWIOH j2I8pad
2.5'666 §/99¢ 8VEABLS88 029'LIO'L 8L0'¢ 168 L20ZivLI60 08Y'666 8102/12/60 000¢ 000000} o0an Auedwod we
905986 69952 SOGMEI9Z0  0V9'eLE 67L¢ 268 1202/60/60 022'656 8102/02/60 00L'd 000°000°L 204an ueul4 BpUOH UedusWyY
000005 G8E9C PHAYOVELE GTB'LEV'E 00s'L G/8 1202/€2/80 000'00S' 9L02/€e/L L 006} 000'005'€ 204N N UesT] SWoH [elspad
208'209'C G9¥aC GUSHIELELE 86G'SOST oot Liv8 1202/92/.0 ¥81°119'C 2102182180 0zL'y 000'709'C 208an Hp8JD wied [eiapad
000'000°% 8299¢ gyOSOVELE 0E0'LO0'L 066'¢ 818 1202182190 000°000°1 810¢/8¢/90 005 000°'000°L o0an N UROT BUWIOH Biapad
£09°06¥ 2199¢ 89xXaisolll S9L'veR 848°C 6. 1 202/€0/90 oel'L8p 810Z1Z1/90 096°1L 000°00S 208N ou| I9Zlid
TrL'6Le 098¢ OMVYOYL8SY 0€8'Z86 6l6'¢ 844 L202/BLS0 096'896 8102/0¢/60 0041 000°000°L 2048n dio3 iy
Ly6'LeYy 8G59¢ SIEH9L0LEY  0BE'YEY ore'e LeL L202/L01v0 008’28y 8102/12/e0 000°C Q00’005 a08an “ouj Jodeq awoH
1£6'686 19992 €ag¥s/zLL 08666 896°¢ 669 1202182120 020'286 8102/0¢/60 [sleTar4 000°'000°L 204an "0U} sWwayshg 00s1D
YrveL'T GGE9C 08d8VOELE YVS'IELT Lyl 889 1202810 809'€8.'C 9102/811L0 oov'L 000'684'C 204an eg UeoT eloH [eiopad
886'€6Y 97992 TZ132evve  0E8'L6V 180 89 1202/80/10 G61'Z8Y 8102/L¢/60 0se'C 000005 204N 0 fended 8J8eQ uyor
SZy'y86 1992 Lv3TrLIe 09E'L66 1244 veo ozoeisiict 085646 810¢/0¢/60 006°L 000°000°L 208N “ou] “HBWIBM
$68'L86 99v92 SMLBVOELE O0ET'6L8'Y 06Y°L ey 0202/L11L0 €L£'066'% £102/82/80 009} 000'6/6'Y 208n eg UeoT sWwioH jeapad
01£'666 89992 GYE0SSE9E  OLE'E00'L LE6'C 90 Q202/LL/S0 086'866 8102/02/60 G/87T 000°000°'k o08n SOLUEUAQ [esoueD)
£06°'L00'7 L€292 LOQV3.LELE 09G'G66'E oSyl 69 8102/0¢/50 09}'9v0'y G102/60/90 054} 000'000'7 20an 1N UeoT slloH [eiepad
000'04 SLe0e 9LE0ESAS 0000k 0500 g 6102/L01v0 00004 610T/20/10 0500 000'0L asn jued sn
1L2'e18'L 95004 9500/SAS 1/7°¢18') 0980 i Lzere'L 2LL02/yeI80 as8’c L/2'e18'L asn Jueg SN
90Z'829°} 08004 0S00LSAS 902'8/9't 1000 i 00Z'8.9't €102/0£/90 1000 902'829'L asn jueg sn
£01'262°¢ V1004 ¥L00LSAS 201'28Z°€ 2000 b 101252 €102/10/1L0 2000 £01'T5Te o0an 04ife: J0 Sueg uolun
8zv'y 04004 0L00LSAS 82¥'Y ovee 3 Ky'y 81L02/8L/01 orae a4 dND whW Jessy elwiojiied
¥68'6eV'LT 00004 0000LSAS ¥68'6EV'LT 86€°C 3 y68'6EV'L2 €102/ 0/L0 66€°C ¥68'6EV'LT 4V unsanu) AousBy [eoo
000's2 L0L0L LOLOLSAS 000'ST 088l L 000's2Z vioe/ae/LL 0s8'L 000'6Z asn VN ueg sn
anfep Buikued #jusunsaaug diSND  anjeA jaxie PIRIA Qunjew L2l d0Ud 3jeq ey anjep paeIs UBpoISND [ 93)STUL Jonss|
>_””M 03 sheq Ryanyew paseyoing ASEYDIN isa4a3u)
* Bunelsdo
6102/LE/E0

| obed

uoday sainseal]

Aouaby jamod eluiojes WsYyUoN

VdIN




wd ggie

6102/£0/70

000005 66492 BOESOVELE SE'POST 5.8 v62'L vZ0ZI8TIZ0 0000052 6L02/82/20  §/8T 0000052 208N 1N UBOT BUIOH [BI9pa
0000002 98492 [¥M4VOELE 00L'9L0'T ooL'e zeL't £20Z/82/Z1  000'000°Z 8loz/ee/cl  00L'e 000'000'C 208N eg UeoT 3WOH [ereped
Z0L'105°C 5992 9ZNSOYELE $TG'9LG'T 6£0°€ Lol £207/87/80 062’1052 8102/82/80  0SO'E 0000052 204an 1N UBOT SWOH [2iapad
180'26¥ 9290z eHALBOIL. GZZ'60G ogle 9e5'L £20Z/GL/90 06596V 8L02/22/90  000°€ 000°005 o0dn U] 8z
16€'€09'2 £599Z SAWSOVELE 098'G19'Z i9v°¢ 9e5'L £20Z/SL/90  006'€09'7 8L0Z/LLIB0  0SLT 000'009'2 oodn JA LU0 BWOH {BIepe S
588'agY 1£992 900.08828 OvL'66Y 8Ev'e 225°L £20Z/L0/90  STLYBY 810220 OSLT 000°00S 208N dnosg Apedoid uouis
188'c8k 16692 1OV90LYS9  GOG'GeY 80L'¢ L67'L £20Z/10/50  0SE'08% §L0Z/60/50 0622 000008 208n ouj N
05Z'28Y 12992 INGZLELLE  §89'8BY 16L'¢ Loyt €Z0ZLOKO  08L'¥8Y 8102/22/90 008 000005 208N g feoted paiun
£L0'28Y 96592 9480/9780 G86'C0S 58l laca’ £20Z/SHED  08Z'08Y 8L07/60/50  06LT 000005 208N | AemelpeH aaysyieg
£E0'VEY 66592 CUYOLEZOE §LY'E0S §50°€ oer'l €207/L0/€0  029°T6Y 8LOZ/BOISD  9TLT 000005 oo8an Jes0diod) JKGO uoxx3
869'68Y 7299T LI8YGLZLL  OFL'E0S 0/L¢ 8zy't £Z07/8T/Z0  §59'28% 8L0ZRZZ/I90  009T 000008 208N “ou] sweshs 00810
616'885 86592 /4/dECTER  EI8'8YS £0T'E ose't €Z0Z/OML0  PBZ'9ES 8L0Z/60/S0  S29C 000055 o08n UpaIQ J0J0 BI0AO L
289'cel §2992 ZNYOPLBSY  G96'20% 0L0°¢ ySE'L 7T0T/SLTL  00E'ZBY 8L0C/ZZI0  00LT 000005 208N diod el
e aa 28992 90V0O9z8Te £9575C 960°¢ £ge'} 2T0TPLTL  SLB'OVT 8102/2/L0  00B'Z 000'05Z 208N “ou| BSIA
6ce’/8p £1992 Savaoery. SEL'v6Y Lole £9Z'} ZTOTISLBD  GOL'EsY 810200 0.E2 000'005 2040 abei0}s oljand
259'66Y 24592 9989/0/eF 0SL'€0S 8162 6171 TTOTILOIO0 0BT ¥eY 8L0ZWOPD 6292 000'00§ 208N ‘ouj JodaQ swoH
169'L6Y 14592 83VAQEZL8 D0BE YOS ooL'e 960°} ZZOTIOIY0  00Z'/6% 8LOZEOKD  0S6C 000005 208N spesuslly OL
168'687 0£992 9DAd89rST  G85'86Y ogle 8901 Z20T/b0/E0  0TS'L8Y 8L0ZW2IL0  0SPT 000°'005 208N /Aueduiod Asusig IlepM
112'v6Y $1592 LvE8LEYES S/L00S 8622 80l 220Z/2L20  S6Z'T6Y 810Z/40P0  SLET 000005 208N *dioD Yosoul
985°06¥ 04592 58v490v90 0Z5'ser 000°€ £9/ LZ0Z/E0/50  SOL'O8Y 8L0Z/OK0  0S0°T 000'00S 208N 00 UOJIB AN 40 dueg
000°000°L 6292 y€4SOPELE  006'000'L 000 129 0zOZ/BLZL  000°000'L 8L0Z/BLZL  000E 000'000°} 008n 1 UBO] SWOH feJapa4
629'1€4°1 ve/9g ZINMODSELE  ¥LD'LEL'L 29T 86 0ZOZ/OE/OL  69E'8TL'L 810Z/02/Z)  0E9't 000054} 208n By feuoneN feieped
9€0'062 11i9T GSNOZEELE G9B'YSL 0/8C 625 0Z0Z/LL/B0  SYO'0SL SL0Z/LeILL S8 00005 208N B UB0T BUWOH [e18pad
YyT L6y £€207 YYQOHVBEELE  08T'/6F 518 %] 6L0Z/L2/90  €LL'E8Y 8L0Z/0Z1ZL  0S¥T 000005 008N g U0 dWoH |eseps
S¥L'viL'9 £200L €Z00LSAS SPL'VIL'S 2000 L SYLYLIL'D £L0Z/L0/Z0  T000 SyLvIL'e 208n ojled o yueg uoluf
99L'8LL 7200/ TZ00LSAS 99L'8.L 66£Z ! 991'82L SL0Z/L0/0  668T 991822 Elal wiysenu) AousBy [es0
Junoo2y Bujouejeg vdos

9gg'sse  $ 98e'sst  $ 66€°T 1 98c’sse  § 66€°C 98c'sst  § abelaAy pue jejo) pung
98€'55¢ $¥00. SPOOZSAS 98£'sSE 66£2 L 98£'S5E €L0T/LOIL0  66ET 98€'95€E usaul fousby oo
100y uonodNny OHO ddil

06Z'L8r'9L  § 120'265'9L  $ 21T 96¥ 660'69'9L 10T cyTolg’eL abeiany pue jejol pung
SLL'YLS 09492 8LMHGZI9Y 08Y'0TS 196°€ 190} v20Z/L0/Z0  085'¥LS BLOZIGLZ0  §/8°€ 000'008 008N ueBiop dr
000'006"} 71192 6€3Ir3ICELE  069'005'L 6£8° 1991 £20Z/¥0/0L  000'00S°L 8LOZ/LZILL  OvE'S 000°005°} 208N Hpai) e [esepad
020'€56 21992 QUESLEYES 069°0L6 zile 065'L £202/80/80  0GE'Lv6 8102/02/60  000T 000°000°} o08n ‘die) Yosol
000000t 9799z LANHLEE06 08Y'¥20'L 668 -3 €202/72/L0  000'000'L 8102/20/80 00V 000°000'} 008n Aueg sn
916205 51992 17v998/27 Q00'8LS €T S0%'L £T0T/SLS0  GTL'E0S 8102/2L/90  SLEE 000'00S 208n fuedwoy AsusieH
190105 20992 ZOVHI0YOD 0ZLZLS Srr'e 887'L £202/87/v0_ S9T'L0S 810T/GL/S0  00S'E 000'00S 208N 00 UGB AN J0 dueg
anjep Suthired #JussaAL] dISND  @niep e PIIA Kunjen a3eq 90ud B BEY anjeA pAIRIS URIPOJSND J 93ySTL sonss)

Anb3g 03 sheg Kunen paseyaingd aseyaund 1sasa3u)
puog
Bunelado
6102/1€/€0
DR

Z afieyd

uoday s ainseal)

Aouoby Jamod eiulojijen uIsyuoN

VdON 7



wd geig 61L0Z/£0/V0
86L'ceL'EL § z96'z6Z'cL £ZLT 189 gLe'LsL'sL  § 2012 s65'89L°sL  § abesaay pue jejol pung
000002t ¥5L92 ZOONSEYOr  660'669'L £05°€ 98L'} vZ0Z/0Z/IZ0  000'002'L 6L02/02/C0  000°€ 000'002'% o0en ONI VSN 08SH
G99'PLS 16192 8LIHSTOOr 087'0CS Geg'e 192°) pZOZLOZ0  OTL'GLS 6402/20/20 28°€ 00000 008N ueBiop df
y92'208 96,92 /SVHSTELL  SBBGLS 6Le'e 86/} v2oz/ETL0 08 L0S 6107/0Z0  099'€ 000'00% 208N YN IUEGRO
000'000°L SL292 6€3rICELE  09Y'POD'L eee’e 19t £Z0Z/Y0/0L  000°000°L gloz/lzIbL  oveE 000°000°+ 208n WPp2IO Wik feispsd
120°00 8€292 BN3LB0/LL SOS'HLS 806°C 879t £Z0Z/SL/60  0SZ'90S 6L0Z/0E/L0  QOZ'E 000°009 208N U} 19Zld
S85°0LS 85/92 SMIZrLLIES SIBTLS y98'T PN £20Z/9Z/90  096'0LS 610Z/2020  00V'E 000009 208N “oul “Hewlem
¥82°00$ 55192 EHYP9L00L 09GHLS 1v8T [s12-4% £TOTVZIO0  $TO'L0S BLOZILOZO  IBLE 000°00§ 208N *d100 UoIABLD
LIe'8LY Ly.92 LDBETOL60 S5508F 616'C 985t £Z0Z/SLI90  00S'LLY BLOZIOE/LO  S/8'L 000°005 208n ‘00 Buieog
y61'68L o292 oM8roL99L  £YO'LSL 666 90g°L £202/9L/50  0GL'8EL 6L0Z/0E/L0 9952 000°052 208N "d100) UCIABUD
8Le'o8y £8592 IMEZIELLE  G89'86Y svee Loyl $TOZ/LO/PO  GEL'ESY 8L0Z/92/Y0 008 00000 204n 2IAIRG |301Ed PANUN
0£0°L6Y 91692 8M80/9Y80 $860S £vZ'e vl £Z02Z/GL/E0  0Z6'88Y 8L0Z/92IV0  0SLT 000'00§ 208N | KemeuieH alusiiog
665'06¥ 18692 049d500vL  GLE°00S geze zey'L £20Z/L2Z0  0SE'88Y 8L0Z/92IP0  00L2 000005 208N u| Jiexeld
108's8Y 6/59T SUEX68E89 056661 S6L'E 9iy'l £20T/SLZ0 0SE'/8Y 8L0Z/9TIV0  ST9T 000°00§ 208n "diod sfoel0
98€'e6Y 51592 £3VH90Y90  S£9°T0G STe'e 66¢'L €20Z/62/L0  0BL'L6Y 8102/92/0 096 000'005 208n 00 UOIIP AN 10 ueg
SyeTyL 18192 SINHIEEDS €9L1SL orLe €68} €202/62/L0  006'L¥L 6L0Z/0E/L0 098 000'052 ooan ¥'N bued Sn
980'v8Y 8597 90Y09Z8Z6  STL'S0S srL'e £5€°L TT0TPLITL  009'Z6Y 8L0Z/9Z/¥0 008 000'00$ 008N “oUj BSIA
898'68Y 6€297 YMOJBIYST  SLP'¥EY 1€6°T ore'L ZZ0ZLO/ZL  O0v'B8Y 6L0Z/I0E/L0 0S€T 000'00§ 208N Jhuedwod Aeusiq Jlem
TvZ'005 08597 YXOBPYELL  OOF'60S £80'€ £0Z'} 2Z0Z/LLL0  OLE'00S 8102920 00L'E 000008 208N ‘ouj 0Dlsdag
LpLpL9'e 19v8T BODBLECLE 099'965'E 0oLt gL't 720Z/0L/I90  09S'PEQ'E 1102/82/180  S2LT 000'625°€ ooan g UB0T BUIOH [2Japay
8/8'120' 259 LDOLEBLED OVZ'B66'E 62¢Z gL't ZZ0Z/LLISD  8ES'0TO'Y 810Z/L0/20  00€C 25Y'520'y 208N ou} 3jddy
6L9V6Y 28597 83IVAQET/8 06E'0S seee 9601 T202/L0/70  0S6'Z6Y 810Z/92/v0  0S6C 000°00§ 208N epesLBIY AL
695°€6¢ 8692 LYE8L6v6S  OFL 00y [5x4 8Y0'L 2202/2L/z0  08Y'L6E 8L0Z/9TV0  GLET 000°00F 208N *diod YOS
000°29Y 20v9T ZBAVOPELE  L10'SOY 0022 L€0°L 2202/92/L0  000'L9F £10ZI08/L0 00T 000'29% ooan 1N U0 SWOH [BJ3pa
000'629°01 S£€92 SHADICELE 6OV LBYOL 069°L 6L 1Z02/20/90 00062901 9L0z/20/90 0691 000'629°0L 208N Wpa1) wied [esepad
000'00€°L 89€92 SMEEDYELE  6£0'VZ'L 005°L 88. 120Z/82/50  000'C0E'L 9L0Z/08/80  00S'L 000°00€"L 2080 BI feuchen jelepad
000'Z8L'S z£€9C SINEDYELE  €02'690°G §e9'L g8L 1202/52/50  000'Z8L'S 9L02/52/50 Sk 000'Z94'S 208N Bi [eucnieN jesapa4
950'8LL'6 ySE9T 08d8YOELE  LIEVSS'S LL 899 L202/BLL0 OFL'SLL'E 9L0z/BLILO  00V'L 000'02L'6 o08n eg UED] BUWIOH [eJepad
§87'€8z'y 95€9C LdNOIEELE €8E'LITY £or'L 899 L202/6LIL0  SLL08TY 9L02/02/L0  ObFL 000'g82'y 208N 1pa1) ulied [eiapay
9£0'$00°T ovzoT ZAZOOSELE 009'086'L oep'L 34 6L02/9Z/LL  0vZ'920'T S102/82/80  0SL'L 000'000'2 Q08n By feuogeN [esspad
0 15002 LS00LSAS © 0000 L 0 €L0Z/L0/20 0000 o asn Jueg Sn
¥90'r6 61002 6L00LSAS P90'V6 000 L ¥90'v6 €L0Z/LO/L0  T000 ¥90'76 o08n ojifeD Jo ueg uoiun
$6€'250'S 12002 LL00LSAS §62£750'G 0Y9e L §6£°250'G 8L0Z/vLCL  OV9T S6£'T90'G dND WO 15V BluIoye]
989'85€°GL 20002 0000LSAS 989'85€'GL 66€Z L 989'86£°GL €L0Z/LO/ILO 66T 989°85¢'S1 47 wissay] Aoueby 18207
oalasay BuneiadQ jelsusn
198720922 § 16020822 § 2987 2004 r6'e95 LT § 90LT LezsL'iz $ abeiany pue [ejoL pung
anpep builue)n # JUBLISIAUY diISND  anjeA 1oxiep PISIA Ajuanyepw aeq 22Ud 23eQ ey anfeA pags ueIPoISNY [ JISNL aanssj
Ainbz oysfeq  Aunen paseysind aseyoing FEys
puog
Juno20y buouejeg vdos
61L0Z/1€/€0

¢ offied

Aouaby Jamod eluiojijed uiSyUoN

Hoday sainsead)

SR A0S ENa0E NI BT
/
VdON /
g
7

/



0202/02/Z uo 2|qe(leD 08SH 5/ 9T# UeLIISBAU|
0202/8Z/Z ). Uo 2iqelled g1H4 9£/9¢# UBWlsoAU|
6102/81/9 Builels Auspenb sigelied OWTHL 62/9z# JuoWisaAu|
610Z/1/01 U S|qe|le] 9044 GLZ9g# uawysau}
6102Z/v/0L Lo Bjqele] €044 1.L9Z# JUaWIsany|
0202/51/9 uo 8lgejlel OWIHS £599Z# UBWSIAU|
£202Z/€2/9 U0 [qelied asn 9799z JUBWISAAU|
Auepenb siqe|ed ONWIHS £QPOZH# JusW)SaAU|

Auapenb siqejied OWTH4 20V9CH JusLUIsaU|

Auepenb a|qefed OWTH4 G8EOT# Jussanu|

Apepenb sjqefed VNS 89E9T# JuBLUISBAU|

awnAue siqe|eD a044 9GEOTH UaWSaAUL

awihAue sjqe|ed gTHS GGEOZ# JuBWISaAU)

awiiiue ejqe(feQ aHd YGEOTH JuBWISaAUY

awiniue ajqe|ed 9044 GEE9ZH JusulsanU|

Apepenb ejqe|e] YINS ZECOTH UBWISaAU]

SLOZ/LE/EO  JO SE [ewInof Jaa4)S JlBpA 243 Wwod) s9oud pig 10 SJUDWAJRIS UBIPOISNY [a9)STL o) $ad1d U0 paseq S| anjep Joxel Jusiind

*POUIRW JoBXS UR 35N SI3UI0 Jje ‘poulsw sjewixoidde ue 3sn Ajunjewl 0) SUIUOW 9 UBYS SSI] UIIM SIUWISIAU]
sadA) [je usamyaq uosueduios 10} siseq e aplaoid 0) Jeak Aep gog e U paseq umoys si AJUnjely o) PISIA JuajeAinb3 puog,

Wwe'sLlsil $ 09V Lv0'8LL § 6612 259 spo'eci'sll $ 080T Leb'289°8LL $ ‘STYLIOL GNVND




we gg:0L 610Z/20/v0

GZ8'96Y 12192 GNIL9ET68 GBE'EOS 9.2 572 L20Z/ELP0  00E'96Y 8LOZ/OE/LL  0S6C 000°00S 204n ¥paIQ JojolN ejoko
£6Y'v6p 92.9¢2 LAOMG9920  509'66% Soz'e £89 L202/2L/20  00S'E6h 8L0Z/0E/LL 09T 000°00S o0dan Ueul4 BpUOH UoyawY
Loz'TrL'y 7€00L VEO0LSAS L0Z2rL'Y 2000 L Laz'zrL'y €102/L0/L0 2000 L0Z'2rL'y oo8n oj[eD Jo yueg uoiun
190259 12002 LZ00LSAS 190259 66T L 290'259 £L0ZNLOILO  B6EZ 290°269 ElNal wysanu; fousby [eoo]
9A19s9y Buluoissiwwodsag 099

000°005‘L  $ ose‘los’t  $ 000°¢ 129 0o0‘00s‘L  $ 000 000°005°L  § abeJaAy pue f2jo) pung
000'00S'} 0£29Z YE4SOVELE  0GELOS'L 000'¢ 129 020Z/8L/ZL  000°00§°L 8L0Z/8L/ZL  000°€ 000°005°L 204n N UBO] OWOH esepod
0 G100L GLO0/SAS O 2000 L 0 €L02/LO/L0 2000 0 o08n oJlfeD Jo ueg uoiun
QAI9SaY |eloadg jeulIayjodD)

9ze'sve  $ eoe'sve  $ SEV'T 68 vgo‘sye  $ 8L£2 00025 $ abelaay pue [ejo) pund
G58'98L §+.92 V.dHVBEELE 6Y8'08L LT 13 610Z/L0/20  8v8's8l 610Z/LLILO  OLYT 000'88L 18asn e Ueo] SWOH jeiopad
169'€S 08292 EAMOBLCLE ¥BI'ES 99€T /8 6L0Z/LT/90  €89'€S 6L0Z/8Z/E0 0ZET 000'vS Lasn Ainseaul 's'n
169'7S 6492 EAMOBLZLE B8BI'VS TleT 48 6L02/L2/90  SY9'VS 6L0Z/6LED GZET 000'SS 18asn Ainseail "s'n
£89'7S ¥9292 VIMHIBEELE  819'7S 6EV'T 28 6L0Z/L2/90  80S'VS 810Z/2LC0  G8ET 000'5 1asn WA Uo7 SWOH [elapad]
92IAI9S 1037 V9102 09D

£9L'1e § svlie $ £sY°T 06 61z'LLe $ zove 000'vie  $ o6eIony pue [ejoL puni
£VZ'ETL 82192 V./dHVBEELE  WWT'ETL ror'e 16 6L0Z/L0/LO0  OLT'ETL 6L02/8T/€0  SLPT 000'¥2L l8sn g UBOT] BWOH [eJspad
zsezel 10092 VLdHVYBEELE  L¥T'TTL G5 16 61L0Z/L0/L0  SvL'Tel 6LOT/BLED  SOV'T 000'€ZL 183N g UeoT SWoH eJspad
892'921 £9/92 VIIHIBEELE  LGT'9T) BEV'T /8 8102/L2/90  ¥98'STL BLOZ/TLZO  SBET 000°2ZL 1asn 1N Lo sWoH [elapad
92IAISS }q8Q VT 1L0Z 099

Lepr'es0c  $ ozy'eso’c  § s9V'T 16 veL'syo'c  $ L0¥T 000990 $ abelaAy pue [gjo) puny
§95'€€Z 91192 VLdHVBEELE 29G'SET yov'e 16 6102/L0/L0  20S'€€2 6L02/82/€0  SL¥'Z 000'€Z 1asn eg UeaT auioH [eJepad
595'v€Z 61292 VLdHPBEELE 95G'VET o4 16 6L0Z/LO/L0  Q9E'VET 6LOZ/6LIE0  GOV'T 000°9€Z 1asn eg UB0T aWoH [eJepad
12L'08E"L yv292 V.dHYBEELE €89'05E'L LivT 16 6L0Z/LO/ILO  EVV'EVE'L 6L0T/LLILO  OLPZ 000°6G€'L 1asn eg Ueo SWoH |elapad
0vo'vez 29.9¢ VZIHIBEELE BLO'VET 6EV'T /8 6L0T/LT/90  6B8'EET 61022420 S8ET 000°9€Z 18asn WA UB0 SWOH [esapad
921AI9S 1g9(Q [ewayl}oas)

051°c68 $ 8eL's68 $ 15T te L1¢'s88  $ oor'z 000568  $ abesany pue [ejol pund
05i'c68 €292 ya496e€le  8EL'EB8 Lsv'e e 6102/20/50  L./£'888 BLOZ/LLILO  0OV'T 000'668 asn N Ueo BWoH Jelepad
anjep buiAued # JuaunsaAu| diSND  anjep yoxie PIRIA Anen ajeq 22Ud ajeq aey anjep pajejs uejpojsn / d9jsniy Janss|

Alnb3 03 skeg funyey paseyasnd aseyaind 3sasou]
«puog
pung uondnysuo) 210z 030
6102/1€/€0

| obed

uodoy sJainseal]

Kouaby Jamod eluioyijen uiayuoN

A5 YT hadeadit

VdON




15¢'z0L'62  $

6102/02/9 Buiels Apapenb sjge(ed
61.02/81/9 Buiels Apspenb sjqejied
6102/81/9 Buluels Auspenb siqeied
6L02/v/0L U 8jqe|ed

1202/€/L Buipiels awinkue sjqe|ied
Kpspenb eiqe|ied

Ayspenb sjqe|[eD

Apayenb ajge(ieD

we 00:0k

6L02/20/¥0
GELOTH JuBlUISaAU}
CELOCH JususaAu}
QEL92# JUBUISSAU]
OLLOTH JusWisaAU|
YvO0TH JUBLLISAAUL
YQr9ZH JUaLISaAUL
69£92# JuBlLsaAU|
CEEYTH WalsaAuf

6L0Z/LEICO 4O SE [RUINOr J9243S [|eM 243 WOL) S29Ld pIg Jo SJUBLLIRIeIS UEIPOISNY /29iShi) o) seoud uo paseq S| aNjeA JDUEN JUsnD

"POYJaW 198X UR 3SN SJAYJ0 [{e ‘poyjaw ajewixosdde ue asn Ajunjeur o} SYIHOW 9 UBY) SS3] UM SJUSWISIAU|
*sadA} e usamiaq uosipeduwiod Joj siseq e apiaotd o) Jeak Aep go¢ B U0 paseq umoys si Ajunjepy 0} pISIA Jusjeainb3 puog,

‘91z'gLL'ez $ v0z'z 0L §86'959°6  § Lere siv'eLL'er  $ 'STVLOL ANVYHD

Iv8'szs’t  $ z2'108°  $ zE9°'L 082 viL'8zs’t ¢ Le9'L 000628’  $ abesany pue [ejoL pung
000°215°} £€€9T GINEOgELE 9/8'68Y'L 5Z9'L 682 120Z/52/50  000'218'L 910z/52/S0 529k 000'218'L Lasn BI feuoneN |esepay
Ly8'LL £699C 84496.216 LG8'LL e z6l 6L0ZIOLIOL  PLL'LL 8LOZ/LLOL  $6ET 000°ZL asn funsea1) s
JUNo0JIVY YSA VZL0Z 099

096'85Y'c L5'5hp'c § £6b°L [ voL'vpr'e  $ £6€°L 0o0'zov's  § sbesAy pue [ejo) pund
265°115°T 16192 SWAVILELE VEL'6EP'T 085°L 81 6L0Z/20/0L  6E8'EBY'T §L02/22/20  0STH 0006152 Lasn VN U0 BWOH [E19pad
86.'6¢ 2699¢ YIND96.ZL6  06.'6E ££ET 08 6L02/02/90  6.E'6€ 8L0T/LL0L  €LZT 000'0 asn finsesij "sN
0.5'206 82297 LOQVILELE £66'506 yseL 6 6L0Z/0€/50  988'026 5L02/20/90  0SL'L 000'206 Lasn YN UBOT BWOH [eiepa
190V 9Al9S9Y 99IAISS 1990 0D

ozc'ovs'sl  $ oLv'Lo9'sk  $ 5927 9001 £69'0c5'6L  § 8912 67'109°6L  § abeiaAy pue [ejo) puni
89£'666'L ¥¥992 pLArASELE OPL'SZ0'T ssv'e soe'z S202/S7/20  OO0L'666'L 8L0Z/L2/10  0S¥'S 000°000'2 oo4an WPaIQ uLe [esepes
000°000't z8192 924SOVELE  0621L00°L 005°¢ zeL') €z0Z/8L/2L  000'000'L BLOZ/gLZL  00S°E 000'000'L 208N W UBOT BWIOH [BJ8PR4
000'000'} 91292 6€3r3ICELE  O9Y'POQ'L [ 199'L €20Z/F0/0L  0O0'000°L 8L0z/lZILL  ObEE 000'000'L o08n UpaiQ uue] [elepa4
000052 71€0€e VYESOTIELL  820'YST Loee 0zo'h €20Z/L0/60  000°0ST 8L0OZ/Z0/60 00T 000'052 208n VN YUeqno
000'052 60£0€ ¥€dD18/26C 0L0'€ST £02°€ z19't €20Z/0E/30  000°0SC 8L02/08/80 00T 000'052 208N VSN jueqiaug
66v'L6Y 8v59z GHYHZEBYY S5 'E0S orle Lov'L £20T/90/20  0Z8'96Y 8LOZ/SL/E0  000E 000'005 208N 07171 1pa10 WEI
£29'TVL 6v597 /3V¥90v90  £G6'E5L 622°¢ 66€'L €202/62/L0  0L9'OVL 8LOZ/SL/E0 0SB 000'052 o0dan 00 UOIOIN AN 4O Yueg
876 Ly 0599T 81¥322HYT 012'eSL voL'e 168"t €T0T/LTV0  svl'eEL 8LOT/SL/E0  008T 000°052 oo8an 9 lendeQ eiseq uyor
62E'CEL 15592 YADdBIYST €12 LY. #00°€ ope't Z20Z/LOZL  08S'S8ZL 8L0Z/54/€0  0SE€T 000054 o08an /Auedwo) Aeusiq Jem
000052 £1e0e VBWLEIOYST €62'25T TsLe ¥s2'L 2202/90/60  000'0ST 8102/90/60  0SL'€ 000'05Z 208n ueg Jan0asig
000'052 oLeoe VE4VDEOL6E  866'LST 150°€ vzl 2T0Z/LE/80  000°0ST 8L0Z/LE/80  0SO'E 000052 204n ueg UpoN jealo
000'052 L1€08 VOLE9/6V6 0S6°1L5T (1% e 2202/08/80  000'0SC 810Z/0E/80  0GL'E 000'052 208N sueg obled sliep
ory'098 66v9Z LDOEE8./E0  §09'6S8 6zeT 9eL’L 2202150 LLL'098 1L02/62/LL  00ET 112198 oo8an "ou} ojddy
000°L¥6 yOroz TEAVOYELE  LB6'9EE 00z'C 1€0'L 2202/92/L0  000'LY6 LLOZIOSILG 002 000'L76 oo4an }N B0 BWOH [218pa4
000'000'L GeL92 OYHSOPELE  OPP'LOO‘L osle 66 L20z/0e/el  000°000'L 8L0Z/0Z/zL  OSL'E 000'000' o08n ¥ UBOT SWOH [e1apa4
125'6€L £9597 0ATMESEBY 89Z'SPL £0L°e £86 1202/60/2k  QSP'SEL 8LOZ/SLIE0 0S5 000'05£ oo8an VN jueg ONd
000052 z1e0e vZ0DIDI0020 8/p'TGT z00°e z88 1202/08/80  000'05C 8L0Z/0S/80  000'E 000052 oo0an sueg Ay
000'000'C 69€97 EMEEDIELE  090'096'L 005'L 88/ 1202/82/S0  000'000'Z 9L0Z/0E/80  00S'} 000'000°2 o08an BIN [euoneN [eseped
anjep Bulkuen # JUBWIS3AU| dISND  anjep yjaew PISIA Aunjey 2jeq oud ajeq atey anjep pajels uelpojsny / a3jsni Janssj

AInb3 0} sheg Ayunzeny paseysind aseyaing 1sa493u|
puog
8Alesay Bujuoissiwwosag 099
6L0Z/LEIEO

z obed

poday sJainseal]
Aouaby Jomod eiuiojijen ulsyuoN

CRIY IS TRR T e

VdON



LEE'SLL

Lze'sit

we 00:0L

6102/20/70

19192 VZIHIEEELE [:54r4 18 6L02/2/90  €96'vLL 6L02/ZLIZ0 68T 000'9LL 1asn WA Ue0T BLIOH [esapad
821A198 1020 88102 01pAH

§98°789°2L § 166'285°2  § rov'z 08 291'v85'L  $ 00T 000'629°L $ abeJaAy pue Jejor pung
889220} 28292 VLdHYSEELE 219'L20'L rore 16 6L0Z/L0/L0  0LY'LZ0'} 6L02/82/E0  SLYT 000'v€0°L 1asn g U0 SUOH [eJopa4
802'820'L 18292 V/dHYSEELE 999'820'L 5672 16 6L0Z/L0/0  608',20'L 6L02/6LIE0  SO¥'T 000'5€0°L 1gsn g UB0 BWOH [BJepad
ory'ser'y 17192 V.dHYBEELE 6LE'GEY'Y Lve 16 6L02/LO/L0  €2T'LIP'Y BLOZILLLO  OLPT 000'€25'Y 1asn g UBOT SWOH e1opad
£20°L€0'L 99/92 VZHHOBEELE PEB'OE0'L [:544 /8 6L02//2/90  S2L'/T0'L 6L0Z/2LI20  SBET 000°2£0°L lasn WA U0 BWOH [elapad
921AI9G 1990 V810Z OPAH

zo9'c6l’t  $ wr'sel't  $ vz 8 g98°28L'L  $ s8eT 000708'L  $ abesany pue jejol puny
209'€6L'L 5992 VOIHOBEELE  LPP'EBL'L 6EV'T 8 6L02//2/90  G98'282°L 6L0Z/ZLIZ0  S8E'T 000'708't Lasn WA U0 BWOH feJapad
921M198 1gq2Q 0JpAH

aTr'vv'c § coz'ov'e  § 0252 e seb'ror'c  § orse 000'voy'z  $ 3BeJaAY pue [e}o) pung
raaeiad 19292 SAVMIEELE €0T'L9V'T 6L5C A% 020212120 €6V YP'T 6L0Z/CLIZ0  OYST 0007972 asn pauD uued [esapa4
sa|1oed [eniu] oipAH

piz'eer'ylk  $ Lsy'eesvl  § 902 586 olzeLr'yL $ 225 Lro'ves'vl abesaAy pue jejo) pund
000'000'2 (4754 0¥Y4VOELE OV8'¥00'T ooL'e yoL'L ¥202/62/L0  000'000°C 6102/62/L0  00L'E 0000002 Q08N g Ue0T BUOH [elopad
000'005'L 10292 GYAIVOELE 009'GLS'L 0sz'€ z99'L €20Z/61/0L  000'00S'L 8L0zZ/6L/0L  0ST'E 000°00S'L oo8an g UB0T BWOH [eepsad
SoL'syL'L 67992 6r3avoeLs Ove'osk'L rhle veS'L €20Z/ELI0  ELL'GPLL 8L02/80/80  0S0'E 000°0G4'L o08n g UB0T BWOH [e1epad
69G°L€S 26992 00309L¥6L  52.'8ES G862 Ler'L €20Z/L0/S0 099825 8L02/60/80  00L'Z 000'055 208N 00 anljowfed-ajeblod
LLp'18Y 02992 LMEZLELLE  $B9'86Y z8Le Lor'y £202/L0/0  006'V8Y 8L0Z/EL/90  00S'2 000005 004N dIAlSG [e21Ed PBUUN
668'961 yr59T PAMEEZ0L60 0.2'00S LI6T oer'L €20Z/LO/E0  0L0'96Y 8L0Z/YLIED 008 000'00$ o08n ‘00 Buisog
L1116y G792 GHEXE8EBY  0S6'66Y leve oLyl €20Z/5LIZ0  SLL'esy 8LOZLIED 29T 000°00§ 008N ‘diog sjoeIQ
S00'L6Y 61992 $73195268 026'00S sLTe 18e'L €20C/LLL0  00L'68Y 8LOZ/IEL/O0 Q0L 000'00S 208n upauD Jojol ejoko L
689'G6F 19592 90v09z826 STL'S0S LGO'E €ge'l ze0eiviel  OLY'veY 8LOZ/VLED  008T 000005 o08n “oUj BSIA
080'68% o9v592 SavAoSry. SEL'VEY 150°€ €924 TT0ZIGLIB0  0LL'G8Y 8LOZWLIE0 07T 000'00S 008N 8beso}s oljand
ZLZ LS 16992 JOHHESLLE  008'65S z8Le 8.0t 2202/GLIE0  L09'9YS 8L0Z/0L/80  000'€ 000055 208N rueg Sn
6LY'Z6Y 12992 LIYOLEZOE  066'66Y 6T 0.0} 2C0Z/90/20  0GE'0BY 8LOZ/ELIO0  LBET 000'005 oo8n jesodio |lqop uoxx3
L00'L6Y 81992 SDVNOSELD 0S.'66% (4543 020'L TTOCISULO  OZv'esy 8LOZ/ELIO0 28T 000'00 o08n i) g Bupueg youeig
ovL'1e0°t 1L£00L LED0LSAS O¥1160'L 2000 3 arL'Le0't €102/L0/0 2000 orL'L60°L o08n oflleD 4o ueg uolun
L06'zvL'e 82004 8TO0LSAS LOBZYL'E 66€C L Log'zyL'e €L0Z/L0/L0  BEET L0BZL'E El\al unsenu| koueby [e207
anjep m:_?:uo # JUdUISIAL| disno anjep xiepn PIRIA .ﬂ—_..zaﬂs_ ajeq dld 3jeq ﬂaﬂm anjep pajejs ueipoIsng / adsndl Aanssj

Amnb3z 0} sheq Kuney paseyaing aseyadnd Jsadou|
«puog
0IpAH anlasay "Aa( jenden
6102/L€/€0

| abed

Joday sdainseal}

Aouaby 1omod eruiojijes UloyuoN

T LY Lt P hadeadN

VdON




6102/81/9 Buipels Auspenb s|qelied
0Z02/61/0} Inun 3(q

we 00:0L 6102/Z0/%0
Apspenb sigejedy 87H4 Th.9TH# JuBuSaAU|
OWTHL LE/9C# JuausaAu|
) g1Hd 10/.9zi# Juswijsanuj
6L0Z/E1/9 Uo d|qelied g1Hd 6Y99z# JusWiISaAU|
Auspenb sjqe|ed VINNA BSEQTH JUBWISBAU

6LOZ/LEICO 1O SE [ewinor 30a1)S [|ep 243 Woly saoud pig Jo SjuaLaje)s UBIPO)ShY /aa)SNi] Woly saaud U0 paseq i anjeA Jaxejy Jualng

“poyjaul JoBXa Ue asn SJayjo [je ‘poyjaw ajewnxosdde ue asn AjLnjew 0} SYRUOL 9 UBY) SSI] YIM SJUSWIISIAUL
-sadA} |Je usamjaq uosuedwio 1oy siseq e apiaoid o) Jeak Aep gog e uo paseq UMoys st Ajnjely 03 pJalA Juafealnb3 puog,

osl'sle‘ce  $ sez'0ce'ee $ §95°Z (3£] ovz'oaL'ce $ Lr'T Lwo'zie'ce § 1STYLOL ANVND

885°29Z% $ 0se'aLZ'y  $ oveE'T 166 €95'992'y  $ 188°T 000892y  $ abesany pue jejoy pund
¥05°226°¢ 7585¢ 78av3LELE 026'8E6'E 08€T 8L0°L TTOTIEML0  TET'9T6'E zL07/60/20  S/£T 000'826°S asn JIN UB0T] BWoH [E18pe
0006 65€9T 16SEO9ELE  OLY'Z6 0851 6v8 1202/92/L0  000°76 9102/87/10  0ES'4 000'%6 asn BIN [euoneN [elepad
$66'StL 6€59T OXEETBTLE  LIB'SYL L62T 989 12025120 266'GYL 8L0z/L2/20 09T 000'9P} asn Anseail '§'N
680'00} v¥eoe 62533EELE  60Z°66 089’} 167 0Z0Z/0/80  62E'00L §10Z/82/80  0GL'L 000°00L asn }paI0 wie [esspad
vysa z10z 04pAH

0 $ 0 $ wex rrn P 0 $ R 0 $ abeiany pue [ejo] pund
0 1906. L906.SAS O oraQ L 0 €LOZ/LO/L0  OYO'0 0 asn ueg sn
aouenssj Jo }s09 Z10Z 0IpAH

000'005°L  § 0se'105'L  § 000°¢ 129 000°008°L  $ 000°€ 000'00S'L § abesany pue [ejol puni
000'005"L L£/9Z ve4SOvElLE  0SE°L0S'L 000'¢ 129 020Z/8L/ZL  000'00S'L 8L0Z/gL/ZL  000°S 000'005'L 208N WA UB0T] SWOH [Biepe
0 9100/ 9L00LSAS O 200°0 ! 0 €L02/10/L0 2000 0 208N ojeD 4o YuEg UOWN
0 i £0002 0000LSAS 0 1180 L 0 €L02/L0/20  LLE0 0 41 wsanu| housby (8007
aAIaS9Y Je1oadg oIpAH

91£'069  § 1£1'z89  § 06L'} 198 16169 $ s/8°L 000'688  § abeIaAy pue [ejoL puni
91£'069 ASt7=r4 £VEEOVELE LEL'ZBY o6t 198 120Z/60/80  L6E'L69 110Z/8TW0 G871 000'689 asn JN UBOT SWOH [eJepa4
JUN02VY 93eqdy VZ10Z OIPAH

6eL'Lzo'L  § z0L'220'L  § LTad 16 §55°c20L  § 1072 000've0°L  § abeloAy pue [ejo) pung
86ZWLL 8,92 VLdHVBEELE 96TVLL yor'e 16 6L0Z/L0/L0  L9TYLL 6L02/82/E0 ST 000'SLL 1asn eg UEOT WOH [eiepad
L0e'vLL £8/92 V.dHYSEELE 96Z'FLL SSP'T 16 6L0Z/L0/LO0  LOTHLL 6L0Z/BLIE0  GOV'T 000'SLL 1asn g UBOT SWOH [esopad
608'€89 8v./92 VIdHPBEELE  68.'€89 LT 16 610Z/10/20  v2)'089 6LOZ/LLILO  OLPT 000'889 18sn eg UB07 BWOH [BI9PaS
anjep Bujhuen #uaunsanu] dISND  anjep youen PIRIA Runyep ajeq 92ud oreq oy anjeA pajels uelpojsn / dajsniL Jnss|

Ainbg 03 sheq Ayunjey paseyoingd yoind 1sadaju]
«puog
291A19S 1990 9810Z 04pAH
6102/1€/€0

Z abed

uoday slainsead]

fouaby lomod eluiojijen uiayuoN

S L eV TR e b

VdON



we 00:0b 6102/20/¥0

Auepenb sjgejied  VINNL 8GE9Z# JUSWISOAU

6LOZ/LE/CO  JO SE [BUINOL J99AS e 243 woyy saoud pig 40 SJUSWAJR]S URIPOISNY [a)sNIL WoJj Sooud U paseq si anjeA JeR JuaLind

*poyJawl JoBXS UE 2SN SJayjo ||e ‘poujaw syewixosdde ue asn AjLnjewl o) SYIUOW g UBL) SSI YIIM SjUBLIISIAU|
+sadA) jje usamjaq Uosireduwiod 1oy siseq e apiaoid o} Jeak Aep Gog B U0 paseq umoys si Ajanjepy o3 PIRIA JusjeAnbl puog,

669°029v $ ‘60229 $ vz 124 svL‘olo'y  $ €LET 000'vre'r  $ 'STVLOL ANVED
£82°055°L § §9cZes’L  § [T x4 166 zi5'ess’t  § 1€ 000'0ss‘t  $ abesony pue [ejoL pung
£YTIryL S¥86C Zaavalele zuo'lvv'l oreZ 8L0°'L z20ZIEVLO  OEVLbY'L TLOZIEWZ0  SIET 000'SYY'L asn N Ue0T BWoH [esepad
00012 85€92 16SEO9ELE 66169 0e5°L 68 1202/82/20  000°LL 9L0z/82/,0  0€S'L 000'LL asn GBI [euoneN [elepad
ors'se 16992 84496/216 ¥S5'GE SiP'T z6l 6L0z/OLOL  Zvl'eE 8LOZ/LLIOL  L6ET 000'9€ asn Ainsesi) 'sN
AAIOSaY 9IAS JqoQ "oed “den
ole'e90't ¢ vvo'oLo's  $ osv'z il cl5'790‘c ¢ 68T 000'v60°c  § abelany pue [ejoL pung
6219l 98197 OMIYEEELE  8L0'OLY £EV'T zzTL 610Z/L0/80 2009t 6L0Z/82/S0  08ET 000°'08Y lasn g UE0T SWOH [BIEPa-
2L0°LLY 58/9T OMIMPBEELE  0/0'LLY sor'Z ze 6L02/L0/80  €59'9LY 610Z/6L/E0  OLbT 000'L8Y Lasn BE UB0T BUWOH |Iepa
sLLoLL'e 89.92 8VS96LCLE 968'9LL'T [ SLL 6L02/52/L0  8L6'60L'C 6L02/2LT0  06ET 000'€€L'Z Lasn Ainsessy 's'n
anjep buifues # JuawsaAY| diSND  anjep 1xJen [TEIN Aunjey dreq ?Jud aeq ajey anjep pajels uefposno J a9)sni Janss|
Anb3 oysheq  Aunen paseyoing yaund jsasaqu
Hhuog N
901A19G Jq2Q sanl|ioey dep
6102/1€/€0

|, obed

poday sainseas]

Aouaby Jomod eluiojije) uisyuoN

BAUE 8B4 e W i

VdON



we {0:0L 6102/20/%0

cgo'oLyL  $ syo‘oLy'L  § 4144 6 iziorL  $ €0 09Z'oIr'L  § abesany pue JejoL pung
£09'87E 2L29C V8OOPEEELE  065'8YE St 09 6LOZ/AEISO  S8¥'LbE 6102/TLIZ0  G6ET 000°05¢ 18asn g UE0"] SWOH |eepad
8L9'sye £6292 04Ov8EELE  L1O'8YE £5KT 6 6102/0€/50  ¥ZS'8YE 6L0Z/82/€0  0LY'T 000°05€ 1asn g Ue0T SWOH [eJepa4
0z9'sye 26.92 049v8EEle  L19'8PE 0S¥ 65 BLOZ/OE/SO  LLE'SVE 6L0Z/6L/€0  SOP'T 000°05€ 18sn efj UEOT SWOH [eJapay
285'v9¢ 26292 V./3D96€ELE €459 Lov'z 85 6L02/62/50  929'29¢ 8LOZILLILO  SOP'T 000°99¢ Lasn W\ UBOT] BWOH |esapay
09z ZL06L TLOBLSAS 09T 009°0 L 09z €L0Z/L0/0 0090 092 asn IshuLjueg sn
pund sqg 90102 2# onss| 2531

8Ly § LTy 8 15T 8¢ veevel'y  $ ¥or'Z 69t'8eT'y  $ abesany pue JejoL puni
252'9ey L1292 V8OOVEEELE  GEZ'OEY 1244 09 6L02/LE/S0  £98'VEY 6102721120 S6ET 000'8ey Lasn eg Ueo auwioH jelsped
8.Z'veY 96292 04DY8EELE 69TV €SP 65 610Z/0€/S0  LOL'VEY 6L02/82/€0  OLY'T 000'9ey Lasn g Uo7 SWoH fesspad
18C'vey 16292 0dOV8ELLE 69T VeV osv'e 65 6L0Z/0E/S0  €06'EER 61L02/6L/€0 SOv°T 000'9ey lasn e Ue0T SWoH |esepad
¥69'906'2 15292 V/IDY6EELE  0TI'906'T Lov'e 8 6102/62/50  860°168°C 6L0Z/LLILD  SOY'Z 000'8L6'2 14sn W\ UBO BWOH [esapad
69€ L1062 LLOBLSAS 69¢ 0090 L 69€ €L0Z/L0/0 0090 69¢ asn Isru yueg sn
pund S v010Z 2# anss| 031

szL'see'T  § evo'see’s  § otz 65 705'826'C  $ 88T €6T'LY6T  § abesany pue jejo) pung
980°22L 04492 V8OOPREELE  860'L2L S 09 6L0Z/LEIS0  §SL'veL 8L0Z/TLIZ0  S6ET 000°0£2 1asn £4 UB0T SWOH |2lapad
yoL'GLL 06492 04OV8EELE  OGL'GLL £5v' ] 6LOZ/0L/SO  2LB'VLL 6102/82/€0  OLY'Z 000°8LL 14sn eq UB0" SWOH |eJepa
LEL'SZL 68/9C 049V8EELE OLL'STL oSk 65 6102Z/0€/50  86V'vTL BLOT/BLIED  SOV'T 000822 lasn eg Ueo] aWoH |eepad
160'8G2 0529T V/3DBEELE  ZE0'8SL Lor'T 85 6102/62/50  ¥86°€SL 6L0Z/LLILO  SOP'T 000°192 1asn W\ UBOT] BWOH fe1apad
£6Z'0L 70062 $00BLSAS €62°0L 0090 L £62°0L €L0Z/L0/L0 0090 £62'0L asn IsnuLjueg SN
pund Sa 90102 L# enss} 9371

8.1'css's  $ yeo‘sss's  § 85T [ sLe'8zs’s  § vor'e 966'vLS's  § 9be1oAY pue Jejo) pund
6cz'aly 88292 VEMOVBELLE £2T'BLY ysh €9 610Z/€0/90  9LL'BLY 6102/82/€0  OLY'T 000°0Z¥ Lasn eg U0 aloH [esepad
zie'ley 69292 VB8OOY8EELE S6C LTV XA 09 6L0Z/LE/S0  LO6'BLY 6102721720 SBET 000'€2Y 14sn g UBOT BUWOH [eJeped
LrE'6ly 18192 04Ov8eELE 628 6Ly osv'e 66 6102/0€/S0  S/6'8LY 6L0Z/6LIE0 SOV'2 000'L2P 18sn g UBQT AWOH [BIopad
00€'€62'Y 67292 V23996EELE  LBL'EBT'Y Love 85 6L0Z/62/S0  S9T0LT'Y 6L0Z/LLILO  SOFT 000'0LE'Y Lasn W\ UEQT] SWOH |esapay
966 £006. €006LSAS 966 0090 L 966 €L0Z/L0/L0 0090 966 asn IsniLjueg sn
pung sd voL0z L#enss| 931

02'sL $ LoL'ss $ 66£°C L lor'sL $ 66€C L0L'¢L $ abesaAy pue [ejof punyg
L0L'eL 9v00L 9¥00LSAS £0L'€L 66€2 L L0L'EL €L0Z/LOIL0  6BET L0L'eL wiseAu| foueby (2007
anjep buikuey # JUsLLySaAU] dISND  3njeA Joxyiep PIGIA funyepy 9jeq asud ajeq oyey anjep pajels ue|pojsny j 99)shit Janssf

Anbz 0} skeq fuanjepy paseysng aseyasng Jsas)uf
~puog
3992y uonodny HHO 031
6102/1€/€0
PN T LR R S T Tt S

| obed

yoday sJainseas]

Aouaby Jamod eruiojifeD ulsyyonN

VdON /

/



000'005'2

we Lo:0L 6L02/20/40

vil92 HGSOvELE  008'20S°T 066'C Sig'L ¥20Z/0T/E0 0000052 6L02/02/€0  008'C 000'00§°C oo08an HA Ueo] awoH [eJepad
Q00'000'E [£245°74 rNEDYELE  OLELG6'T 00€'L o5y 0Z0Z/0E/90  000'000°€ 9L0Z/0€/90  00E'L 000000°¢ oodan Bi [euoneN [esopad
6.5'7L9°€ ovr9z ooravoele zee'lis'e 055°L [£>4 0Z0T/50/90  ZG6'ELY'E L10T/0E/90  OVS'L 000'GL9'E asn eg UBCT SWOH {e4apad
99K'255 L¥00L LYOOLSAS 99F'15G 2000 L 99v'/55 €L02/8V//0 2000 99¥'LG5 o08n ojlfe Jo ueg uoiun
968'88Z 2004 /POOLSAS 968°'88C 66€Z L 968'88C €L0Z/L0/L0  BBET 968'88Z wisanu| AousBy [eao
OAleSY N 8 O 031

gle'coL’s  $ 1800l $ €8¢°} 98 [-1:740 1 o 991 v 958'660°L  § abesonay pue jejol pung
y6¥'Z€0°L 59T 9OENXEELE 196'620'L oov'L 16 6L0Z/L0/L0  80L'Z80'L L102/8TL0  SLEY 000'520'L asn g Ueo] SWOH jelepad
996'CZ 00292 90096LZLE  ¥96'ZT 12z ve 6L0T/STIVO  LEL'TT 8LOZ/LLIOL  PIZT 000'€Z asn Ainses1l "s'n
958'Ly €062 €L06/SAS 998'LY 0090 3 958'Ly €L0Z/10/0 0090 958'Ly asn IsnuL yueg Sn
Savea ¥Sa 9010z Z# anss| 031

zog20ET  $ L80'642'c  $ 125’ Ly 8sl99e’c  § 192 svy'oszz  $ abesaAy pue [ejol pung
716'06L°C S5Y9Z 8¢30/8ELE  ¥69'29L'T ovs'L 154 020Z/eLi90  9vl'sse'T 2102/82/L0  SLE€ 000's74'Z asn eg U0 SWOH jelepad
§v6'9€ 66992 90096216 Cr6'9E 12T ve 6L0T/STIY0  195'9€ 8LOZ/LLIOL  ¥LZT 000'2€ asn Ainseait SN
Stb'vL 90062 9006LSAS Shi'vL 0090 L Shv'vL €L02/10//0 0090 [ 47) asn snit yued SN
AS9Y sqng sgvg 80102 L#sS| 031

509Z06's  $ £z6'0Ll'8  $ 90L4°) £v6 £18'726'8  § €98'L L1868 § abeJany pue jejo) pung
LLG'SPL'Y £9¥9Z BODBLEELE  296'8L0'Y 09/t 99L'L 220Z/0LI90  Q0E'89L'Y £102/82/180  STL'T 000'00L'Y asn eg UeoT SuIoH [elapad
8e0'8yl YSveT 603VILELE STE'SYL 669'L va8 L202/ZLIS0  8kY'ovL LL0z/8T/I0 SZLL 000'05L asn W UBOT SWOH [2Japad
000'09€'Y 16892 17893eELe  TLL'I6T'Y 659'L G8L 1202/52/S0  000'09¢'Y 9L0Z/80/90  099'L 000'09¢'Y asn Upes) uled [esspa4
¥E6'78 8€592 GSM8Z8ZLE 0188 Gv6'L 06 6102/0€/90  L¥a'¥8 8Loz/lere0 s29’L 000's8 asn finseail "§'N
6818 86992 90096.CL6 T/8'L8 Lze ve 6L0Z/STY0  L0'L8 8LOZ/LLIOL LT 000'28 asn Kinseast 's'n
LL1'T8 G006 GO006/SAS //1'28 0090 L LLL'z8 €LOZ/LO/LO0 0090 111'28 asn Isnu1 xued sn
pung ysa 010z L# anss] 931

8yg'log  § I28°108 § 9sb'T [ 000‘66L  $ yor'e 000’508 $ abesaay pue [ejoy punyj
105'v2L £L192 VBOOVSEELE 96V VZL Shr'T 09 6LOZ/LEISO  ZOL'¥EL 6L02/2L/Z0  GBET 000°5ZL 1asn g UBOT AWOH |elepad
ols'ezl $6.92 04OPBEELE  80S'EZL £5v'T 65 6LOZIOE/SD  LLy'eZL 6L02/8Z/€0  OLb'e 000'¥ZL Lasn e U0 SWOH Jelepad
LLg'ezt ¥6192 04OVEEELE  B0G'EZL sy’ 65 6l0Z/0L/SO  VOV'EZL 6L0Z/6LIED  SOV'T 000°vCL Lasn eg Ueo SWOH Jelepad
aze‘osy £6492 v./3996ELE  SLE'OEY K4 86 6102/62/50  Li0'82Y 6LOZ/LLILO  SOV'Z 000°¢er 1asn JN UEOT BWOH [esepad
pundg sa v.i0z L#enss| 031
anjep BuiAue) # JUBLISIALY dISND  anjep jaxaepy PISIA Aumepn aeq dud - ayed o)y anjeA pajeis uegpoisny / 83snal Janss|

Anb3 oyskeq  AMunje paseyaing aseyong ysauaju|
«Ppuog
pundg Sa v.10¢ L#onss| 031
6102/1L€/€0

Z obeyq

Hoday sJainseal]
Kousby lomod eiuiojije uioyoN

L R B8 e oM

VdON /



we o0k 6102/20/%0

euwiphue ojqe|jed 8044 LEEQTH JuBL)SAAU|

6LOZ/LE/CO 3O SE [RUINO J921S [[EM 2U) Wiod) saaud plq Jo SUSWJe)S URIPOISNY /odisni] WoJj saoud Uo paseq st anjep JeyJe JusLnd

*poyIaWl JoBXS Uk 3Sh SJaU30 || ‘poyiaw ajewixoidde ue asn Ajinjeur 03 SYIUOL g UBY] SS3] UM SJUSWISIAU|
-sad4} J|e usamjaq uospedutod Joj siseq e aplaoid o) Jeak Aep §9¢ € UO paseq UMOYS S1 Ajunje 0} PIBIA Juajeainbl puog,

eLL'osz’iE  $ L0T120°LE  § $00'C Ly 869°CEELE  § 86LC sov'slz’Le  $ :SVLOL ANVYHO
160966 $ y0g'c8s’s ¢ vLLL (373 vig'o9s’s ¢ €Ll 298'1966  § abeiany pue [ejoL pung
anfep buikured # JUaUNSAAU| diSND  anfeA 1 Ie PIRIA Aunye 2jeq 2oud °eq ajey anjeA pajels ue|poIsn  9ajsniy Janssj
Amnbz 0} sheq Auniew paseyaing 9seyddng Jsalauj
-puog
OAI9SOY IN B O 031
6102/1€/€0

PR ¢ VT PURPRE IS & TR )
Hoday sJainseal] ¢EUZ
Aduaby Jomod eilojljed WdyHMoN
¢ abey



{ A PUBLIC AGENCY

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

April 18, 2019

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:  April 25, 2019

SUBJECT:

Sale or Disposal of Surplus Property

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

=

FROM:

Division:

Department:

Sondra Ainsworth ~=~ " . METHOD OF SELECTION:

Treasurer-Controller N/A
Administrative Services

Accounting & Finance

IMPACTED MEMBERS:

If other, please specify

All Members X Cityof Lodi [ City of Shasta Lake

Alameda Municipal Power [] City of Lompoc [] City of Ukiah
San F’a““i;‘;;i':?}’r:,::; O  CityofPaloAlto [  Plumas-Sierra REC
City of Biggs [J City of Redding [ Port of Oakland

City of Gridley [1 City of Roseville [1 Truckee Donner PUD

City of Healdsburg []  City of Santa Clara [ Other

o o o o 0O o

SR: 142:19



Sale or Disposal of Surplus Property
April 18, 2019
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Note and file report by all members for the disposal of scrap metal and e-waste that was
disposed of via recycling establishments.

BACKGROUND:

The NCPA Policy for the Disposal or Destruction of Surplus Supplies, Materials, or Equipment
requires that such disposal or destruction be reported to the NCPA Commission within 60 days
of such action.

In accordance with that policy the above listed items have been disposed of due to being
obsolete and having no value to the Agency.

FISCAL IMPACT:

This report has no direct fiscal impact to the Agency.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the physical
environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

Respectfully submitted,

Qi & 16

RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments: Declarations of Surplus
Receipt of disposal

SR: 142:19



FOVIIAY ‘(D) 009 (@) INTITTIOXT ‘NOLLIANOD »x

HITTOYINOD-YTANSVHIAL OL TVNIONO

(S) aVIDS (@) Y00d

HANSVHN A0 LIN = A/«

@\3\: ALV

(ADVNVIN TVIANTD) |

‘ddIdodd OL

. NOILVZIdOHLNV

AN'TVA dVHDS LIN ON -'IVS0dSId ~ X
ATIVS ALVARA ~— TIVS DI'1dnd
1esodsid NOLLISOdSId GAANTWINODTH
ASEMT PuE [BIRAARDS TVSOdSIA/SSEIXHT O NOLLVIIALLSAr
\ /| 6
\ /
/ |8
\
’_,
A/ L
/..
\ 9
.._ \ .m
\ \
\ 4
f
[ 1N [«
. . V1
[AfeYer ¢! g| b 2-¢ FEer 290G TS g K 2
, Q:m
Z10/0d1 S [eR derog 1
NOLLVDO'1 #193loag TVIOL LINN (SNIA 2 SNO'T ‘S.# PPOI
ALIS 10 #3931 / # WI0IS == »+ANOD aqqeonddy v Supnpuy) *IWN | ALO
/ #Ky10doag VAON ANTVA GILVIALLSA NOLLATYOSAA

8T/61/1L e

SSAIXH 40 NOILVIVIDAd
AIDNIDYV dAMOd VINYOAITYD NITHIYON

<&U_/___._.ﬂ._.“..,..\



A PUBLIC AGENCY

NCPA

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Date: t %! m/}l%

This notice confirms that the Northern California Power Agency has disposed of the following items listed
below:

- Scrap Metal

To the following:
Vendor Name: V&E Hauling / Vincente Gonzales

Address/Phone #: 524 E. Harold Street, Lodi (209) 915-0214

Signature: U Ae @

Northern California Power Agency

Employee Name: Melissa Philpot .

Slgnature /l/l LPJLW (rp ’J"PC{-

Mi)ys Received for this?
_V__YES ($&f-_ (50% of total, rounded)

NO



FATIOUINODUIINSVIAIL OL TVYNIOTHO

(8) aVOS ") ¥0o0d

(TIOVNVIN TVHINTD) -

) 1
TOVIAAY (D) GOO0D () INTTIIDXT NOLLIANOD »+ h \ ¢l \. &‘ AIVA \ J\t{/ :A3TI0Ud OL
\/\\zh NOLLYZIMOHLNV
TANSVAW 20 LINA = W/« (ADVNVI "NID [LSSV)
AAOD = AT A AIAO¥AdY
ANTVA dVEIS LANON-TVSOdSId X - /i "D¥0

HATVS ALVARId ATVS OI'19nd o TIE T PTIVA Morogog PETHAL/ 10 T4 USSP *Ad AAAV T

fesodsiq :NOLLISOdSId QEZANTNWODTYA

ASEM-F pue [ERINdeHS TVSOJSIA/SSTIXE YOI NOLLVIIJILSNr

6

'8

L

‘9

S
¥

€
TLO/DAT S aasem-T T
TLOOIT S eI deng 1
NOILVDO1 # 1aloag TVIOL LINN (SNIA % SND'T S.# PPOI
HLIS 10 # 19914 / # WIS *x(ANOD sqeonddy v Surpnpouy) /N | ALD
1 #Rydold VION INTVA CILVINLLSA NOILATYDSAd
61/8/5 e SSAOXA 4O NOILVIVIDAQ

AONIDV HHMOd VINZO4AI'TVD NYTAHLION

VdDN.,



/ NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Date: /&/ ‘2‘/7 / / [7

This notice confirms that the Northern California Power Agency has disposed of the following items listed
below:

Scrap Metal

To the following:
Vendor Name: V&E Hauling / Vincente Gonzales

Address/Phone #: 524 E. Harold Street, Lodi (209) 915-0214

Signature: - I/Qxﬁ j‘ (44

Northern California Power Agency

Employee Name Melissa Philpot -

Signature: / 7,{,(, W%A‘M

Monies Received for this?

V. ves 64 (50% of total, rounded)

NO



A PUBLIC AGENCY

/INCPA

/NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

]

Date: z/ %/ ( [7

This notice confirms that the Northern California Power Agency has disposed of the following items listed

below:

Scrap Metal

To the following:
Vendor Name: V&E Hauling / Vincente Gonzales

Address/Phone #: 524 E-Harold Street, Lodi (209) 915-0214

Slgnature M

Northern California Power Agency

Employee Name: Melissa Phil
Signature: %4 /] A meﬁ'

Monies Received for this?

\/ YES ($é@~ DO) (50% of total, rounded)

NO



Fremouw Environmental Services, Inc.

-
6940 Tremont Road l nvoice
Dixon, CA 95620 Date Invoice #
3/19/2019 81840
Bill To Ship To
l;grghem&%%wcr Agency Lodi Energy Center
0% ) 12745 N. Thomton Road
Lodi, CA 95242 Lodi, CA 95242
P.0. No. Rep
LW
s ‘ Description Quantity Rate Amount

Electronic Waste 7 691 0.65 449.15
Stop Fee ) i 150.00 150.00
Sales Tax 1.75% 0.00

APPROVEL: ORDER PAYMENT

SIENEW o o

Dater s e i o

NCPA T LaC

sent Tode: Qﬁj‘%‘

Total $599.15




ltem 13

NCPA

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

2019 Proposed Amended Committee Meeting Calendar

LEC PPC
Facilities/ Committee Finance . Executive
Pooling 10:00 am Committee .Ut'l'tv *Legal L&R Affairs Committee **Commission
Committees at 10:00 am Directors Committee Committee 8:00 am 9:30 am
9:00 am Lodi Energy ’ 9:00 am :
Center
17 17
**%**January 3 January 7 January 10 January January
Sacramento Sacramento
February 6 February 11 February 12 February 7 February 20 February 21 February 21
March 6 March 11 March 14/15 March 28 March 28
Healdsburg
April 3 April 8 April 11 April 24 April 25 April 25
May 23 May 23
May 1 May 6 May 7 May 9 Lodi Lodi
June 5 June 10 June 13 June 27 June 27
July 26 July 26
July 3 July 8 July 11 Murphys Murphys
August 7 August 12 August 13 August 15 August 28 August 29 August 29
***September ***September
September 4 | September 9 September 12 | September 25 | September 25 27 27
Olympic Valley Olympic Valley
October 2 October 7 October 8 October 10 October 24 October 24
No No
November 6 November 4 November 12 | November 14 November November
Meeting Meeting
December 4 December 9 December 12 December 4 December 5 December 5

*Legal Committee meets once a year during NCPA’s Annual Conference — Special Committee meetings may be held as required.

SR: 152:19

**Commission Packet mailed the Thursday or Friday prior to the meeting date.

Unless noted otherwise, Commission and Executive meetings will be held at NCPA’s Roseville office.

***The September 27 Commission meeting will be held on a Friday.

**** The January 3 Facilities Committee meeting will be held on Thursday due to the New Year’s Holiday.
Commission meetings highlighted in blue will be posted as an “optional” conference call meeting.

Save the Dates:

NCPA 101 Presentation: January 15, 2019, The Sawyer Hotel, Sacramento

NCPA Strategic Issues Conference: January 16-17, 2019, The Sawyer Hotel, Sacramento
Capitol Day: February 4, 2019
NCPA/NWPPA Federal Policy Conference: April 28 — May 2, 2019, Washington, D.C.
NCPA Annual Conference: September 25-27, 2019, Resort at Squaw Creek, Olympic Valley

10/25/2018 — approved (Proposed Rev. 04/25/2019)




A PUBLIC AGENCY

/ NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

Date: April 12, 2019

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:  April 25, 2019

SUBJECT: Trimark Associates, Inc. - Five Year Multi-Task General Services Agreement for
revenue meter related (installation, maintenance, data acquisition, telemetry, etc.) services.

Applicable to the following projects: All NCPA Facility Locations, Members, SCPPA, and SCPPA
Members.

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

FROM: Tony Zimmer ]/ METHOD OF SELECTION:

Assistant General Manager N/A

Division: Power Management If other, please describe:

Department: Industry Restructuring

IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members Cityof Lodi [1 City of Shasta Lake []
Alameda Municipal Power [] City of Lompoc [ City of Ukiah []
San Franci;g:iga%:l::iat O City of Palo Alto [J Plumas-Sierra REC [
City of Biggs [ City of Redding [ Port of Oakland [
City of Gridley [J City of Roseville [1 Truckee Donner PUD [
City of Healdsburg [  City of Santa Clara [] Other [J

If other, please specify

SR: 143:19



Trimark Associates, Inc. —5 Year MTGSA
April 25, 2019
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approval of Resolution 19-30 authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a
Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Trimark Associates, Inc. for revenue meter related
services, including any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA
General Counsel, and shall not exceed $2,000,000.00 over five years, for use at all facilities
owned and/or operated by NCPA, its Members, by the Southern California Public Power
Authority (‘SCPPA”), or by SCPPA Members.

It is recommend that this item be placed on the Commission Consent Calendar.

BACKGROUND:

Metering related services are required from time to time related to project support at facilities
owned and/or operated by NCPA, its Members, by the Southern California Public Power
Authority (“SCPPA”"), or by SCPPA Members. Trimark Associates, Inc. is a CAISO approved
provider of these services. '

FISCAL IMPACT:

Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $2,000,000.00 to be used out of
the NCPA approved budget. Purchase orders referencing the terms and conditions of the
Agreement will be issued in accordance with NCPA’s procurement policies and procedures.

SELECTION PROCESS:

This enabling agreement does not commit NCPA to any expenditure of funds. At the time
services are required, NCPA will bid the specific scope of work consistent with NCPA’s
procurement policies and procedures. NCPA will concurrently seek a bid from another qualified
provider (Pacific Power Engineers, Inc.) in order not to sole source and promote competitive
bidding whenever services are needed. NCPA will issue purchase orders based on cost and
availability of the services needed at the time the service is required.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the physical
environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

COMMITTEE REVIEW:

The recommendation was reviewed by the Facilities Committee on April 3, 2019, and was
recommended for Commission approval.

SR: 143:19



Trimark Associates, Inc. — 5 Year MTGSA
April 25, 2019
Page 3

Respectfully submitted,

g,,,,,l.\é [N

RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments (2):
¢ Resolution 19-30
e Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Trimark Associates, Inc.

SR: 143:19



RESOLUTION 19-30

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
APPROVING A MULTI-TASK GENERAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH TRIMARK
ASSOCIATES, INC.

(reference Staff Report #143:19)

WHEREAS, meter related services are required at the facilities owned and/or operated by Northern
California Power Agency (NCPA), its Members, the Southern California Public Power Authority (SCPPA), and
SCPPA Members; and

WHEREAS, Trimark Associates, Inc. is a provider of these services; and

WHEREAS, NCPA seeks to enter into a Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Trimark
Associates Inc. to provide such services as needed at all NCPA Generation facility locations, Member, SCPPA,
and SCPPA Member facilities in an amount not to exceed $2,000,000.00 over five years; and

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency
authorizes the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-Task General Services Agreement with
Trimark Associates, Inc., including any non-substantial changes as approved by the NCPA General Counsel,
and shall not exceed $2,000,000.00 for revenue meter related services for use at all facilities owned and/or
operated by NCPA, its Members, by the Southern California Public Power Authority (SCPPA), or by SCPPA
Members.

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of , 2019 by the following vote on roll call:

Vote Abstained Absent
Alameda
San Francisco BART
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc
Palo Alto
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Shasta Lake
Truckee Donner
Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

ROGER FRITH ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT
CHAIR ASSISTANT SECRETARY



/

NCPA

" NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

MULTI-TASK
GENERAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY AND
TRIMARK ASSOCIATES, INC.

This Multi-Task General Services Agreement (“Agreement’) is made by and between the
Northern California Power Agency, a joint powers agency with its main office located at 651
Commerce Drive, Roseville, CA 95678-6420 (“Agency”) and Trimark Associates, Inc., a
corporation, with its office located at 2365 Iron Point Road, No.100, Folsom, CA 95630__
(“Contractor”) (together sometimes referred to as the “Parties”) as of , 2019,
(“Effective Date”) in Roseville, California.

Section 1.

SCOPE OF WORK. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this

Agreement, Contractor is willing to provide to Agency the range of services and/or goods
described in the Scope of Work attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein ("Work").

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

Term of Agreement. The term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective
Date and shall end when Contractor completes the Work, or no later than five (5)
years from the date this Agreement was signed by Agency, whichever is shorter.

Standard of Performance. Contractor shall perform the Work in the manner
and according to the standards observed by a competent practitioner of the
profession in which Contractor is engaged and for which Contractor is providing
the Work. Contractor represents that it is licensed, qualified and experienced to
provide the Work set forth herein.

Assignment of Personnel. Contractor shall assign only competent personnel to
perform the Work. In the event that Agency, in its sole discretion, at any time
during the term of this Agreement, requests the reassignment of any such
personnel, Contractor shall, immediately upon receiving written notice from
Agency of such request, reassign such personnel.

Work Provided. Work provided under this Agreement by Contractor may
include Work directly to the Agency or, as requested by the Agency and
consistent with the terms of this Agreement, to Agency members, Southern
California Public Power Authority (“SCPPA") or SCPPA members.

Request for Work to be Performed. At such time that Agency determines to
have Contractor perform Work under this Agreement, Agency shall issue a
Purchase Order. The Purchase Order shall identify the specific Work to be
performed ("Requested Work"), may include a not-to-exceed cap on monetary
cap on Requested Work and all related expenditures authorized by that
Purchase Order, and shall include a time by which the Requested Work shall be
completed. Contractor shall have seven calendar days from the date of the
Agency’s issuance of the Purchase Order in which to respond in writing that
Contractor chooses not to perform the Requested Work. If Contractor agrees to
perform the Requested Work, begins to perform the Requested Work, or does
not respond within the seven day period specified, then Contractor will have

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-045
Northern California Power Agency and Trimark Associates, Inc.

Rev'd 5/2/2018



Section 2.

agreed to perform the Requested Work on the terms set forth in the Purchase
Order, this Agreement and its Exhibits.

COMPENSATION. Agency hereby agrees to pay Contractor an amount NOT

TO EXCEED Two Million dollars ($2,000,000.00) for the Work, which shall include all fees,
costs, expenses and other reimbursables, as set forth in Contractor’s fee schedule, attached
hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit B. This dollar amount is not a guarantee that Agency
will pay that full amount to the Contractor, but is merely a limit of potential Agency expenditures
under this Agreement.

21

2.2

23

2.4

Invoices. Contractor shall submit invoices, not more often than once a month
during the term of this Agreement, based on the cost for services performed and
reimbursable costs incurred prior to the invoice date. Invoices shall contain the
following information:

The beginning and ending dates of the billing period;

Work performed;

The Purchase Order number authorizing the Requested Work;

At Agency’s option, for each work item in each task, a copy of the
applicable time entries or time sheets shall be submitted showing the
name of the person doing the work, the hours spent by each person, a
brief description of the work, and each reimbursable expense, with
supporting documentation, to Agency’s reasonable satisfaction,

= At Agency's option, the total number of hours of work performed under
the Agreement by Contractor and each employee, agent, and
subcontractor of Contractor performing work hereunder.

Invoices shall be sent to:

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, California 95678

Attn: Accounts Payable
AcctsPayable@ncpa.com

Monthly Payment. Agency shall make monthly payments, based on invoices
received, for Work satisfactorily performed, and for authorized reimbursable
costs incurred. Agency shall have thirty (30) days from the receipt of an invoice
that complies with all of the requirements above to pay Contractor.

Payment of Taxes. Contractor is solely responsible for the payment of all
federal, state and local taxes, including employment taxes, incurred under this
Agreement.

Authorization to Perform Work. The Contractor is not authorized to perform
any Work or incur any costs whatsoever under the terms of this Agreement until
receipt of a Purchase Order from the Contract Administrator.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-045
Northern California Power Agency and Trimark Associates, Inc.

Rev’d 5/2/2018

Page 2 of 23



2.5

Section 3.

Timing for Submittal of Final Invoice. Contractor shall have ninety (90) days

after completion of the Requested Work to submit its final invoice for the
Requested Work. In the event Contractor fails to submit an invoice to Agency for
any amounts due within the ninety (90) day period, Contractor is deemed to have
waived its right to collect its final payment for the Requested Work from Agency.

FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT. Except as set forth herein, Contractor shall, at

its sole cost and expense, provide all facilities and equipment that may be necessary to perform

the Work.

Section 4.

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS. Before beginning any Work under this

Agreement, Contractor, at its own cost and expense, shall procure the types and amounts of
insurance listed below and shall maintain the types and amounts of insurance listed below for
the period covered by this Agreement.

4.1

4.2

Workers’ Compensation. If Contractor employs any person, Contractor shall

maintain Statutory Workers’ Compensation Insurance and Employer’s Liability
Insurance for any and all persons employed directly or indirectly by Contractor
with limits of not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000.00) per accident.

Commercial General and Automobile Liability Insurance.

421

4.2.2

4.2.3

Commercial General Insurance. Contractor shall maintain commercial
general liability insurance for the term of this Agreement, including
products liability, covering any loss or liability, including the cost of
defense of any action, for bodily injury, death, personal injury and broad
form property damage which may arise out of the operations of
Contractor. The policy shall provide a minimum limit of $1,000,000 per
occurrence/$2,000,000 aggregate. Commercial general coverage shall
be at least as broad as ISO Commercial General Liability form CG 0001
(current edition) on "an occurrence” basis covering comprehensive
General Liability, with a self-insured retention or deductible of no more
than $100,000. No endorsement shall be attached limiting the coverage.

Automobile Liability. Contractor shall maintain automobile liability
insurance form CA 0001 (current edition) for the term of this Agreement
covering any loss or liability, including the cost of defense of any action,
arising from the operation, maintenance or use of any vehicle (symbol 1),
whether or not owned by the Contractor, on or off Agency premises. The
policy shall provide a minimum limit of $1,000,000 per each accident, with
a self-insured retention or deductible of no more than $100,000. This
insurance shall provide contractual liability covering all motor vehicles and
mobile equipment to the extent coverage may be excluded from general
liability insurance.

General Liability/Umbrella Insurance. The coverage amounts set forth
above may be met by a combination of underlying and umbrella policies
as long as in combination the limits equal or exceed those stated.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-045
Northern California Power Agency and Trimark Associates, Inc.

Rev'd 56/2/2018

Page 3 of 23



4.3 Professional Liability Insurance. Contractor shall maintain professional liability
insurance appropriate to Contractor's profession performing work in connection
with this Agreement in an amount not less than one million dollars
($1,000,000.00) and two million dollars ($2,000,000) aggregate covering the
Contractor's errors and omissions. Any deductible or self-insured retention shall
not exceed two hundred fifty thousand dollars ($250,000.00) per claim. Such
insurance shall be on a “claims-made” basis, subject to the following conditions:
(1) the retroactive date of the policy shall be on or before the Effective Date of
this Agreement; (2) the policy shall be maintained for at least five (5) years after
completion of the Services and, if requested by Agency, evidence of coverage
shall be provided during this period; and (3) if, within five (5) years of completion
of the Services, coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with
another claims-made policy form with a retroactive date prior to the Effective
Date of this Agreement, Consultant shall purchase “extended reporting” coverage
for a minimum of five (5) years after completion of the Services and, if requested
by Agency, provide evidence of coverage during this period.

4.4 Pollution Insurance. Not Applicable.

4.5 All Policies Requirements.

4.5.1 Verification of coverage. Prior to beginning any work under this
Agreement, Contractor shall provide Agency with (1) a Certificate of
Insurance that demonstrates compliance with all applicable insurance
provisions contained herein and (2) policy endorsements to the policies
referenced in Section 4.2 and in Section 4.4, if applicable, adding the
Agency as an additional insured and declaring such insurance primary in
regard to work performed pursuant to this Agreement.

4.5.2 Notice of Reduction in or Cancellation of Coverage. Contractor shall
provide at least thirty (30) days prior written notice to Agency of any
reduction in scope or amount, cancellation, or modification adverse to
Agency of the policies referenced in Section 4.

4.5.3 Higher Limits. If Contractor maintains higher limits than the minimums
specified herein, the Agency shall be entitled to coverage for the higher
limits maintained by the Contractor.

4.5.4 Additional Certificates and Endorsements. If Contractor performs
Work for Agency members, SCPPA and/or SCPPA members pursuant to
this Agreement, Contractor shall provide the certificates of insurance and
policy endorsements, as referenced in Section 4.5.1, naming the specific
Agency member, SCPPA and/or SCPPA member for which the Work is to
be performed.

46 Waiver of Subrogation. Contractor agrees to waive subrogation which any
insurer of Contractor may acquire from Contractor by virtue of the payment of
any loss. Contractor agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-045
Northern California Power Agency and Trimark Associates, Inc.
Rev'd 5/2/2018

Page 4 of 23



4.7

Section 5.

to effect this waiver of subrogation. The Workers' Compensation policy shall be
endorsed with a waiver of subrogation in favor of Agency for all work performed
by Contractor, its employees, agents and subcontractors.

Contractor's Obligation. Contractor shall be solely responsible for ensuring
that all equipment, vehicles and other items utilized in the performance of Work
are operated, provided or otherwise utilized in a manner that ensures they are
and remain covered by the policies referenced in Section 4 during this
Agreement. Contractor shall also ensure that all workers involved in the
provision of Work are properly classified as employees, agents or independent
contractors and are and remain covered by any and all workers' compensation
insurance required by applicable law during this Agreement.

INDEMNIFICATION AND CONTRACTOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES.

5.1

5.2

5.3

Section 6.

Effect of Insurance. Agency's acceptance of insurance certificates and
endorsements required under this Agreement does not relieve Contractor from
liability under this indemnification and hold harmless clause. This indemnification
and hold harmless clause shall apply to any damages or claims for damages
whether or not such insurance policies shall have been determined to apply. By
execution of this Agreement, Contractor acknowledges and agrees to the
provisions of this section and that it is a material element of consideration.

Scope. Contractor shall indemnify, defend with counsel reasonably acceptable
to the Agency, and hold harmless the Agency and its officials, commissioners,
officers, employees, and volunteers from and against any and all claims to the
extent that the claims arise out of, pertain to or relate to the negligence,
recklessness or willful misconduct of the Contractor in its performance of Work
under this Agreement. Contractor shall bear all losses, costs, damages, expense
and liability of every kind, nature and description to the extent that they arise out
of, pertain to, or relate to such claims, whether directly or indirectly (“Liabilities”).
Such obligations to defend, hold harmless and indemnify the Agency shall not
apply to the extent that such Liabilities are caused by the negligence, active
negligence, or willful misconduct of the Agency.

Transfer of Title. Not Applicable.
STATUS OF CONTRACTOR.

6.1

Independent Contractor. Contractor is an independent contractor and not an
employee of Agency. Agency shall have the right to control Contractor only
insofar as the results of Contractor's Work and assignment of personnel pursuant
to Section 1; otherwise, Agency shall not have the right to control the means by
which Contractor accomplishes Work rendered pursuant to this Agreement.
Notwithstanding any other Agency, state, or federal policy, rule, regulation, law,
or ordinance to the contrary, Contractor and any of its employees, agents, and
subcontractors providing services under this Agreement shall not qualify for or
become entitled to, and hereby agree to waive any and all claims to, any

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-045
Northern California Power Agency and Trimark Associates, Inc.

Rev'd 5/2/2018

Page 5 of 23



6.2

6.3

compensation, benefit, or any incident of employment by Agency, including but
not limited to eligibility to enroll in the California Public Employees Retirement
System (PERS) as an employee of Agency and entitlement to any contribution to
be paid by Agency for employer contributions and/or employee contributions for
PERS benefits.

Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency for the payment of
any employee and/or employer contributions for PERS benefits on behalf of
Contractor or its employees, agents, or subcontractors, as well as for the
payment of any penalties and interest on such contributions, which would
otherwise be the responsibility of Agency. Contractor and Agency acknowledge
and agree that compensation paid by Agency to Contractor under this Agreement
is based upon Contractor’s estimated costs of providing the Work, including
salaries and benefits of employees, agents and subcontractors of Contractor.

Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency from any lawsuit,
administrative action, or other claim for penalties, losses, costs, damages,
expense and liability of every kind, nature and description that arise out of,
pertain to, or relate to such claims, whether directly or indirectly, due to
Contractor’s failure to secure workers’ compensation insurance for its
employees, agents, or subcontractors.

Contractor agrees that it is responsible for the provision of group healthcare
benefits to its fulltime employees under 26 U.S.C. § 4980H of the Affordable
Care Act. To the extent permitted by law, Contractor shall indemnify, defend and
hold harmless Agency from any penalty issued to Agency under the Affordable
Care Act resulting from the performance of the Services by any employee, agent,
or subcontractor of Contractor.

Contractor Not Agent. Except as Agency may specify in writing, Contractor
shall have no authority, express or implied, to act on behalf of Agency in any
capacity whatsoever as an agent. Contractor shall have no authority, express or
implied, pursuant to this Agreement to bind Agency to any obligation whatsoever.

Assignment and Subcontracting. This Agreement contemplates personal
performance by Contractor and is based upon a determination of Contractor’s
unique professional competence, experience, and specialized professional
knowledge. A substantial inducement to Agency for entering into this Agreement
was and is the personal reputation and competence of Contractor. Contractor
may not assign this Agreement or any interest therein without the prior written
approval of the Agency. Contractor shall not subcontract any portion of the
performance contemplated and provided for herein, other than to the
subcontractors identified in Exhibit A, without prior written approval of the
Agency. Where written approval is granted by the Agency, Contractor shall
supervise all work subcontracted by Contractor in performing the Work and shall
be responsible for all work performed by a subcontractor as if Contractor itself
had performed such work. The subcontracting of any work to subcontractors
shall not relieve Contractor from any of its obligations under this Agreement with

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-045
Northern California Power Agency and Trimark Associates, Inc.

Rev'd 5/2/2018

Page 6 of 23



6.4

6.5

6.6

Section 7.

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

respect to the Work and Contractor is obligated to ensure that any and all
subcontractors performing any Work shall be fully insured in all respects and to
the same extent as set forth under Section 4, to Agency’s satisfaction.

Certification as to California Energy Commission. If requested by the
Agency, Contractor shall, at the same time it executes this Agreement, execute
Exhibit C.

Certification as to California Energy Commission Regarding Hazardous
Materials Transport Vendors. If requested by the Agency, Contractor shall, at
the same time it executes this Agreement, execute Exhibit D.

Maintenance Labor Agreement. If the Work is subject to the terms of one or
more Maintenance Labor Agreements, which are applicable only to certain types
of construction, repair and/or maintenance projects, then Contractor shall
execute Exhibit E and/or similar documentation as to compliance.

LEGAL REQUIREMENTS.

Governing Law. The laws of the State of California shall govern this
Agreement.

Compliance with Applicable Laws. Contractor and its subcontractors and
agents, if any, shall comply with all laws applicable to the performance of the
work hereunder.

Licenses and Permits. Contractor represents and warrants to Agency that
Contractor and its employees, agents, and subcontractors (if any) have and will
maintain at their sole expense during the term of this Agreement all licenses,
permits, qualifications, and approvals of whatever nature that are legally required
to practice their respective professions.

Monitoring by DIR. The Work is subject to compliance monitoring and
enforcement by the Department of Industrial Relations.

Registration with DIR. During the term of this Agreement, Contractor warrants
that it is registered with the Department of Industrial Relations and qualified to
perform Work consistent with Labor Code section 1725.5.

Prevailing Wage Rates. In accordance with California Labor Code Section
1771, not less than the general prevailing rate of per diem wages for work of a
similar character in the locality in which the Work is to be performed, and not less
than the general prevailing rate of per diem wages for holiday and overtime work
as provided in the California Labor Code must be paid to all workers engaged in
performing the Work. In accordance with California Labor Code Section 1770
and following, the Director of Industrial Relations has determined the general
prevailing wage per diem rates for the locality in which the Work is to be
performed; the Agency has obtained the general prevailing rate of per diem

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-045
Northern California Power Agency and Trimark Associates, Inc.

Rev'd 5/2/2018

Page 7 of 23



Section 8.

8.1

8.2

wages and the general rate for holiday and overtime work in the locality in which
the Work is to be performed for each craft, classification or type of worker
needed to perform the project; and copies of the prevailing rate of per diem
wages are on file at the Agency and will be made available on request.
Throughout the performance of the Work, Contractor must comply with all
applicable laws and regulations that apply to wages earned in performance of the
Work. Contractor assumes all responsibility for such payments and shall defend,
indemnify and hold the Agency harmless from any and all claims made by the
State of California, the Department of Industrial Relations, any subcontractor, any
worker or any other third party with regard thereto.

Additionally, in accordance with the California Administrative Code, Title 8, Group
3, Article 2, Section 16000, Publication of Prevailing Wage Rates by Awarding
Bodies, copies of the applicable determination of the Director can be found on
the web at: http://www.dir.ca.gov/DLSR/PWD/ and may be reviewed at any time.

Contractor shall be required to submit to the Agency during the contract period,
copies of Public Works payroll reporting information per California Department of
Industrial Relations, Form A- 1-131 (New 2-80) concerning work performed under
this Agreement.

Contractor shall comply with applicable law, including Labor Code Sections 1774
and 1775. In accordance with Section 1775, Contractor shall forfeit as a penalty
to Agency $50.00 for each calendar day or portion thereof, for each worker paid
less than the prevailing rates as determined by the Director of Industrial
Relations for such work or craft in which such worker is employed for any Work
done under the Agreement by Contractor or by any subcontractor under
Contractor in violation of the provisions of the Labor Code and in particular,
Labor Code Sections 1770 et seq. In addition to the penalty and pursuant to
Section 1775, the difference between such prevailing wage rates and the amount
paid to each worker for each calendar day or portion thereof for which each
worker was paid less than the prevailing wage rate shall be paid to each worker
by the Contractor.

TERMINATION AND MODIFICATION.

Termination. Agency may cancel this Agreement at any time and without cause
upon ten (10) days prior written notice to Contractor.

In the event of termination, Contractor shall be entitled to compensation for Work
satisfactorily completed as of the effective date of termination; Agency, however,
may condition payment of such compensation upon Contractor delivering to
Agency any or all records or documents (as referenced in Section 9.1 hereof).

Amendments. The Parties may amend this only by a writing signed by both of
the Parties.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-045
Northern California Power Agency and Trimark Associates, Inc.

Rev'd 5/2/2018

Page 8 of 23



8.3

8.4

Section 9.

Survival. All obligations arising prior to the termination of this Agreement and all
provisions of this Agreement allocating liability between Agency and Contractor
shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

Options upon Breach by Contractor. If Contractor materially breaches any of
the terms of this Agreement, including but not limited to those set forth in Section
4, Agency’s remedies shall include, but not be limited to, the following:

8.4.1 Immediately terminate the Agreement;

8.4.2 Retain the plans, specifications, drawings, reports, design documents,
and any other work product prepared by Contractor pursuant to this
Agreement;

8.4.3 Retain a different Contractor to complete the Work not finished by
Contractor; and/or

8.4.4 Charge Contractor the difference between the costs to complete the Work
that is unfinished at the time of breach and the amount that Agency would
have paid Contractor pursuant hereto if Contractor had completed the
Work.

KEEPING AND STATUS OF RECORDS.

9.1

9.2

9.3

Records Created as Part of Contractor’s Performance. All reports, data,
maps, models, charts, studies, surveys, photographs, memoranda, plans,
studies, specifications, records, files, or any other documents or materials, in
electronic or any other form, that Contractor prepares or obtains pursuant to this
Agreement and that relate to the matters covered hereunder shall be the property
of the Agency. Contractor hereby agrees to deliver those documents to the
Agency upon termination of the Agreement. Agency and Contractor agree that,
unless approved by Agency in writing, Contractor shall not release to any non-
parties to this Agreement any data, plans, specifications, reports and other
documents.

Contractor’s Books and Records. Contractor shall maintain any and all
records or other documents evidencing or relating to charges for Work or
expenditures and disbursements charged to the Agency under this Agreement
for a minimum of three (3) years, or for any longer period required by law, from
the date of final payment to the Contractor under this Agreement.

Inspection and Audit of Records. Any records or documents that this
Agreement requires Contractor to maintain shall be made available for
inspection, audit, and/or copying at any time during regular business hours, upon
oral or written request of the Agency. Under California Government Code
Section 8546.7, if the amount of public funds expended under this Agreement
exceeds ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00), the Agreement shall be subject to
the examination and audit of the State Auditor, at the request of Agency or as

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-045
Northern California Power Agency and Trimark Associates, Inc.

Rev'd 5/2/2018

Page 9 of 23



9.4

part of any audit of the Agency, for a period of three (3) years after final payment
under this Agreement.

Confidential Information and Disclosure.

9.4.1

9.4.2

9.4.3

9.4.4

Confidential Information. The term "Confidential Information", as used
herein, shall mean any and all confidential, proprietary, or trade secret
information, whether written, recorded, electronic, oral or otherwise,
where the Confidential Information is made available in a tangible
medium of expression and marked in a prominent location as confidential,
proprietary and/or trade secret information. Confidential Information shall
not include information that: (a) was already known to the Receiving Party
or is otherwise a matter of public knowledge, (b) was disclosed to
Receiving Party by a third party without violating any confidentiality
agreement, (c) was independently developed by Receiving Party without
reverse engineering, as evidenced by written records thereof, or (d) was
not marked as Confidential Information in accordance with this section.

Non-Disclosure of Confidential Information. During the term of this
Agreement, either party may disclose (the “Disclosing Party”) Confidential
Information to the other party (the “Receiving Party”). The Receiving
Party: (a) shall hold the Disclosing Party's Confidential Information in
confidence; and (b) shall take all reasonable steps to prevent any
unauthorized possession, use, copying, transfer or disclosure of such
Confidential Information.

Permitted Disclosure. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the following
disclosures of Confidential Information are allowed. Receiving Party shall
endeavor to provide prior written notice to Disclosing Party of any
permitted disclosure made pursuant to Section 9.4.3.2 or 9.4.3.3.
Disclosing Party may seek a protective order, including without limitation,
a temporary restraining order to prevent or contest such permitted
disclosure; provided, however, that Disclosing Party shall seek such
remedies at its sole expense. Neither party shall have any liability for
such permitted disclosures:

9.4.3.1 Disclosure to employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors or
other representatives of Receiving Party that have a need to know
in connection with this Agreement.

9.4.3.2 Disclosure in response to a valid order of a court, government or
regulatory agency or as may otherwise be required by law; and

9.4.3.3 Disclosure by Agency in response to a request pursuant to the
California Public Records Act.

Handling of Confidential Information. Upon conclusion or termination
of the Agreement, Receiving Party shall return to Disclosing Party or

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-045
Northern California Power Agency and Trimark Associates, Inc.

Rev'd 5/2/2018

Page 10 of 23



Section 10.

destroy Confidential Information (including all copies thereof), if requested
by Disclosing Party in writing. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the
Receiving Party may retain copies of such Confidential Information,
subject to the confidentiality provisions of this Agreement: (a) for archival
purposes in its computer system; (b) in its legal department files; and (c)
in files of Receiving Party's representatives where such copies are
necessary to comply with applicable law. Party shall not disclose the
Disclosing Party’s Information to any person other than those of the
Receiving Party’s employees, agents, consultants, contractors and
subcontractors who have a need to know in connection with this
Agreement.

PROJECT SITE.

10.1

10.2

10.3

Operations at the Project Site. Each Project site may include the power plant
areas, all buildings, offices, and other locations where Work is to be performed,
including any access roads. Contractor shall perform the Work in such a manner
as to cause a minimum of interference with the operations of the Agency; if
applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work, as referenced
in Section 1.4; and other contractors at the Project site and to protect all persons
and property thereon from damage or injury. Upon completion of the Work at a
Project site, Contractor shall leave such Project site clean and free of all tools,
equipment, waste materials and rubbish, stemming from or relating to
Contractor's Work.

Contractor's Equipment, Tools, Supplies and Materials. Contractor shall be
solely responsible for the transportation, loading and unloading, and storage of
any equipment, tools, supplies or materials required for performing the Work,
whether owned, leased or rented. Neither Agency nor, if applicable, the entity for
which Contractor is performing the Work, as referenced in Section 1.4, will be
responsible for any such equipment, supplies or materials which may be lost,
stolen or damaged or for any additional rental charges for such. Equipment,
tools, supplies and materials left or stored at a Project site, with or without
permission, is at Contractor’s sole risk. Anything left on the Project site an
unreasonable length of time after the Work is completed shall be presumed to
have been abandoned by the Contractor. Any transportation furnished by
Agency or, if applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work,
as referenced in Section 1.4, shall be solely as an accommodation and neither
Agency nor, if applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work,
as referenced in Section 1.4, shall have liability therefor. Contractor shall
assume the risk and is solely responsible for its owned, non-owned and hired
automobiles, trucks or other motorized vehicles as well as any equipment, tools,
supplies, materials or other property which is utilized by Contractor on the Project
site. All materials and supplies used by Contractor in the Work shall be new and
in good condition.

Use of Agency Equipment. Contractor shall assume the risk and is solely
responsible for its use of any equipment owned and property provided by Agency

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-045
Northern California Power Agency and Trimark Associates, Inc.

Rev'd 5/2/2018

Page 11 of 23



Section 11.

1.1

11.2

11.3

Section 12.

and, if applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work, as
referenced in Section 1.4, for the performance of Work.

WARRANTY.

Nature of Work. In addition to any and all warranties provided or implied by law
or public policy, Contractor warrants that all Work shall be free from defects in
design and workmanship, and that Contractor shall perform all Work in
accordance with applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules and regulations
including engineering, construction and other codes and standards and prudent
electrical utility standards, and in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.

Deficiencies in Work. In addition to all other rights and remedies which Agency
may have, Agency shall have the right to require, and Contractor shall be
obligated at its own expense to perform, all further Work which may be required
to correct any deficiencies which result from Contractor’s failure to perform any
Work in accordance with the standards required by this Agreement. If during the
term of this Agreement or the one (1) year period following completion of the
Work, any equipment, supplies or other materials or Work used or provided by
Contractor under this Agreement fails due to defects in material and/or
workmanship or other breach of this Agreement, Contractor shall, upon any
reasonable written notice from Agency, replace or repair the same to Agency's
satisfaction.

Assignment of Warranties. Contractor hereby assigns to Agency all additional
warranties, extended warranties, or benefits like warranties, such as insurance,
provided by or reasonably obtainable from suppliers of equipment and material
used in the Work.

HEALTH AND SAFETY PROGRAMS. The Contractor shall establish, maintain,

and enforce safe work practices, and implement an accident/incident prevention program
intended to ensure safe and healthful operations under their direction. The program shall
include all requisite components of such a program under Federal, State and local regulations
and shall comply with all site programs established by Agency and, if applicable, the entity for
which Contractor is performing the Work, as referenced in Section 1.4.

121

12.2

12.3

Contractor is responsible for acquiring job hazard assessments as necessary to
safely perform the Work and provide a copy to Agency upon request.

Contractor is responsible for providing all employee health and safety training
and personal protective equipment in accordance with potential hazards that may
be encountered in performance of the Work and provide copies of the certified
training records upon request by Agency. Contractor shall be responsible for
proper maintenance and/or disposal of their personal protective equipment and
material handling equipment.

Contractor is responsible for ensuring that its lower-tier subcontractors are aware
of and will comply with the requirements set forth herein.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-045
Northern California Power Agency and Trimark Associates, Inc.

Rev'd 5/2/2018

Page 12 of 23



12.4

12.5

12.6

12.7

12.8

12.9

12.10

Section 13.

Agency, or its representatives, may periodically monitor the safety performance
of the Contractor performing the Work. Contractors and its subcontractors shall
be required to comply with the safety and health obligations as established in the
Agreement. Non-compliance with safety, health, or fire requirements may resuit
in cessation of work activities, until items in non-compliance are corrected. Itis
also expressly acknowledged, understood and agreed that no payment shall be
due from Agency to Contractor under this Agreement at any time when, or for
any Work performed when, Contractor is not in full compliance with this Section
12.

Contractor shall immediately report any injuries to the Agency site safety
representative. Additionally, the Contractor shall investigate and submit to the
Agency site safety representative copies of all written accident reports, and
coordinate with Agency if further investigation is requested.

Contractor shall take all reasonable steps and precautions to protect the health of
its employees and other site personnel with regard to the Work. Contractor shall
conduct occupational health monitoring and/or sampling to determine levels of
exposure of its employees to hazardous or toxic substances or environmental -
conditions. Copies of any sampling results will be forwarded to the Agency site
safety representative upon request.

Contractor shall develop a plan to properly handie and dispose of any hazardous
wastes, if any, Contractor generates in performing the Work.

Contractor shall advise its employees and subcontractors that any employee who
jeopardizes his/her safety and health, or the safety and health of others, may be
subject to actions including removal from Work.

Contractor shall, at the sole option of the Agency, develop and provide to the
Agency a Hazardous Material Spill Response Plan that includes provisions for
spill containment and clean-up, emergency contact information including
regulatory agencies and spill sampling and analysis procedures. Hazardous
Materials shall include diesel fuel used for trucks owned or leased by the
Contractor.

If Contractor is providing Work to an Agency Member, SCPPA or SCPPA
member (collectively “Member” solely for the purpose of this section) pursuant to
Section 1.4 hereof, then that Member shall have the same rights as the Agency
under Sections 12.1, 12.2, 12.4, 12.5, and 12.6 hereof.

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS.

13.1

Attorneys’ Fees. If a party to this Agreement brings any action, including an
action for declaratory relief, to enforce or interpret the provision of this
Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys’ fees in
addition to any other relief to which that party may be entitled. The court may set
such fees in the same action or in a separate action brought for that purpose.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-045
Northern California Power Agency and Trimark Associates, Inc.

Rev'd 5/2/2018

Page 13 of 23



13.2

13.3

13.4

13.5

13.6

13.7

13.8

Venue. In the event that either party brings any action against the other under
this Agreement, the Parties agree that trial of such action shall be vested
exclusively in the state courts of California in the County of Placer or in the
United States District Court for the Eastern District of California.

Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision
of this Agreement is invalid, void, or unenforceable, the provisions of this
Agreement not so adjudged shall remain in full force and effect. The invalidity in
whole or in part of any provision of this Agreement shall not void or affect the
validity of any other provision of this Agreement.

No Implied Waiver of Breach. The waiver of any breach of a specific provision
of this Agreement does not constitute a waiver of any other breach of that term or
any other term of this Agreement.

Successors and Assigns. The provisions of this Agreement shall inure to the
benefit of and shall apply to and bind the successors and assigns of the Parties.

Conflict of Interest. Contractor may serve other clients, but none whose
activities within the corporate limits of Agency or whose business, regardless of
location, would place Contractor in a “conflict of interest,” as that term is defined
in the Political Reform Act, codified at California Government Code Section
81000 et seq.

Contractor shall not employ any Agency official in the work performed pursuant
to this Agreement. No officer or employee of Agency shall have any financial
interest in this Agreement that would violate California Government Code
Sections 1090 et seq.

Contract Administrator. This Agreement shall be administered by Tony
Zimmer, Assistant General Manager, or his/her designee, who shall act as the
Agency’s representative. All correspondence shall be directed to or through the
representative.

Notices. Any written notice to Contractor shall be sent to:

Mark Morosky, President
Trimark Associates, Inc.

2365 Iron Point Road, No. 100
Folsom, CA 95630

With a copy to:

Tom Short, TOC Manager
Trimark Associates, Inc.

2365 Iron Point Road, No. 100
Folsom, CA 9563

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-045
Northern California Power Agency and Trimark Associates, Inc.

Rev'd 5/2/2018

Page 14 of 23



Any written notice to Agency shall be sent to:

Randy S. Howard

General Manager

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, CA 95678

With a copy to:

Jane E. Luckhardt

General Counsel

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, CA 95678

13.9 Professional Seal. Where applicable in the determination of the Agency, the
first page of a technical report, first page of design specifications, and each page
of construction drawings shall be stamped/sealed and signed by the licensed
professional responsible for the report/design preparation.

13.10 Integration; Incorporation. This Agreement, including all the exhibits attached
hereto, represents the entire and integrated agreement between Agency and
Contractor and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or
agreements, either written or oral. All exhibits attached hereto are incorporated
by reference herein.

13.11 Alternative Dispute Resolution. If any dispute arises between the Parties that
cannot be settled after engaging in good faith negotiations, Agency and
Contractor agree to resolve the dispute in accordance with the following:

13.11.1 Each party shall designate a senior management or executive
level representative to negotiate any dispute;

13.11.2 The representatives shall attempt, through good faith negotiations,
to resolve the dispute by any means within their authority.

13.11.3 If the issue remains unresolved after fifteen (15) days of good faith
negotiations, the Parties shall attempt to resolve the disagreement
by negotiation between legal counsel. If the above process fails,
the Parties shall resolve any remaining disputes through
mediation to expedite the resolution of the dispute.

13.11.4 The mediation process shall provide for the selection within fifteen
(15) days by both Parties of a disinterested third person as
mediator, shall be commenced within thirty (30) days and shall be
concluded within fifteen (15) days from the commencement of the
mediation.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-045
Northern California Power Agency and Trimark Associates, Inc.
Rev'd 5/2/2018

Page 15 of 23



13.12

13.13

13.14

13.15

13.11.5 The Parties shall equally bear the costs of any third party in any
alternative dispute resolution process.

13.11.6 The alternative dispute resolution process is a material condition
to this Agreement and must be exhausted as an administrative
remedy prior to either Party initiating legal action. This alternative
dispute resolution process is not intended to nor shall be
construed to change the time periods for filing a claim or action
specified by Government Code §§ 900 et seq.

Controlling Provisions. In the case of any conflict between the terms of this
Agreement and the Exhibits hereto, a Purchase Order, or Contractor's Proposal
(if any), the Agreement shall control. In the case of any conflict between the
Exhibits hereto and a Purchase Order or the Contractor's Proposal, the Exhibits
shall control. In the case of any conflict between the terms of a Purchase Order
and the Contractor’s Proposal, the Purchase Order shall control.

Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each
of which shall be an original and all of which together shall constitute one
agreement.

Construction of Agreement. Each party hereto has had an equivalent
opportunity to participate in the drafting of the Agreement and/or to consult with
legal counsel. Therefore, the usual construction of an agreement against the
drafting party shall not apply hereto.

No Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is made solely for the benefit of
the parties hereto, with no intent to benefit any non-signator third parties.
However, should Contractor provide Work to an Agency member, SCPPA or
SCPPA member (collectively for the purpose of this section only “Member”)
pursuant to Section 1.4, the parties recognize that such Member may be a third
party beneficiary solely as to the Purchase Order and Requested Work relating to
such Member.

SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWNG PAGE

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-045
Northern California Power Agency and Trimark Associates, Inc.

Rev'd 5/2/2018

Page 16 of 23



The Parties have executed this Agreement as of the date signed by the Agency.

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY TRIMARK ASSOCIATES, INC.

Date Date
RANDY S. HOWARD, General Manager MARK MOROSKY, President
Attest:

Assistant Secretary of the Commission
Approved as to Form:

Jane E. Luckhardt, General Counsel

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-045
Northern California Power Agency and Trimark Associates, Inc.

Rev'd 5/2/2018
Page 17 of 23



EXHIBIT A
SCOPE OF WORK

Trimark Associates, Inc. (Contractor) shall provide maintenance services, operations services,
and data services as requested by the Northern California Power Agency (Agency) at any
facilities owned or operated by Agency, its Members, Southern California Public Power
Authority (SCPPA) or SCPPA members.

The services include, but are not limited to the following:

Meter Services

e Maintenance, installation, replacement, emergency support, and calibration of meters,
PTs, CTs, software, interface devices, etc.

+ Engineering, design, commissioning, and certification of meters

o Meter reading, SQMD Acquisition, validation, presentation of customers meter data and
transmittal of data to the CAISO

RIG-DPG

e Maintenance, installation, replacement, emergency support, software, interface devices,
etc.
e Engineering, design, commissioning, and certification

Miscellaneous Services

e NERC CIP compliance consulting

e New Resource Implementation (NRI) Support

o Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition systems (SCADA) services
e Onsite and Remote Network Communication Support Services

e Project management

e Network architecture and security support

e Automated Generation Control Implementation

o Database management and commercial hosting services

e WREGIS and CAISO SQMD monthly submittals

e Meteorological Weather Station sales, installation, service, and support
o Cellular service

e Telemetry Support

e Micro Grid Management

e Material/Hardware Only Purchases

No project under this Agreement shall include Work that would qualify as a Public Works Project
under the California Public Contract Code.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-045
Northern California Power Agency and Trimark Associates, Inc.
Rev'd 5/2/2018

Page 18 of 23



EXHIBIT B

HOURLY FEES

Compensation for all Work, including hourly fees and expenses, shall not exceed the amount
set forth in Section 2 of this Agreement. The hourly rates and/or compensation breakdown and
an estimated amount of expenses is as follows:

Trimark Rate Sheet
An i Hourly Rate
Department Classification (USD)
Program Manager / Executive QA S 295
Senior Management Consultant S 245
Director of Engineering S 220
Management and ; :
Consulting Semor Pro;ect. Manager S 190
Associate Project Manager S 165
System Integration Manager S 185
Project Coordinator S 125
Senior Software Developer S 190
Senior Engineer S 220
Electrical Engineer S 190
Systems Integration Engineer S 175
Engineering / Systems Software D.eveloper S 165
Integration SCADA Engineer S 185
Communications Engineer S 180
Communications Technician $ 135
Field Systems Specialist $ 125
CAD Manager S 150
CAD Technician S 125
Meter Engineer $ 190
Metering Supervisor / Superintendent S 187
Electric Metering Certified CAISO Metering Inspector S 177
Journey Meterman S 185
Apprentice Meterman S 123
Senior Data Scientist S 175
Meter Data Data Acquisition Systems Specialist S 155
Management Database Manager $ 148
Associate Data Analyst S 125
Electrical Contracting/ | Journey Electronics Technician S 165
Construction Electronics Technician S 130

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and Trimark Associates, Inc.

Rev'd 5/2/2018

GS-VEN-2019-045

Page 19 of 23



Trimark Rate Sheet
e Hourly Rate
Department Classification (USD)
Journey Electrician S 155
Apprentice Electrician $ 115
Administrative S 75
Parts and Material Cost +12%
Out-of-Pocket Expenses Cost +12%
Expenses Travel (Mileage) Adjusted for IRS rates S 0.535/
Mile
Travel labor Time (75% of Hourly Rate)
Overtime Rates: Applies to any position (1.5 times the normal rate). Sundays and holidays
are the exception, which are double time.

NOTE: As a public agency, NCPA shall not reimburse Contractor for travel, food and related
costs in excess of those permitted by the Internal Revenue Service.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-045
Northern California Power Agency and Trimark Associates, Inc.
Rev'd 5/2/2018

Page 20 of 23



EXHIBIT C
CERTIFICATION

Affidavit of Compliance for Contractors

(Name of person signing affidavit)(Title)

do hereby certify that background investigations to ascertain the accuracy of the identity
and employment history of all employees of

(Company name)
for contract work at:

LODI ENERGY CENTER, 12745 N. THORNTON ROAD, LODI, CA 95242

(Project name and location)

have been conducted as required by the California Energy Commission Decision for the
above-named project.

(Signature of officer or agent)

Dated this day of , 20

THIS AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE SHALL BE APPENDED TO THE PROJECT SECURITY
PLAN AND SHALL BE RETAINED AT ALL TIMES AT THE PROJECT SITE FOR REVIEW BY
THE CALIFORNIA ENERGY COMMISSION COMPLIANCE PROJECT MANAGER.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-045
Northern California Power Agency and Trimark Associates, Inc.
Rev'd 5/2/2018

Page 21 of 23



EXHIBIT D — NOT APPLICABLE
CERTIFICATION

Affidavit of Compliance for Hazardous Materials Transport Vendors

(Name of person signing affidavit)(Title)

do hereby certify that the below-named company has prepared and implemented security plans
in conformity with 49 CFR 172, subpart | and has conducted employee background
investigations in conformity with 49 CFR 172.802(a), as the same may be amended from time to
time,

(Company name)
for hazardous materials delivery to:

LODI ENERGY CENTER, 12745 N. THORNTON ROAD, LODI, CA 95242

(Project name and location)

as required by the California Energy Commission Decision for the above-named project.

(Signature of officer or agent)

Dated this day of , 20

THIS AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE SHALL BE APPENDED TO THE PROJECT SECURITY
PLAN AND SHALL BE RETAINED AT ALL TIMES AT THE PROJECT SITE FOR REVIEW BY
THE CALIFORNIA ENERGY COMMISSION COMPLIANCE PROJECT MANAGER.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-045
Northern California Power Agency and Trimark Associates, Inc.
Rev'd 5/2/2018

Page 22 of 23



EXHIBIT E - NOT APPLICABLE

ATTACHMENT A [from MLA]
AGREEMENT TO BE BOUND

MAINTENANCE LABOR AGREEMENT ATTACHMENT
LODI ENERGY CENTER PROJECT

The undersigned hereby certifies and agrees that:

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

DATED: Name of Employer

It is an Employer as that term is defined in Section 1.4 of the Lodi Energy Center Project
Maintenance Labor Agreement (“Agreement’ solely for the purposes of this Exhibit E)
because it has been, or will be, awarded a contract or subcontract to assign, award or
subcontract Covered Work on the Project (as defined in Section 1.2 and 2.1 of the
Agreement), or to authorize another party to assign, award or subcontract Covered
Work, or to perform Covered Work.

In consideration of the award of such contract or subcontract, and in further
consideration of the promises made in the Agreement and all attachments thereto (a
copy of which was received and is hereby acknowledged), it accepts and agrees to be
bound by the terms and condition of the Agreement, together with any and all
amendments and supplements now existing or which are later made thereto.

If it performs Covered Work, it will be bound by the legally established trust agreements
designated in local master collective bargaining agreements, and hereby authorizes the
parties to such local trust agreements to appoint trustees and successor trustee to
administer the trust funds, and hereby ratifies and accepts the trustees so appointed as
if made by the undersigned.

It has no commitments or agreements that would preclude its full and complete
compliance with the terms and conditions of the Agreement.

It will secure a duly executed Agreement to be Bound, in form identical to this
documents, from any Employer(s) at any tier or tiers with which it contracts to assign,
award, or subcontract Covered Work, or to authorize another party to assign, award or
subcontract Covered Work, or to perform Covered Work.

(Authorized Officer & Title)

(Address)

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-045
Northern California Power Agency and Trimark Associates, Inc.
Rev'd 5/2/2018

Page 23 of 23



A PUBLIC AGENCY

/ NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

Date: April 12, 2019
COMMISSION MEETING DATE:  April 25, 2019

SUBJECT: Pacific Power Engineers, Inc. - Five Year Multi-Task General Services Agreement
for revenue meter related (installation, maintenance, data acquisition, telemetry, etc.) services.
Applicable to the following projects: All NCPA Facility Locations, Members, SCPPA, and SCPPA
Members.

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

FROM: Tony Zimmer 1 v METHOD OF SELECTION:

Assistant General Manager NA

Division: Power Management If other, please describe:

Department: Industry Restructuring

IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members Cityof Lodi [ City of Shasta Lake []
Alameda Municipal Power [] City of Lompoc [] City of Ukiah [
San Franci;::i(B’a_lg_(r :;:; O City of Palo Alto [ Plumas-Sierra REC [
City of Biggs [ City of Redding [ Port of Oakland []
City of Gridley [ City of Roseville [1 Truckee Donner PUD T[]
City of Healdsburg [0  City of Santa Clara [J Other []

If other, please specify

SR: 144:19



Pacific Power Engineers, Inc. — 5 Year MTGSA
April 25, 2019
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approval of Resolution 19-31 authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a
Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Pacific Power Engineers, Inc. for revenue meter
related services, including any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the
NCPA General Counsel, and shall not exceed $2,000,000.00 over five years, for use at all
facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, its Members, by the Southern California Public Power
Authority (“SCPPA”), or by SCPPA Members.

It is recommend that this item be placed on the Commission Consent Calendar.

BACKGROUND:

Metering related services are required from time to time related to project support at facilities
owned and/or operated by NCPA, its Members, by the Southern California Public Power
Authority (“SCPPA”), or by SCPPA Members. Pacific Power Engineers, Inc. is a CAISO
approved provider of these services.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $2,000,000.00 to be used out of
the NCPA approved budget. Purchase orders referencing the terms and conditions of the
Agreement will be issued in accordance with NCPA'’s procurement policies and procedures.

SELECTION PROCESS:

This enabling agreement does not commit NCPA to any expenditure of funds. At the time
services are required, NCPA will bid the specific scope of work consistent with NCPA’s
procurement policies and procedures. NCPA will concurrently seek a bid from another qualified
provider (Trimark-Associates, Inc.) in order not to sole source and promote competitive bidding
whenever services are needed. NCPA will issue purchase orders based on cost and availability
of the services needed at the time the service is required.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the physical
environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

COMMITTEE REVIEW:

The recommendation was reviewed by the Facilities Committee on April 3, 2019, and was
recommended for Commission approval.

SR: 144:19



Pacific Power Engineers, Inc. — 5 Year MTGSA
April 25, 2019
Page 3

Respectfully submitted,

qw,,(,\ﬁ e

RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments (2):

¢ Resolution 19-31
e Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Pacific Power Engineers, Inc.

SR: 144:19



RESOLUTION 19-31

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
APPROVING A MULTI-TASK GENERAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH PACIFIC POWER
ENGINEERS, INC.

(reference Staff Report #144:19)

WHEREAS, meter related services are required at the facilities owned and/or operated by Northern
California Power Agency (NCPA), its Members, the Southern California Public Power Authority (SCPPA), and
SCPPA Members; and

WHEREAS, Pacific Power Engineers, Inc. is a provider of these services; and

WHEREAS, NCPA seeks to enter into a Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Pacific Power
Engineers Inc. to provide such services as needed at all NCPA Generation facility locations, Member, SCPPA,
and SCPPA Member facilities in an amount not to exceed $2,000,000.00 over five years; and

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency
authorizes the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-Task General Services Agreement with
Pacific Power Engineers, Inc., including any non-substantial changes as approved by the NCPA General
Counsel, and shall not exceed $2,000,000.00 for revenue meter related services for use at all facilities owned
and/or operated by NCPA, its Members, by the Southern California Public Power Authority (SCPPA), or by
SCPPA Members.

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of , 2019 by the following vote on roll call:

Vote Abstained Absent
Alameda
San Francisco BART
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc
Palo Alto
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Shasta Lake
Truckee Donner
Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

ROGER FRITH ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT
CHAIR ASSISTANT SECRETARY



& PLBLIC AGERCY

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER ABGENCY

MULTI-TASK
GENERAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY AND
PACIFIC POWER ENGINEERS, INC.

This Multi-Task General Services Agreement (“Agreement’) is made by and between the
Northern California Power Agency, a joint powers agency with its main office located at 651
Commerce Drive, Roseville, CA 95678-6420 (“Agency”) and Pacific Power Engineers, Inc. a
corporation, with its office located 9848 Business Park Drive, Suite C, Sacramento, CA 95827
(“Contractor”) (together sometimes referred to as the “Parties”) as of , 2019,
(“Effective Date”) in Roseville, California.

Section1. SCOPE OF WORK. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this
Agreement, Contractor is willing to provide to Agency the range of services and/or goods
described in the Scope of Work attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein ("Work").

11  Term of Agreement. The term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective
Date and shall end when Contractor completes the Work, or no later than five (5)
years from the date this Agreement was signed by Agency, whichever is shorter.

1.2 Standard of Performance. Contractor shall perform the Work in the manner
and according to the standards observed by a competent practitioner of the
profession in which Contractor is engaged and for which Contractor is providing
the Work. Contractor represents that it is licensed, qualified and experienced to
provide the Work set forth herein.

1.3  Assignment of Personnel. Contractor shall assign only competent personnel to
perform the Work. In the event that Agency, in its sole discretion, at any time
during the term of this Agreement, requests the reassignment of any such
personnel, Contractor shall, immediately upon receiving written notice from
Agency of such request, reassign such personnel.

1.4  Work Provided. Work provided under this Agreement by Contractor may
include Work directly to the Agency or, as requested by the Agency and
consistent with the terms of this Agreement, to Agency members, Southern
California Public Power Authority (“SCPPA”) or SCPPA members.

1.5 Request for Work to be Performed. At such time that Agency determines to
have Contractor perform Work under this Agreement, Agency shall issue a
Purchase Order. The Purchase Order shall identify the specific Work to be
performed ("Requested Work"), may include a not-to-exceed cap on monetary
cap on Requested Work and all related expenditures authorized by that
Purchase Order, and shall include a time by which the Requested Work shall be
completed. Contractor shall have seven calendar days from the date of the
Agency'’s issuance of the Purchase Order in which to respond in writing that
Contractor chooses not to perform the Requested Work. If Contractor agrees to
perform the Requested Work, begins to perform the Requested Work, or does
not respond within the seven day period specified, then Contractor will have

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-044
Northern California Power Agency and Pacific Power Engineers, Inc.
Rev'd 5/2/2018



Section 2.

agreed to perform the Requested Work on the terms set forth in the Purchase
Order, this Agreement and its Exhibits.

COMPENSATION. Agency hereby agrees to pay Contractor an amount NOT

TO EXCEED Two Million dollars ($2,000,000.00) for the Work, which shall include all fees,
costs, expenses and other reimbursables, as set forth in Contractor’s fee schedule, attached
hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit B. This dollar amount is not a guarantee that Agency
will pay that full amount to the Contractor, but is merely a limit of potential Agency expenditures
under this Agreement.

21

2.2

23

24

Invoices. Contractor shall submit invoices, not more often than once a month
during the term of this Agreement, based on the cost for services performed and
reimbursable costs incurred prior to the invoice date. Invoices shall contain the
following information:

The beginning and ending dates of the billing period;

Work performed,;

The Purchase Order number authorizing the Requested Work;

At Agency'’s option, for each work item in each task, a copy of the
applicable time entries or time sheets shall be submitted showing the
name of the person doing the work, the hours spent by each person, a
brief description of the work, and each reimbursable expense, with
supporting documentation, to Agency’s reasonable satisfaction;

= At Agency's option, the total number of hours of work performed under
the Agreement by Contractor and each employee, agent, and
subcontractor of Contractor performing work hereunder.

Invoices shall be sent to:

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, California 95678

Attn: Accounts Payable
AcctsPayable@ncpa.com

Monthly Payment. Agency shall make monthly payments, based on invoices
received, for Work satisfactorily performed, and for authorized reimbursable
costs incurred. Agency shall have thirty (30) days from the receipt of an invoice
that complies with all of the requirements above to pay Contractor.

Payment of Taxes. Contractor is solely responsible for the payment of all
federal, state and local taxes, including employment taxes, incurred under this
Agreement.

Authorization to Perform Work. The Contractor is not authorized to perform
any Work or incur any costs whatsoever under the terms of this Agreement until
receipt of a Purchase Order from the Contract Administrator.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-044
Northern California Power Agency and Pacific Power Engineers, Inc.

Rev'd §/2/2018

Page 2 of 22



2.5

Section 3.

Timing for Submittal of Final Invoice. Contractor shall have ninety (90) days

after completion of the Requested Work to submit its final invoice for the
Requested Work. In the event Contractor fails to submit an invoice to Agency for
any amounts due within the ninety (90) day period, Contractor is deemed to have
waived its right to collect its final payment for the Requested Work from Agency.

FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT. Except as set forth herein, Contractor shall, at

its sole cost and expense, provide all facilities and equipment that may be necessary to perform

the Work.

Section 4.

4.1

4.2

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS. Before beginning any Work under this
Agreement, Contractor, at its own cost and expense, shall procure the types and amounts of
insurance listed below and shall maintain the types and amounts of insurance listed below for
the period covered by this Agreement.

Workers’ Compensation. If Contractor employs any person, Contractor shall

maintain Statutory Workers’ Compensation Insurance and Employer’s Liability
Insurance for any and all persons employed directly or indirectly by Contractor
with limits of not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000.00) per accident.

Commercial General and Automobile Liability Insurance.

4.2.1

4.2.2

423

Commercial General Insurance. Contractor shall maintain commercial
general liability insurance for the term of this Agreement, including
products liability, covering any loss or liability, including the cost of
defense of any action, for bodily injury, death, personal injury and broad
form property damage which may arise out of the operations of
Contractor. The policy shall provide a minimum limit of $1,000,000 per
occurrence/$2,000,000 aggregate. Commercial general coverage shall
be at least as broad as ISO Commercial General Liability form CG 0001
(current edition) on "an occurrence” basis covering comprehensive
General Liability, with a self-insured retention or deductible of no more
than $100,000. No endorsement shall be attached limiting the coverage.

Automobile Liability. Contractor shall maintain automobile liability
insurance form CA 0001 (current edition) for the term of this Agreement
covering any loss or liability, including the cost of defense of any action,
arising from the operation, maintenance or use of any vehicle (symbol 1),
whether or not owned by the Contractor, on or off Agency premises. The
policy shall provide a minimum limit of $1,000,000 per each accident, with
a self-insured retention or deductible of no more than $100,000. This
insurance shall provide contractual liability covering all motor vehicles and
mobile equipment to the extent coverage may be excluded from general
liability insurance.

General Liability/Umbrella Insurance. The coverage amounts set forth
above may be met by a combination of underlying and umbrelia policies
as long as in combination the limits equal or exceed those stated.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-044
Northern California Power Agency and Pacific Power Engineers, Inc.

Rev'd 5/2/2018

Page 3 of 22



4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

Professional Liability Insurance. Contractor shall maintain professional liability
insurance appropriate to Contractor's profession performing work in connection
with this Agreement in an amount not less than one million dollars
($1,000,000.00) and two million dollars ($2,000,000) aggregate covering the
Contractor's errors and omissions. Any deductible or self-insured retention shall
not exceed two hundred fifty thousand doliars ($250,000.00) per claim. Such
insurance shall be on a “claims-made” basis, subject to the following conditions:
(1) the retroactive date of the policy shall be on or before the Effective Date of
this Agreement; (2) the policy shall be maintained for at least five (5) years after
completion of the Services and, if requested by Agency, evidence of coverage
shall be provided during this period; and (3) if, within five (5) years of completion
of the Services, coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with
another claims-made policy form with a retroactive date prior to the Effective
Date of this Agreement, Consultant shall purchase “extended reporting” coverage
for a minimum of five (5) years after completion of the Services and, if requested
by Agency, provide evidence of coverage during this period.

Pollution Insurance. Not Applicable.

All Policies Requirements.

4.51 Verification of coverage. Prior to beginning any work under this
Agreement, Contractor shall provide Agency with (1) a Certificate of
Insurance that demonstrates compliance with all applicable insurance
provisions contained herein and (2) policy endorsements to the policies
referenced in Section 4.2 and in Section 4.4, if applicable, adding the
Agency as an additional insured and declaring such insurance primary in
regard to work performed pursuant to this Agreement.

4.5.2 Notice of Reduction in or Cancellation of Coverage. Contractor shall
provide at least thirty (30) days prior written notice to Agency of any
reduction in scope or amount, cancellation, or modification adverse to
Agency of the policies referenced in Section 4.

4.5.3 Higher Limits. If Contractor maintains higher limits than the minimums
specified herein, the Agency shall be entitled to coverage for the higher
limits maintained by the Contractor.

4.5.4 Additional Certificates and Endorsements. If Contractor performs
Work for Agency members, SCPPA and/or SCPPA members pursuant to
this Agreement, Contractor shall provide the certificates of insurance and
policy endorsements, as referenced in Section 4.5.1, naming the specific
Agency member, SCPPA and/or SCPPA member for which the Work is to
be performed.

Waiver of Subrogation. Contractor agrees to waive subrogation which any
insurer of Contractor may acquire from Contractor by virtue of the payment of
any loss. Contractor agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-044
Northern California Power Agency and Pacific Power Engineers, Inc.

Rev'd 5/2/2018

Page 4 of 22



4.7

Section 5.

to effect this waiver of subrogation. The Workers' Compensation policy shall be
endorsed with a waiver of subrogation in favor of Agency for all work performed
by Contractor, its employees, agents and subcontractors.

Contractor's Obligation. Contractor shall be solely responsible for ensuring
that all equipment, vehicles and other items utilized in the performance of Work
are operated, provided or otherwise utilized in a manner that ensures they are
and remain covered by the policies referenced in Section 4 during this
Agreement. Contractor shall also ensure that all workers involved in the
provision of Work are properly classified as employees, agents or independent
contractors and are and remain covered by any and all workers' compensation
insurance required by applicable law during this Agreement.

INDEMNIFICATION AND CONTRACTOR'’S RESPONSIBILITIES.

5.1

5.2

5.3

Section 6.

Effect of Insurance. Agency's acceptance of insurance certificates and
endorsements required under this Agreement does not relieve Contractor from
liability under this indemnification and hold harmless clause. This indemnification
and hold harmless clause shall apply to any damages or claims for damages
whether or not such insurance policies shall have been determined to apply. By
execution of this Agreement, Contractor acknowledges and agrees to the
provisions of this section and that it is a material element of consideration.

Scope. Contractor shall indemnify, defend with counsel reasonably acceptable
to the Agency, and hold harmless the Agency and its officials, commissioners,
officers, employees, and volunteers from and against any and all claims to the
extent that the claims arise out of, pertain to or relate to the negligence,
recklessness or willful misconduct of the Contractor in its performance of Work
under this Agreement. Contractor shall bear all losses, costs, damages, expense
and liability of every kind, nature and description to the extent that they arise out
of, pertain to, or relate to such claims, whether directly or indirectly (“Liabilities”).
Such obligations to defend, hold harmless and indemnify the Agency shall not
apply to the extent that such Liabilities are caused by the negligence, active
negligence, or willful misconduct of the Agency.

Transfer of Title. Not Applicable.
STATUS OF CONTRACTOR.

6.1

Independent Contractor. Contractor is an independent contractor and not an
employee of Agency. Agency shall have the right to control Contractor only
insofar as the results of Contractor's Work and assignment of personnel pursuant
to Section 1; otherwise, Agency shall not have the right to control the means by
which Contractor accomplishes Work rendered pursuant to this Agreement.
Notwithstanding any other Agency, state, or federal policy, rule, regulation, law,
or ordinance to the contrary, Contractor and any of its employees, agents, and
subcontractors providing services under this Agreement shall not qualify for or
become entitled to, and hereby agree to waive any and all claims to, any

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-044
Northern California Power Agency and Pacific Power Engineers, inc.

Rev'd 5/2/2018

Page 5 of 22



6.2

6.3

compensation, benefit, or any incident of employment by Agency, including but
not limited to eligibility to enroll in the California Public Employees Retirement
System (PERS) as an employee of Agency and entitlement to any contribution to
be paid by Agency for employer contributions and/or employee contributions for
PERS benefits.

Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency for the payment of
any employee and/or employer contributions for PERS benefits on behalf of
Contractor or its employees, agents, or subcontractors, as well as for the
payment of any penalties and interest on such contributions, which would
otherwise be the responsibility of Agency. Contractor and Agency acknowledge
and agree that compensation paid by Agency to Contractor under this Agreement
is based upon Contractor’s estimated costs of providing the Work, including
salaries and benefits of employees, agents and subcontractors of Contractor.

Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency from any lawsuit,
administrative action, or other claim for penalties, losses, costs, damages,
expense and liability of every kind, nature and description that arise out of,
pertain to, or relate to such claims, whether directly or indirectly, due to
Contractor’s failure to secure workers’ compensation insurance for its
employees, agents, or subcontractors.

Contractor agrees that it is responsible for the provision of group healthcare
benefits to its fulitime employees under 26 U.S.C. § 4980H of the Affordable
Care Act. To the extent permitted by law, Contractor shall indemnify, defend and
hold harmless Agency from any penalty issued to Agency under the Affordable
Care Act resulting from the performance of the Services by any employee, agent,
or subcontractor of Contractor.

Contractor Not Agent. Except as Agency may specify in writing, Contractor
shall have no authority, express or implied, to act on behalf of Agency in any
capacity whatsoever as an agent. Contractor shall have no authority, express or
implied, pursuant to this Agreement to bind Agency to any obligation whatsoever.

Assignment and Subcontracting. This Agreement contemplates personal
performance by Contractor and is based upon a determination of Contractor’s
unique professional competence, experience, and specialized professional
knowledge. A substantial inducement to Agency for entering into this Agreement
was and is the personal reputation and competence of Contractor. Contractor
may not assign this Agreement or any interest therein without the prior written
approval of the Agency. Contractor shall not subcontract any portion of the
performance contemplated and provided for herein, other than to the
subcontractors identified in Exhibit A, without prior written approval of the
Agency. Where written approval is granted by the Agency, Contractor shall
supervise all work subcontracted by Contractor in performing the Work and shall
be responsible for all work performed by a subcontractor as if Contractor itself
had performed such work. The subcontracting of any work to subcontractors
shall not relieve Contractor from any of its obligations under this Agreement with

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-044
Northern California Power Agency and Pacific Power Engineers, Inc.

Rev'd 5/2/2018

Page 6 of 22



6.4

6.5

6.6

Section 7.

71

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

respect to the Work and Contractor is obligated to ensure that any and all
subcontractors performing any Work shall be fully insured in all respects and to
the same extent as set forth under Section 4, to Agency’s satisfaction.

Certification as to California Energy Commission. If requested by the
Agency, Contractor shall, at the same time it executes this Agreement, execute
Exhibit C.

Certification as to California Energy Commission Regarding Hazardous
Materials Transport Vendors. If requested by the Agency, Contractor shall, at
the same time it executes this Agreement, execute Exhibit D.

Maintenance Labor Agreement. If the Work is subject to the terms of one or
more Maintenance Labor Agreements, which are applicable only to certain types
of construction, repair and/or maintenance projects, then Contractor shall
execute Exhibit E and/or similar documentation as to compliance.

LEGAL REQUIREMENTS.

Governing Law. The laws of the State of California shall govern this
Agreement.

Compliance with Applicable Laws. Contractor and its subcontractors and
agents, if any, shall comply with all laws applicable to the performance of the
work hereunder.

Licenses and Permits. Contractor represents and warrants to Agency that
Contractor and its employees, agents, and subcontractors (if any) have and will
maintain at their sole expense during the term of this Agreement all licenses,
permits, qualifications, and approvals of whatever nature that are legally required
to practice their respective professions.

Monitoring by DIR. The Work is subject to compliance monitoring and
enforcement by the Department of Industrial Relations.

Registration with DIR. During the term of this Agreement, Contractor warrants
that it is registered with the Department of Industrial Relations and qualified to
perform Work consistent with Labor Code section 1725.5.

Prevailing Wage Rates. In accordance with California Labor Code Section
1771, not less than the general prevailing rate of per diem wages for work of a
similar character in the locality in which the Work is to be performed, and not less
than the general prevailing rate of per diem wages for holiday and overtime work
as provided in the California Labor Code must be paid to all workers engaged in
performing the Work. In accordance with California Labor Code Section 1770
and following, the Director of Industrial Relations has determined the general
prevailing wage per diem rates for the locality in which the Work is to be
performed; the Agency has obtained the general prevailing rate of per diem

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-044
Northern California Power Agency and Pacific Power Engineers, Inc.

Rev'd 5/2/2018

Page 7 of 22



Section 8.

wages and the general rate for holiday and overtime work in the locality in which
the Work is to be performed for each craft, classification or type of worker
needed to perform the project; and copies of the prevailing rate of per diem
wages are on file at the Agency and will be made available on request.
Throughout the performance of the Work, Contractor must comply with all
applicable laws and regulations that apply to wages earned in performance of the
Work. Contractor assumes all responsibility for such payments and shall defend,
indemnify and hold the Agency harmless from any and all claims made by the
State of California, the Department of Industrial Relations, any subcontractor, any
worker or any other third party with regard thereto.

Additionally, in accordance with the California Administrative Code, Title 8, Group
3, Article 2, Section 16000, Publication of Prevailing Wage Rates by Awarding
Bodies, copies of the applicable determination of the Director can be found on
the web at: http://www.dir.ca.gov/DLSR/PWD/ and may be reviewed at any time.

Contractor shall be required to submit to the Agency during the contract period,
copies of Public Works payroll reporting information per California Department of
Industrial Relations, Form A- 1-131 (New 2-80) concerning work performed under
this Agreement.

Contractor shall comply with applicable law, including Labor Code Sections 1774
and 1775. In accordance with Section 1775, Contractor shall forfeit as a penalty
to Agency $50.00 for each calendar day or portion thereof, for each worker paid
less than the prevailing rates as determined by the Director of Industrial
Relations for such work or craft in which such worker is employed for any Work
done under the Agreement by Contractor or by any subcontractor under
Contractor in violation of the provisions of the Labor Code and in particular,
Labor Code Sections 1770 et seq. In addition to the penalty and pursuant to
Section 1775, the difference between such prevailing wage rates and the amount
paid to each worker for each calendar day or portion thereof for which each
worker was paid less than the prevailing wage rate shall be paid to each worker
by the Contractor.

TERMINATION AND MODIFICATION.

8.1

8.2

Termination. Agency may cancel this Agreement at any time and without cause
upon ten (10) days prior written notice to Contractor.

In the event of termination, Contractor shall be entitled to compensation for Work
satisfactorily completed as of the effective date of termination; Agency, however,
may condition payment of such compensation upon Contractor delivering to
Agency any or all records or documents (as referenced in Section 9.1 hereof).

Amendments. The Parties may amend this only by a writing signed by both of
the Parties.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-044
Northern California Power Agency and Pacific Power Engineers, Inc.

Rev'd 5/2/2018

Page 8 of 22



8.3

8.4

Section 9.

9.1

9.2

9.3

Survival. All obligations arising prior to the termination of this Agreement and all
provisions of this Agreement allocating liability between Agency and Contractor
shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

Options upon Breach by Contractor. |f Contractor materially breaches any of
the terms of this Agreement, including but not limited to those set forth in Section
4, Agency’s remedies shall include, but not be limited to, the following:

8.4.1 Immediately terminate the Agreement;

8.4.2 Retain the plans, specifications, drawings, reports, design documents,
and any other work product prepared by Contractor pursuant to this
Agreement;

8.4.3 Retain a different Contractor to complete the Work not finished by
Contractor; and/or

8.4.4 Charge Contractor the difference between the costs to complete the Work
that is unfinished at the time of breach and the amount that Agency would
have paid Contractor pursuant hereto if Contractor had completed the
Work.

EEPING AND STATUS OF RECORDS.

Records Created as Part of Contractor’s Performance. All reports, data,
maps, models, charts, studies, surveys, photographs, memoranda, plans,
studies, specifications, records, files, or any other documents or materials, in
electronic or any other form, that Contractor prepares or obtains pursuant to this
Agreement and that relate to the matters covered hereunder shall be the property
of the Agency. Contractor hereby agrees to deliver those documents to the
Agency upon termination of the Agreement. Agency and Contractor agree that,
unless approved by Agency in writing, Contractor shall not release to any non-
parties to this Agreement any data, plans, specifications, reports and other
documents.

Contractor’s Books and Records. Contractor shall maintain any and all
records or other documents evidencing or relating to charges for Work or
expenditures and disbursements charged to the Agency under this Agreement
for a minimum of three (3) years, or for any longer period required by law, from
the date of final payment to the Contractor under this Agreement.

Inspection and Audit of Records. Any records or documents that this
Agreement requires Contractor to maintain shall be made available for
inspection, audit, and/or copying at any time during regular business hours, upon
oral or written request of the Agency. Under California Government Code
Section 8546.7, if the amount of public funds expended under this Agreement
exceeds ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00), the Agreement shall be subject to
the examination and audit of the State Auditor, at the request of Agency or as

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-044
Northern California Power Agency and Pacific Power Engineers, Inc.

Rev'd 5/2/2018

Page 9 of 22



9.4

part of any audit of the Agency, for a period of three (3) years after final payment
under this Agreement.

Confidential Information and Disclosure.

9.4.1

9.4.2

9.4.3

9.4.4

Confidential Information. The term "Confidential Information”, as used
herein, shall mean any and all confidential, proprietary, or trade secret
information, whether written, recorded, electronic, oral or otherwise,
where the Confidential Information is made available in a tangible
medium of expression and marked in a prominent location as confidential,
proprietary and/or trade secret information. Confidential Information shall
not include information that: (a) was already known to the Receiving Party
or is otherwise a matter of public knowledge, (b) was disclosed to
Receiving Party by a third party without violating any confidentiality
agreement, (c) was independently developed by Receiving Party without
reverse engineering, as evidenced by written records thereof, or (d) was
not marked as Confidential Information in accordance with this section.

Non-Disclosure of Confidential Information. During the term of this
Agreement, either party may disclose (the “Disclosing Party”) Confidential
Information to the other party (the “Receiving Party”). The Receiving
Party: (a) shall hold the Disclosing Party's Confidential Information in
confidence; and (b) shall take all reasonable steps to prevent any
unauthorized possession, use, copying, transfer or disclosure of such
Confidential Information.

Permitted Disclosure. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the following
disclosures of Confidential Information are allowed. Receiving Party shall
endeavor to provide prior written notice to Disclosing Party of any
permitted disclosure made pursuant to Section 9.4.3.2 or 9.4.3.3.
Disclosing Party may seek a protective order, including without limitation,
a temporary restraining order to prevent or contest such permitted
disclosure; provided, however, that Disclosing Party shall seek such
remedies at its sole expense. Neither party shall have any liability for
such permitted disclosures:

9.4.3.1 Disclosure to employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors or
other representatives of Receiving Party that have a need to know
in connection with this Agreement.

9.4.3.2 Disclosure in response to a valid order of a court, government or
regulatory agency or as may otherwise be required by law; and

9.4.3.3 Disclosure by Agency in response to a request pursuant to the
California Public Records Act.

Handling of Confidential Information. Upon conclusion or termination
of the Agreement, Receiving Party shall return to Disclosing Party or

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-044
Northern California Power Agency and Pacific Power Engineers, Inc.

Rev'd 5/2/2018

Page 10 of 22



Section 10.

10.1

10.2

10.3

destroy Confidential Information (including all copies thereof), if requested
by Disclosing Party in writing. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the
Receiving Party may retain copies of such Confidential Information,
subject to the confidentiality provisions of this Agreement: (a) for archival
purposes in its computer system; (b) in its legal department files; and (c)
in files of Receiving Party's representatives where such copies are
necessary to comply with applicable law. Party shall not disclose the
Disclosing Party’s Information to any person other than those of the
Receiving Party’s employees, agents, consultants, contractors and
subcontractors who have a need to know in connection with this
Agreement.

PROJECT SITE.

Operations at the Project Site. Each Project site may include the power plant
areas, all buildings, offices, and other locations where Work is to be performed,
including any access roads. Contractor shall perform the Work in such a manner
as to cause a minimum of interference with the operations of the Agency; if
applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work, as referenced
in Section 1.4; and other contractors at the Project site and to protect all persons
and property thereon from damage or injury. Upon completion of the Work at a
Project site, Contractor shall leave such Project site clean and free of all tools,
equipment, waste materials and rubbish, stemming from or relating to
Contractor's Work.

Contractor's Equipment, Tools, Supplies and Materials. Contractor shall be
solely responsible for the transportation, loading and unloading, and storage of
any equipment, tools, supplies or materials required for performing the Work,
whether owned, leased or rented. Neither Agency nor, if applicable, the entity for
which Contractor is performing the Work, as referenced in Section 1.4, will be
responsible for any such equipment, supplies or materials which may be lost,
stolen or damaged or for any additional rental charges for such. Equipment,
tools, supplies and materials left or stored at a Project site, with or without
permission, is at Contractor’s sole risk. Anything left on the Project site an
unreasonable length of time after the Work is completed shall be presumed to
have been abandoned by the Contractor. Any transportation furnished by
Agency or, if applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work,
as referenced in Section 1.4, shall be solely as an accommodation and neither
Agency nor, if applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work,
as referenced in Section 1.4, shall have liability therefor. Contractor shall
assume the risk and is solely responsible for its owned, non-owned and hired
automobiles, trucks or other motorized vehicles as well as any equipment, tools,
supplies, materials or other property which is utilized by Contractor on the Project
site. All materials and supplies used by Contractor in the Work shall be new and
in good condition.

Use of Agency Equipment. Contractor shall assume the risk and is solely
responsible for its use of any equipment owned and property provided by Agency

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-044
Northern California Power Agency and Pacific Power Engineers, Inc.

Rev’d 5/2/2018

Page 11 of 22



Section 11.

111

11.2

1.3

Section 12.

and, if applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work, as
referenced in Section 1.4, for the performance of Work.

WARRANTY.

Nature of Work. In addition to any and all warranties provided or implied by law
or public policy, Contractor warrants that all Work shall be free from defects in
design and workmanship, and that Contractor shall perform all Work in
accordance with applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules and regulations
including engineering, construction and other codes and standards and prudent
electrical utility standards, and in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.

Deficiencies in Work. In addition to all other rights and remedies which Agency
may have, Agency shall have the right to require, and Contractor shall be
obligated at its own expense to perform, all further Work which may be required
to correct any deficiencies which result from Contractor’s failure to perform any
Work in accordance with the standards required by this Agreement. If during the
term of this Agreement or the one (1) year period following completion of the
Work, any equipment, supplies or other materials or Work used or provided by
Contractor under this Agreement fails due to defects in material and/or
workmanship or other breach of this Agreement, Contractor shall, upon any
reasonable written notice from Agency, replace or repair the same to Agency's
satisfaction.

Assignment of Warranties. Contractor hereby assigns to Agency all additional
warranties, extended warranties, or benefits like warranties, such as insurance,
provided by or reasonably obtainable from suppliers of equipment and material
used in the Work.

HEALTH AND SAFETY PROGRAMS. The Contractor shall establish, maintain,

and enforce safe work practices, and implement an accident/incident prevention program
intended to ensure safe and healthful operations under their direction. The program shall
include all requisite components of such a program under Federal, State and local regulations
and shall comply with all site programs established by Agency and, if applicable, the entity for
which Contractor is performing the Work, as referenced in Section 1.4.

121

12.2

12.3

Contractor is responsible for acquiring job hazard assessments as necessary to
safely perform the Work and provide a copy to Agency upon request.

Contractor is responsible for providing all employee health and safety training
and personal protective equipment in accordance with potential hazards that may
be encountered in performance of the Work and provide copies of the certified
training records upon request by Agency. Contractor shall be responsible for
proper maintenance and/or disposal of their personal protective equipment and
material handling equipment.

Contractor is responsible for ensuring that its lower-tier subcontractors are aware
of and will comply with the requirements set forth herein.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-044
Northern California Power Agency and Pacific Power Engineers, Inc.

Rev'd 5/2/2018

Page 12 of 22



12.4

12.5

12.6

12,7

12.8

12.9

12.10

Section 13.

Agency, or its representatives, may periodically monitor the safety performance
of the Contractor performing the Work. Contractors and its subcontractors shall
be required to comply with the safety and health obligations as established in the
Agreement. Non-compliance with safety, health, or fire requirements may result
in cessation of work activities, until items in non-compliance are corrected. Itis
also expressly acknowledged, understood and agreed that no payment shall be
due from Agency to Contractor under this Agreement at any time when, or for
any Work performed when, Contractor is not in full compliance with this Section
12.

Contractor shall immediately report any injuries to the Agency site safety
representative. Additionally, the Contractor shall investigate and submit to the
Agency site safety representative copies of all written accident reports, and
coordinate with Agency if further investigation is requested.

Contractor shall take all reasonable steps and precautions to protect the health of
its employees and other site personnel with regard to the Work. Contractor shall
conduct occupational health monitoring and/or sampling to determine levels of
exposure of its employees to hazardous or toxic substances or environmental
conditions, as applicable. Copies of any sampling results will be forwarded to the
Agency site safety representative upon request.

Contractor shall develop a plan to properly handle and dispose of any hazardous
wastes, if any, Contractor generates in performing the Work.

Contractor shall advise its employees and subcontractors that any employee who
jeopardizes his/her safety and health, or the safety and health of others, may be
subject to actions including removal from Work.

Contractor shall, at the sole option of the Agency, develop and provide to the
Agency a Hazardous Material Spill Response Plan that includes provisions for
spill containment and clean-up, emergency contact information including
regulatory agencies and spill sampling and analysis procedures. Hazardous
Materials shall include diesel fuel used for trucks owned or leased by the
Contractor.

If Contractor is providing Work to an Agency Member, SCPPA or SCPPA
member (collectively “Member” solely for the purpose of this section) pursuant to
Section 1.4 hereof, then that Member shall have the same rights as the Agency
under Sections 12.1, 12.2, 12.4, 12.5, and 12.6 hereof.

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS.

13.1

Attorneys’ Fees. If a party to this Agreement brings any action, including an
action for declaratory relief, to enforce or interpret the provision of this
Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys’ fees in
addition to any other relief to which that party may be entitled. The court may set
such fees in the same action or in a separate action brought for that purpose.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-044
Northern California Power Agency and Pacific Power Engineers, Inc.

Rev'd 5/2/2018

Page 13 of 22



13.2

13.3

13.4

Venue. In the event that either party brings any action against the other under
this Agreement, the Parties agree that trial of such action shall be vested
exclusively in the state courts of California in the County of Placer or in the
United States District Court for the Eastern District of California.

Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision
of this Agreement is invalid, void, or unenforceable, the provisions of this
Agreement not so adjudged shall remain in full force and effect. The invalidity in
whole or in part of any provision of this Agreement shall not void or affect the
validity of any other provision of this Agreement.

No Implied Waiver of Breach. The waiver of any breach of a specific provision
of this Agreement does not constitute a waiver of any other breach of that term or
any other term of this Agreement.

13.5 Successors and Assigns. The provisions of this Agreement shall inure to the
benefit of and shall apply to and bind the successors and assigns of the Parties.

13.6 Conflict of Interest. Contractor may serve other clients, but none whose
activities within the corporate limits of Agency or whose business, regardless of
location, would place Contractor in a “conflict of interest,” as that term is defined
in the Political Reform Act, codified at California Government Code Section
81000 et seq.

Contractor shall not employ any Agency official in the work performed pursuant
to this Agreement. No officer or employee of Agency shall have any financial
interest in this Agreement that would violate California Government Code
Sections 1090 et seq.

13.7 Contract Administrator. This Agreement shall be administered by Tony
Zimmer, Assistant General Manager, or his/her designee, who shall act as the
Agency’s representative. All correspondence shall be directed to or through the
representative.

13.8 Notices. Any written notice to Contractor shall be sent to:

Christian Arechavaleta
Process Manager
Pacific Power Engineers, Inc.
0848 Business Park Dr, Suite C
Sacramento, CA 95827
Any written notice to Agency shall be sent to:
Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-044

Northern California Power Agency and Pacific Power Engineers, Inc.

Rev'd 5/2/2018

Page 14 of 22



Randy S. Howard

General Manager

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, CA 95678

With a copy to:

Jane E. Luckhardt

General Counsel

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, CA 95678

13.9 Professional Seal. Where applicable in the determination of the Agency, the
first page of a technical report, first page of design specifications, and each page
of construction drawings shall be stamped/sealed and signed by the licensed
professional responsible for the report/design preparation.

13.10 Integration; Incorporation. This Agreement, including all the exhibits attached
hereto, represents the entire and integrated agreement between Agency and
Contractor and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or
agreements, either written or oral. All exhibits attached hereto are incorporated
by reference herein.

13.11 Alternative Dispute Resolution. If any dispute arises between the Parties that
cannot be settled after engaging in good faith negotiations, Agency and
Contractor agree to resolve the dispute in accordance with the following:

13.11.1 Each party shall designate a senior management or executive
level representative to negotiate any dispute;

13.11.2 The representatives shall attempt, through good faith negotiations,
to resolve the dispute by any means within their authority.

13.11.3 If the issue remains unresolved after fifteen (15) days of good faith
negotiations, the Parties shall attempt to resolve the disagreement
by negotiation between legal counsel. If the above process fails,
the Parties shall resolve any remaining disputes through
mediation to expedite the resolution of the dispute.

13.11.4 The mediation process shall provide for the selection within fifteen
(15) days by both Parties of a disinterested third person as
mediator, shall be commenced within thirty (30) days and shall be
concluded within fifteen (15) days from the commencement of the
mediation.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-044
Northern California Power Agency and Pacific Power Engineers, Inc.
Rev'd 5/2/2018

Page 15 of 22



13.12

13.13

13.14

13.15

m

m

i

13.11.5 The Parties shall equally bear the costs of any third party in any
alternative dispute resolution process.

13.11.6 The alternative dispute resolution process is a material condition
to this Agreement and must be exhausted as an administrative
remedy prior to either Party initiating legal action. This alternative
dispute resolution process is not intended to nor shall be
construed to change the time periods for filing a claim or action
specified by Government Code §§ 900 et seq.

Controlling Provisions. In the case of any conflict between the terms of this
Agreement and the Exhibits hereto, a Purchase Order, or Contractor's Proposal
(if any), the Agreement shall control. In the case of any conflict between the
Exhibits hereto and a Purchase Order or the Contractor's Proposal, the Exhibits
shall control. In the case of any conflict between the terms of a Purchase Order
and the Contractor’'s Proposal, the Purchase Order shall control.

Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each
of which shall be an original and all of which together shall constitute one
agreement.

Construction of Agreement. Each party hereto has had an equivalent
opportunity to participate in the drafting of the Agreement and/or to consult with
legal counsel. Therefore, the usual construction of an agreement against the
drafting party shall not apply hereto.

No Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is made solely for the benefit of
the parties hereto, with no intent to benefit any non-signator third parties.
However, should Contractor provide Work to an Agency member, SCPPA or
SCPPA member (collectively for the purpose of this section only “Member”)
pursuant to Section 1.4, the parties recognize that such Member may be a third
party beneficiary solely as to the Purchase Order and Requested Work relating to
such Member.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-044
Northern California Power Agency and Pacific Power Engineers, Inc.

Rev'd 5/2/2018

Page 16 of 22



The Parties have executed this Agreement as of the date signed by the Agency.

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY PACIFIC POWER ENGINEERS, INC.

Date Date
RANDY S. HOWARD, General Manager DEREK STEWART, P.E., President
Attest:

Assistant Secretary of the Commission
Approved as to Form:

Jane E. Luckhardt, General Counsel

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-044
Northern California Power Agency and Pacific Power Engineers, Inc.

Rev'd 5/2/2018
Page 17 of 22



EXHIBIT A
SCOPE OF WORK

Pacific Power Engineers, Inc. (Contractor) shall provide maintenance services, operations
services, and data services as requested by the Northern California Power Agency (Agency) at
any facilities owned or operated by Agency, its Members, Southern California Public Power
Authority (SCPPA) or SCPPA members.

The services include, but are not limited to the following:

Meter Services

e Maintenance, installation, replacement, emergency support, and calibration of meters,
PTs, CTs, software, interface devices, etc.

o Engineering, design, commissioning, and certification of meters

s Meter reading, SQMD Acquisition, validation, presentation of customers meter data and
transmittal of data to the CAISO

RIG-DPG

e Maintenance, installation, replacement, emergency support, software, interface devices,
etc. '
o Engineering, design, commissioning, and certification

Miscellaneous Services

¢ NERC CIP compliance consulting

e New Resource Implementation (NRI) Support

o Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition systems (SCADA) services
e Onsite and Remote Network Communication Support Services

e Project management

¢ Network architecture and security support

e Automated Generation Control Implementation

¢ Database management and commercial hosting services

e WREGIS and CAISO SQMD monthly submittals

e Meteorological Weather Station sales, installation, service, and support
e Cellular service

e Telemetry Support

e Micro Grid Management

e Material/Hardware Only Purchases

No project under this Agreement shall include Work that would qualify as a Public Works Project
under the California Public Contract Code.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-044
Northern California Power Agency and Pacific Power Engineers, Inc.
Rev'd 5/2/2018

Page 18 of 22



EXHIBIT B

HOURLY FEES

Compensation for all Work, including hourly fees and expenses, shall not exceed the amount
set forth in Section 2 of this Agreement. The hourly rates and/or compensation breakdown and
an estimated amount of expenses is as follows:

Labor Rates

Project Management
Senior Engineer
SCADA Engineer
Associate Engineering
CAISO Inspector
RIG Engineer
Technician
Fabrication Specialist
Designer

Staff

Labor Rate Adjustments
Expedited Services
Holiday Services

On-site Time

On-site Overtime

Other Direct Costs
Travel Per Diem*
Airline Ticket

Mileage

Drawings up to E size
Other Expenses

Miscellaneous Project Hardware

Omicron CT Analyzer
Omicron CMC 356

$225/hr.
$215/hr.
$195/hr.
$185/hr.
$180/hr.
$180/hr.
$175/hr.
$165/hr.
$150/hr.
$125/hr.

1.4 times above rates for less than one-week notices
2.0 times above rates for services on Holidays
Above rate for 50 hours M-F

1.4 times above rates for Sat/Sun or >50 hrs. M-F

$275/day

Coach Fare

Published IRS mileage rate at time of travel
$10/copy

Cost

Cost plus 10%

$2,000/wk. plus shipping cost (1-week minimum)
$2,000/wk. plus shipping cost (1-week minimum)

Items included in the rate and not billed separately are the following:

e Phone charges

e 11 x 17 or smaller document handling: faxes, photocopies, document standard shipping

(original and one copy)

e Computer and software use (ASPEN Oneliner, MS Office, MS Project, MS Visio,
Mathcad, SEL-5010, SEL-5030, DLPSET, ALPS Set, AutoCAD LT)

NOTE: As a public agency, NCPA shall not reimburse Contractor for travel, food and related
costs in excess of those permitted by the Internal Revenue Service.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between

GS-VEN-2019-044

Northern California Power Agency and Pacific Power Engineers, Inc.

Rev'd 5/2/2018

Page 19 of 22



EXHIBIT C
CERTIFICATION

Affidavit of Compliance for Contractors

(Name of person signing affidavit)(Title)

do hereby certify that background investigations to ascertain the accuracy of the identity
and employment history of all employees of

(Company name)
for contract work at:

LODI ENERGY CENTER, 12745 N. THORNTON ROAD, LODI, CA 95242

(Project name and location)

have been conducted as required by the California Energy Commission Decision for the
above-named project.

(Signature of officer or agent)

Dated this day of , 20

THIS AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE SHALL BE APPENDED TO THE PROJECT SECURITY
PLAN AND SHALL BE RETAINED AT ALL TIMES AT THE PROJECT SITE FOR REVIEW BY
THE CALIFORNIA ENERGY COMMISSION COMPLIANCE PROJECT MANAGER.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-044
Northern California Power Agency and Pacific Power Engineers, Inc.
Rev'd 5/2/2018 '

Page 20 of 22



EXHIBIT D - NOT APPLICABLE
CERTIFICATION

Affidavit of Compliance for Hazardous Materials Transport Vendors

(Name of person signing affidavit)(Title)

do hereby certify that the below-named company has prepared and implemented security plans
in conformity with 49 CFR 172, subpart | and has conducted employee background
investigations in conformity with 49 CFR 172.802(a), as the same may be amended from time to
time,

(Company name)
for hazardous materials delivery to:

LODI ENERGY CENTER, 12745 N. THORNTON ROAD, LODI, CA 95242

(Project name and location)

as required by the California Energy Commission Decision for the above-named project.

(Signature of officer or agent)

Dated this day of ,20

THIS AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE SHALL BE APPENDED TO THE PROJECT SECURITY
PLAN AND SHALL BE RETAINED AT ALL TIMES AT THE PROJECT SITE FOR REVIEW BY
THE CALIFORNIA ENERGY COMMISSION COMPLIANCE PROJECT MANAGER.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-044
Northern California Power Agency and Pacific Power Engineers, Inc.
Rev'd 5/2/2018

Page 21 of 22



EXHIBIT E - NOT APPLICABLE

ATTACHMENT A [from MLA]
AGREEMENT TO BE BOUND

MAINTENANCE LABOR AGREEMENT ATTACHMENT
LODI ENERGY CENTER PROJECT

The undersigned hereby certifies and agrees that:

1)

3)

4)

5)

DATED: Name of Employer

It is an Employer as that term is defined in Section 1.4 of the Lodi Energy Center Project
Maintenance Labor Agreement (“Agreement” solely for the purposes of this Exhibit E)
because it has been, or will be, awarded a contract or subcontract to assign, award or
subcontract Covered Work on the Project (as defined in Section 1.2 and 2.1 of the
Agreement), or to authorize another party to assign, award or subcontract Covered
Work, or to perform Covered Work.

In consideration of the award of such contract or subcontract, and in further
consideration of the promises made in the Agreement and all attachments thereto (a
copy of which was received and is hereby acknowledged), it accepts and agrees to be
bound by the terms and condition of the Agreement, together with any and all
amendments and supplements now existing or which are later made thereto.

If it performs Covered Work, it will be bound by the legally established trust agreements
designated in local master collective bargaining agreements, and hereby authorizes the
parties to such local trust agreements to appoint trustees and successor trustee to
administer the trust funds, and hereby ratifies and accepts the trustees so appointed as
if made by the undersigned.

It has no commitments or agreements that would preclude its full and complete
compliance with the terms and conditions of the Agreement.

It will secure a duly executed Agreement to be Bound, in form identical to this
documents, from any Employer(s) at any tier or tiers with which it contracts to assign,
award, or subcontract Covered Work, or to authorize another party to assign, award or
subcontract Covered Work, or to perform Covered Work.

(Authorized Officer & Title)

(Address)

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-044
Northern California Power Agency and Pacific Power Engineers, Inc.
Rev'd 5/2/2018

Page 22 of 22



A PUBLIC AGENCY

NCPA

/ NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

Date: April 12, 2019

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:

April 25, 2019

SUBJECT: Approval of Letter of Agreement 19-SNR-02239

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

Division: Power Management

Department: Power Management

AGM, Power Management N/A

If other, please describe:

FROM: Tony Zimmer 7 V METHOD OF SELECTION:

IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members

O

X

Alameda Municipal Power

San Francisco Bay Area
Rapid Transit

O

X

City of Biggs

X

City of Gridley

X

City of Healdsburg

X

City of Lodi

X

City of Lompoc
City of Palo Alto

City of Redding

City of Roseville

o O 0O 0O

City of Santa Clara

If other, please specify

City of Shasta Lake
City of Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra REC

Port of Oakland
Truckee Donner PUD

Other

X X X O

o O

SR: 145:19

Lo



Approval of Letter of Agreement 19-SNR-02239
04/25/2019
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

NCPA staff recommends that the Commission adopt and approve Letter of Agreement 19-SNR-
02239, and authorize the General Manager of NCPA to execute Letter of Agreement 19-SNR-
02239, on behalf of NCPA, including any non-substantive modifications to Letter of Agreement
19-SNR-02239 approved by NCPA’s General Counsel.

BACKGROUND:

Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) members are subject to a variety of environmental
mandates that require the use of Renewable Energy Credits (RECs) to demonstrate compliance
with the state’s legislative mandate and goal that a significant portion of retail sales be served by
renewable energy resources.

The NCPA members are preference power customers of Western Area Power Administration
(WAPA), and purchase a percentage share of the Base Resource product, which consists of
various products including the energy, capacity, and environmental attributes produced by the
hydroelectric facilities that make up the Central Valley Project (CVP).

DISCUSSION:

Pursuant to Letter of Agreement 19-SNR-02239, WAPA has established a program to distribute
RECs produced by CVP facilities to preference power customers. Certain NCPA members who
have assigned their Base Resource percentage to NCPA have requested NCPA to enter into
Letter of Agreement 19-SNR-02239, on their behalf', in order for NCPA to receive RECs from
WAPA.

Letter of Agreement 19-SNR-02239 specifies the terms and conditions under which RECs are
transferred from WAPA to preference power customers. Letter of Agreement 19-SNR-02239 has
a term of one (1) year, expiring July 31, 2020; applies to RECs produced by CVP facilities in
2019; and allows either party to terminate the agreement upon a 30-day prior written notice.
RECs received pursuant to Letter of Agreement 19-SNR-02239 are nontransferable, except
NCPA may transfer RECs to members it represents under the agreement. WAPA does not
warrant or represent that the RECs provided from the CVP will satisfy any Federal or State
renewable energy mandates.

Letter of Agreement 19-SNR-02239 is attached to this staff report for your reference.
FISCAL IMPACT:

Costs associated with entering into Letter of Agreement 19-SNR-02239 are estimated to be less
than $10,000 for the term of the agreement, and will be allocated according to Base Resource
percentages of the represented members. NCPA'’s administrative costs for development and
administration of the agreement will be allocated to members in accordance with approved cost
allocation methodologies as described the NCPA annual budget.

1 Cities of Alameda, Biggs, Gridley, Healdsburg, Lodi, Lompoc, Ukiah, and the Port of Oakland and
Plumas-Sierra Rural Electric Cooperative.

SR: 145:19



Approval of Letter of Agreement 19-SNR-02239
04/25/2019
Page 3

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:
This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the physical

environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

Respectfully submitted,

L [
Rgh?;:gHOWARD

General Manager

Attachments (2):
¢ Resolution 19-32
o Letter of Agreement 19-SNR-02239

SR: 145:19



RESOLUTION 19-32

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
APPROVAL OF LETTER OF AGREEMENT 19-SNR-02239

(reference Staff Report #145:19)

WHEREAS, Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) members are subject to a variety of
environmental mandates that require the use of Renewable Energy Credits (RECs) to demonstrate compliance
with the state’s legislative mandate and goal that a significant portion of retail sales be served by renewable
energy resources; and

WHEREAS, the NCPA members are preference power customers of Western Area Power
Administration (WAPA), and purchase a percentage share of the Base Resource product, which consists of
various products including the energy, capacity, and environmental attributes produced by the hydroelectric
facilities that make up the Central Valley Project (CVP); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Letter of Agreement 19-SNR-02239, WAPA has established a program to
distribute RECs produced by CVP facilities to preference power customers, and certain NCPA members who
have assigned their Base Resource percentage to NCPA have requested NCPA to enter into Letter of
Agreement 19-SNR-02239, on their behalf', in order for NCPA to receive RECs from WAPA; and

WHEREAS, Letter of Agreement 19-SNR-02239 specifies the terms and conditions under which RECs
are transferred from WAPA to preference power customers, including specifying that RECs received pursuant
to Letter of Agreement 19-SNR-02239 are nontransferable, except NCPA may transfer RECs to members it
represents under the agreement; and

WHEREAS, costs associated with entering into Letter of Agreement 19-SNR-02239 are estimated to be
less than $10,000 for the term of the agreement, and will be allocated according to Base Resource
percentages of the represented members, and NCPA'’s administrative costs for development and
administration of the agreement will be allocated to members in accordance with approved cost allocation
methodologies as described the NCPA annual budget; and

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency
adopt and approve Letter of Agreement 19-SNR-02239, and authorize the General Manager of NCPA to
execute Letter of Agreement 19-SNR-02239, on behalf of NCPA, including any non-substantive
modifications to Letter of Agreement 19-SNR-02239 approved by NCPA'’s General Counsel.

1 Cities of Alameda, Biggs, Gridley, Healdsburg, Lodi, Lompoc, Ukiah, and the Port of Oakland and Plumas-Sierra Rural
Electric Cooperative.



PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of , 2019 by the following vote
on roll call:

Vote Abstained Absent
Alameda
San Francisco BART
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc
Palo Alto
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Shasta Lake
Truckee Donner
Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

ROGER FRITH ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT
CHAIR ASSISTANT SECRETARY

NCPA Resolution 19-32 -2-



Department of Energy
Western Area Power Administration
Sierra Nevada Customer Service Region
114 Parkshore Drive
Folsom, California 95630-4710

APR 3 2019

Letter of Agreement 19-SNR-02239

Mr. Randy Howard

General Manager

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, CA 95678

Dear Mr. Howard:

The Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) is a customer of the Western Area
Power Administration's (WAPA) Sierra Nevada Region (SNR) and has executed Base
Resource Contract 04-SNR-00782 with WAPA. Some of SNR'’s customers have
requested that SNR make the renewable energy credits (RECs) that may be associated
with SNR’s hydropower generation available to them to assist in meeting their
renewable requirements. Although SNR is willing to initiate a 2019 REC Program, SNR
does not warrant or represent that the RECs it provides under this program will satisfy
any Federal or State renewable portfolio standards.

This Letter of Agreement (LOA) provides the terms and conditions under which SNR will
apportion RECs to participants in the 2019 REC Program in association with power
generated in 2019.

1. Participation in SNR’s REC Program:

1.1 In order to receive an apportionment of RECs from SNR’s REC Program,
NCPA must be a Western Renewable Energy Generation Information
System (WREGIS) Account Holder. SNR will not apportion or create RECs
for NCPA until its WREGIS Account Holder status has been verified.

1.2 Project use customers may participate in SNR'S REC Program by providing
written notice to WAPA at least 60 days prior to the first day of the first month
that such customer desires to begin participation.

1.3 Al RECs provided under this LOA shall be from the vintages January 2019
through December 2019.



Letter of Agreement 19-SNR-02239

1.4 For the purposes of participating in SNR’s REC Program under this LOA,
NCPA shall include the following members and the base resource
percentages they have assigned to NCPA:

1.4.1 Alameda Municipal Power

1.4.2 Biggs, City of

1.4.3 Gridley, City of

1.4.4 Healdsburg, City of

1.45 Lodi, City of

1.4.6 Lompoc, City of

1.4.7 Oakland, Port of

1.4.8 Plumas-Sierra Rural Electric Cooperative
1.4.9 Ukiah, City of

Definitions:

2.1 “CVP RECs” shall mean the renewable energy credits that may be
associated with the megawatthours from Central Valley Project hydropower
generation.

2.2 ‘“Stampede RECs” shall mean the renewable energy credits that may be
associated with the megawatthours from the Washoe Project hydropower
generation.

2.3  “Unclaimed RECs” shall mean the renewable energy credits that may be
associated with SNR's hydropower generation from Lewiston, Nimbus and
Stampede that are not being claimed by other preference or project use
customers.

Apportionment of RECs:

SNR will apportion the RECs in a three-step process. Calculation of
apportionments will be completed as follows:

3.1 CVP RECs:

3.1.1  SNR will calculate the percentage contribution from each unit/project
registered with WREGIS to the amount of Base Resource generated
each month.

3.1.2 SNR will then calculate the amount of Base Resource NCPA
received each month based on the sum of power scheduled to NCPA
from its Base Resource percentage and its contribution to or
allocation from the Hourly Exchange Program.



3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

Letter of Agreement 19-SNR-02239

3.1.3 Finally, SNR will apply NCPA’s actual month’s Base Resource
percentage as determined in Subsection 3.1.2 above to the CVP
RECs associated with that month's Base Resource from each
unit/project as determined in 3.1.1 to determine NCPA’s
apportionment of CVP RECs for each month in calendar year 2019.

Unclaimed RECs:

3.2.1  SNR will normalize the participating customers’ Base Resource
percentages for calendar year 2018 by dividing each customer’s
Base Resource percentage by the total of all participating customers’
Base Resource percentages.

3.2.2 SNR will then apply NCPA’s normalized percentage to the total
Unclaimed RECs for each month in 2019 to determine NCPA's
apportionment of Unclaimed RECs.

3.2.3 NCPA acknowledges that its normalized percentage, used for the,
apportionment of Unclaimed RECs, may change during the term of
this LOA depending on the number of participating customers.

Stampede RECs:

Stampede RECs will be held in WREGIS until SNR can determine the
annual amount of RECs due to the Truckee Donner Public Utility District
(TDPUD) and the City of Fallon (Fallon) before allocating the Stampede
RECs to others. Once SNR has determined the percentage of the
Stampede RECs to be provided to TDPUD and Fallon due to their
contributions to the Washoe Project, the remaining Stampede RECs will be
apportioned to the participants pursuant to the procedures provided in
Subsections 3.1 and 3.2 above.

SNR will transfer NCPA's CVP and Unclaimed RECs apportionments
through WREGIS after the RECs have been created by WREGIS.

SNR will transfer Stampede RECs apportionments through WREGIS after
the TDPUD and Fallon percentage has been determined and the Stampede
RECs have been created by WREGIS.

Nontransferable:

NCPA hereby acknowledges and agrees that RECs associated with WAPA power
are neither transferable nor available for resale by NCPA; Except That, NCPA may
transfer RECs received through SNR’s REC Program to the members listed in
Subsection 1.4 above.



Letter of Agreement 19-SNR-02239

5. Compensation to WAPA:

5.1 WAPA’s costs to administer SNR's REC Program will be paid by those
participants receiving an apportionment of SNR’s RECs through WREGIS.
Each participant's costs will be determined based on the participant's pro
rata share of RECs. WAPA's costs will include, but are not limited to, the
following:

5.1.1 WAPA’s costs to join WREGIS as an account holder,
5.1.2 WAPA’s costs for WREGIS to create RECs;

5.1.3 WAPA's costs for transferring RECs from its WREGIS account to
participant’'s WREGIS account;

5.1.4 Any-other costs WAPA may incur for its participation in WREGIS to
operate this program; and

5.1.5 Any other costs WAPA may incur from a third-party due to providing
services hereunder.

5.2 These costs will be provided as a line item on NCPA's monthly electric
service bill from WAPA.

6. General Power Contract Provisions:

The General Power Contract Provisions dated September 1, 2007, are attached
hereto and are hereby made a part of this LOA the same as if they had been
expressly set forth herein.

7. Term:

7.1 This LOA must be signed by NCPA on or before June 1, 2019 in order for
NCPA to participate in SNR’s 2019 REC Program.

7.2 This LOA shall become effective on June 1, 2019, and shall terminate
July 31, 2020; Provided, that either NCPA or SNR may terminate this LOA
upon 30 days advance written notice. All obligations created under this LOA
while in effect shall remain until satisfied.



Letter of Agreement 19-SNR-02239

If you are in agreement with the terms and conditions written above, please indicate
your approval by signing and dating both originals of this LOA and return one to Ms.
Sandee Peebles (N6213) at this office. If you have any questions, please contact
Sandee at (916) 353-4454.

Sincerely,

Arun K. Sethi
Vice President of Power Marketing
for Sierra Nevada Region

In Duplicate

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

By:
Title:
Address:

Date:




A PUBLIC AGENCY

PA

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

Date: April 17, 2019
COMMISSION MEETING DATE:  April 25, 2019

SUBJECT: GEl Consultants, Inc. — Five Year Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement for
engineering services; Applicable to the following projects: All NCPA Facility Locations,
Members, SCPPA and SCPPA Members

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

FROM: Ken Speer L5 METHOD OF SELECTION:

Assistant General Manager N/A

Division: Generation Services If other, please describe:

Department. Hydroelectric

IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members Cityof Lodi [] City of Shasta Lake []
Alameda Municipal Power [ City of Lompoc [ City of Ukiah [J
Sen F’a""i;‘;:iga%’r:;:; O  CityofPaloAlto O  Plumas-SierraREC 0
City of Biggs [ City of Redding [ Port of Oakland [J
City of Gridley [ City of Roseville [1 Truckee Donner PUD [
City of Healdsburg [1  City of Santa Clara [ Other [J

If other, please specify

SR: 148:19



GEI Consultants, Inc. — 5 Year MTPSA
April 25, 2019
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approval of Resolution 19-35 authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a
Muiti-Task Professional Services Agreement with GEI Consultants, Inc. for engineering services,
with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel,
which shall not exceed $1,000,000 over five years for use at all facilities owned and/or operated
by NCPA, its Members, by the Southern California Public Power Authority (‘SCPPA”), or by
SCPPA Members.

BACKGROUND:

GEI Consultants is an international engineering company with multidisciplinary expertise. NCPA
has relied on GEI for regulatory compliance and engineering services. Past projects with GEI
over the last 5 years include Dam Safety Part 12 Study Independent Consultants and the newly
required Owner Dam Safety Program Audit. This contract would be available to all facilities
owned and/or operated by NCPA, its Members, by the Southern California Public Power
Authority (“SCPPA”), or by SCPPA Members.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not-to-exceed $1,000,000 over five years to
be used out of NCPA approved budgets as services are rendered. Purchase orders referencing
the terms and conditions of the Agreement will be issued following NCPA procurement policies
and procedures.

SELECTION PROCESS:

This enabling agreement does not commit NCPA to any expenditure of funds. At the time
services are required, NCPA will bid the specific scope of work consistent with NCPA
procurement policies and procedures. NCPA currently has in place other enabling agreements
with Stantec, HDR Engineering, Black & Veatch and GHD for similar services and seeks
competitive bids from multiple qualified providers. Bids are awarded to the lowest cost and/or
best value provider. NCPA will issue purchase orders based on cost and availability of the
services needed at the time the service is required.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the physical
environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

COMMITTEE REVIEW:

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Facilities Committee on April 3, 2019 and was
recommended for Commission approval on Consent Calendar.

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Lodi Energy Center Project Participant
Committee on April 8, 2019, and was approved.

SR: 148:19



GEI Consultants, Inc. — 5 Year MTPSA
April 25, 2019
Page 3

Respectfully submitted,

gﬁv"—l,ﬁ 4\

RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments (2):
e Resolution
e Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement with GEI Consultants, Inc.

SR: 148:19



RESOLUTION 19-35

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
APPROVING A MULTI-TASK PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH
GEI CONSULTANTS, INC.

(reference Staff Report #148:19)

WHEREAS, the Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) requires engineering services in order to
comply with regulatory requirements and to maintain the reliability of facilities; and

WHEREAS, GEI Consultants, Inc. provides engineering services; and

WHEREAS, NCPA seeks to enter into a Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement with GEI
Consultants in an amount not-to-exceed $1,000,000 over five years; and

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency
authorizes the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement
with GEI Consultants, Inc., with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA
General Counsel, which shall not exceed $1,000,000 over five years, for engineering services for use at all
facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, its Members, by the Southern California Public Power Authority
(SCPPA), or by SCPPA Members.

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of , 2019 by the following vote
on roll call:

Vote Abstained Absent
Alameda
San Francisco BART
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc
Palo Alto
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Shasta Lake
Truckee Donner
Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

ROGER FRITH ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT
CHAIR ASSISTANT SECRETARY



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

MULTI-TASK PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY AND
GEI CONSULTANTS, INC.

This Professional Services Agreement (“Agreement’) is made by and between the
Northern California Power Agency, a joint powers agency with its main office located at 651
Commerce Drive, Roseville, CA 95678-6420 (“Agency”) and GEI Consultants, Inc., a
corporation with its office located at 180 Grand Avenue, Oakland, CA 94612 (“Consultant”)
(together sometimes referred to as the “Parties”) as of , 20__ (“Effective Date”) in
Roseville, California.

Section1. SERVICES. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement,
Consultant shall provide to Agency the services described in the Scope of Services attached
hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein ("Services"), at the time and place and in the
manner specified therein.

1.1 Term of Agreement. The term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective
Date and shall end when Consultant completes the Services, or no later than five
(5) years from the date this Agreement was signed by Agency, whichever is
shorter.

1.2  Standard of Performance. Consultant shall perform the Services in the manner
and according to the standards observed by a competent practitioner of the
profession in which Consultant is engaged and for which Consultant is providing
the Services. Consultant represents that it is licensed, qualified and experienced
to provide the Services set forth herein.

1.3  Assignment of Personnel. Consultant shall assign only competent personnel
to perform the Services. In the event that Agency, in its sole discretion, at any
time during the term of this Agreement, requests the reassignment of any such
personnel, Consultant shall, immediately upon receiving written notice from
Agency of such request, reassign such personnel.

1.4 Services Provided. Services provided under this Agreement by Consultant may
include Services directly to the Agency or, as requested by the Agency and
consistent with the terms of this Agreement, to Agency members, Southern
California Public Power Authority (“SCPPA”") or SCPPA members.

1.5 Request for Services. At such time that Agency determines to use Consultant's
Services under this Agreement, Agency shall issue a Purchase Order. The
Purchase Order shall identify the specific services to be performed ("Requested
Services"), may include a not-to-exceed monetary cap on Requested Services
and expenditures authorized by that Purchase Order, and a time by which the
Requested Services shall be completed. Consultant shall have seven calendar
days from the date of the Agency’s issuance of the Purchase Order in which to
respond in writing that Consultant chooses not to perform the Requested
Services. If Consultant agrees to perform the Requested Services, begins to
perform the Requested Services or does not respond within the seven day period

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-020
Northern California Power Agency and GE! Consultants, Inc.
1.  Rev'd 2/26/2019 Page 1 of 17



Section 2.

specified, then Consultant will have agreed to perform the Requested Services
on the terms set forth in the Purchase Order, this Agreement and its Exhibits.

COMPENSATION. Agency hereby agrees to pay Consultant an amount NOT

21

2.2

23

TO EXCEED one million dollars ($1,000,000) for the Services, which shall
include all fees, costs, expenses and other reimbursables, as set forth in
Consultant’s fee schedule, attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit B.
This dollar amount is not a guarantee that Agency will pay that full amount to the
Consultant, but is merely a limit of potential Agency expenditures under this
Agreement.

Invoices. Consultant shall submit invoices, not more often than once a month
during the term of this Agreement, based on the<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>